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THE NEW SILK ROAD

Fiminair < suceess <lory in Asian traffic contmues The company offers via Helsink over 4,500 connections per
week buoween Europe and Asta Last year over 700 000 passengirs took advantage of these connernions Flights
will be increased to existing destintions and one or twe rew destinations added exch yoar, in 2006 flights will
begin to Nagoya n Japan and Delh: m India The opening of one new Asian routs increases the network with ovir
80 new cannections

As a market area, Asia presents huge epportunities both for Finnair and 1ts customers Traffic between Asa and
Europe 15 growing at seven per cent per year Finnaw offers the fastest and shortest links between the
cononents

Eastern traffic has been asuccess for Finnarr so Asia has been chosen as the theme of this annwal report. Through
pictures, words and figures we will explain how the company has created a new Silk Road
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CONTACT INFORMATION

Head Othice
Helsinki-vVant 11 Airport
Tretone 11 A

FI-01053 FINNAIR

lel +358 9 81 881

www finnar com

Serior Vice President
Corperate Communicavons
Christer Haglund

Tl +358 9 818 4007

fax +358 9 818 4092

christer baglund@tnnair com

Scrior Viee President and CHQ
Lasse Henonen

Tel +358 9818 4950

fax +458 2 818 4092

lasse hemnonen@finnair com

Director Investor Relations
Taneh Hassinen

Tel +358 98184574

fax +358 9 818 4092

taneh hassinen@hinnar com

Investor Relatians
Tel +358 9818 4957
fax +358 9 818 4092

mvesrar relanons@hnnar com

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

ANNUAL GENFRAL MIFTING

The Finnair Plc Arnnual General Meeting will be held on 23 March
2006 at 3 pm at the Helsinki Far Center, Messuaukio 1, congress wing
entrance, hall C1

Neotice of attendance ar the Annual General Meeting must be made
by 1pm GMT 21 March 2006 at the latest Nowiee of attendance can gven
erther by post to the address Finnair Plc, Share Register HCL AAC/6,
01053 FINNAIR by faxto +358 {319 B18 7603 by relephone to +358
{0)9 818 7637 from Monday to Friday between 7am-2pm GMT or by
e mail to yherokokous@fmnair com The letrers Facaimiles or e-matts
of attendance must have arrived before the fast tme of notice

Shareholders who are registered with the Finmish Central Secur-
ties Depository Ltd {APK) by 13 March 2006 at the latest or who are
holders of shares entered in the administrative register and who on the
aforementioned date are temporanly entered in the register of share
holdersin the manner specified in section 3a § 11 a of the Companies
Act are entritled to attend the AGM Shareholders whose shares have
not been transferred to the book entry secunuies system may also attend
the AGM on condiuon that such shareholders were registered in the
Company's register of shareholders before 11 June 1993 In this case,
the shareholder must present their share certificates at the AGM, or
prowide an explanation of why their shareholding rights have not yet
been transferred o the book-entry system

BOARD OF DIRLCTORS PROPOSAL ON THT DvIDEND

The Group s disiributable equity according to the financial starements
on December 31 2005 ammounts to 352 6 million euros, while the
distributable equity of the parent company comes to 311 3 milhon
euros

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting
that a dividend of 0 25 euros per share be distribured a total of 21 7
million euros, and that the remainder of the distributable equity be
carried over as retained earnings

FINANCIAL INFORNMATION IN 2006

The Annual Report 2005 will be published in Finnish, Swedish and
Enghsh at the week 9 1in 2006

Interim Report Q1 {1)an-31Mar 2006} 5 May 2006
at9am {6am UTC)
Interim Report Q2 {1Jan-30)Jun 2006} 8 Aug 2006
at%am {am UTC)
Interim Report Q3 {1]an-30Sep 2006) 7 Nov 2006
at9am (7am UTC)

ORDERING THL ANNUIAL REPORT

The Annual Report 2005 wall be published in Finnish Swedish and
Englhsh To order fax +358 9818 4401 ¢ mal post@finnair com

LI CTRONIC ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Reportis published on the internet in Finnish, Swedish
and Enghish at the address www fuinair com/2005

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Shareholders are kindly requested to reporr any changes of address
to the Pintish Central Securities Depository Lt where shareholders
book entry accounts are kept




TRAFFIC INFORMATION AND FLEET

FINNAIR TRAFFIC PERFORMARNCE
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2005 2004 2003 20022001 g
Flight hours 202,070 196795 172,884 172,681 150,863
- - A319

E:m_..__w_._ﬁ kilometres {1000) 125,410 121,027 113,892 104,838 107,574 ~

Avaable seat kilometres mull 23,038 21,907 18,644 17,785 18,489

Revenue passenger kilometres mill 16,735 15,604 12,971 12,793 12,796 um

Passenger load factor % 726 712 696 719 632 s “ﬁﬂa ==

Avuhible tonne kidometres mill 3,400 3,62 2,636 2,491 2,493

Revenue tonne kilometres mill 1,940 1,791 1,470 1439 1,417 A321

Overall load factor % 57 56 6 558 . 578 568

Passengers (1000) 8,517 8,149 6,849 7,037 7,537

Cargo and mad (1000 kg} 90,242 86,245 73,416 72,084 71,900 \

D —— iﬂh\.,
FINNAIR GROUP FLEET 31 DECEMBER 2005 B757
Seat Owned Leased Total Averige age

A319 123-126 7 4 1 42

A320 .. l44 6 6 12 i .34 ®|\\3~d§=ﬂ 0

AN 18] 4 2 & . a5

MD-82/83* 140-136 6 8 14 173

- i! - T ST T/ ety s i e MD 11
MR 88 8 0 8 . 1a8
__MD-11 286 2 S___7. _ __ ___ mns
LBy 227 e 7 2 66 mr
=y
Embraer 170 76 0 4 4 02 A:\...L\Nui Euhmq)l i G ”
Total 33 36 69 a8

* Nine areratt of the M1 50 fleet m aperated by a fully owned subsihary MyNordic

** The ATR 72 fleet 1s operated by a fully owned subsidiary Acro

MD-82/83 (FlyNordic)

Embraer 170

AHMI(\M%

The averagy age of the flecrin operation of Scheduled Tratfie on 31 December 2005 was 4 4 yiars

The average age of the entire fleet of Finnair Group 15 8 8 ycars

ATR72 (Aerg}
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KEY FIGURES 2005

TURNOVER
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KEY FIGURES

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Turnover o EUR m 1,871 1,683 1,558 1,656 1,611
__Adjusted, EBIT* B EUR mill 70 25 41 24 8.
_Operating profit, EBIT EUR myll 82 31 18 60 13
_Operatngprofictovmover % 44 18 12 36 68
Profic before exrraordinary tems and eaxes _ BURmMl 88 3 22 54 9
- Uit reveaues ef flight operanons, o/RTK_ 722 _ __ 710 801 881 _ go&
Unncosis of ight operations ¢/ATK . S20 507 586 631 658
JBarnngspershare . Ewo_ 073 03 _01s _ 043 _ o008
SFautypershaee - _ . Buro 773 _ 697 724 758 _ 722
Lrosswwestment - _EWRwmll_ 58 _0s _ s2 102 281
lmerestbearmg netdebt - FURmdl__ 155 24 8 30 212
_Beunyrane %422 402 444 443 413
_Metdebt to equiry (Geanngy L R X SRR SN B SN X -
_Adjusted gearng %™ 668 025 _ 1027 82 0__1nés
Rewrnon capual emplyeed ROCE® % m1_ 61 00 76__ 29
Average number of staff 9,447 9,52 9,981 _ 10476 10,847

* Excluding capital gains and fair value changes of derivatives
g capital g J3



FINNAIR GROUP
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SCHEDULFD PASSFNGER TRAFFIC

Finnair Seheduled Passenger Tr affie
Aero Airlines As

Nordie Airlink Holding Ab / FlyNordic
Finnair Cargo Oy

Finnair Aircraft Finance Oy
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LEISURE TRAFFIC

,  Fmnair Leisure Trafh
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AVIATION SERVICES

Finnair Techmical Services
' Narthport Oy (Ground Handling)
Finnar Catering Qy
Finncatering Oy t

Finnair Fay

ies Management Qy

TRAVEL SERVICES

Finlind Travel Bureww Ltd (FTB)
AJS Estravel Ltd

Ares Travel Agenuy Led

I Mikkelin Matkatoimisto Oy

| Amadeus Finland Oy

nair Travel Services Gy
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FINNAIR IN BRIEF

BEST IN NORTHLRN SKiES

Finnair s goals ro be the leading Narthern European aviation service
enterprise

LUROPLCAN EXTELLENCE

Finnair's am is to prowde the most highly regarded and quality travel
related services, which are operationally the best in Europe and which
are the most desirable choice for the customer

MARKFT LLEADIR

Finnair s the market leader in air transport to and from Finland as well
as1n gareway traffic through Finland

BRAND

The brand values have been extended into dimensions that communicate
the kind of airline that Finnairwishes o be and for what the airhne is known
Finnair's brand values are safity Finmishness freshness 1nd developing
They are meless and disunguish Finnair from competitors

VAILLLS

Finriair's values, which were updated in September 2005, are a funenioning
work community, continuous development, customer orientation and
profitabriity The purpose of the updatud values 1+ to tend supporr to the
choices and decisions that Finnair employees make n their daily work

SUSTAINABLE, PROMTABLE GROWTI!

Finnair s busmess objective is to achieve sustainable and profitable
growth Geographical expectations are placed on the growing Asian
Scandinavian and Baltic markets

COMPLTITION STRATEGY

Finpair s competnon stratcgy 1s bascd on its high quality of service 11s
status as one of the most punctual ariines in the industry and (s compre

hensive continually expanding route network wia its alliance partnerships

Finnairis safeguarding is strong competitive position by making effective
use of various distribution channels and by developing its services

CAPHALISING ON T BUSINC»S

Finnawr will rm prove [[XN competniveness and sl m.:_ﬂ_m_._n.v_ T%_ amfjﬁ
advantage of the possibilities e busmess offers i its imernal and external
processes as well asin e commerce and customer service

TAPABLL PARTNI IR

Finnair 15 determined to be a capable and acuve partner that provides
added value for its associates Finair1s an expert on the Nordic dimen
ston within the oneworld alliance Itis Finnair's um to consohidate its
posiuon by being a pioneer as well as a develuper and user of new tech
nology in addinion to being a beneficrary of the synergies otfered by
the alliance

PREFERARTD € HHOICE,

Finnair s aim 15 to be the most desirable, safe reliable and friendly choice
for ws customers Finnaw is systemancally developing its service con
cepts based on feedback from its customers New technology enables
us to provide an increasingly personal and comprehensive service for
our chents

PROFISSIONAL PERSONNIEL

Aprofessicnally skilled, motvated and committed work force 1s 10 asset
that Finnair values highly We acnvely work to promore job sarsfaction
as well as staff capabilives in a rapidly changing work environment
A management culture of reward underpins our personnel strategy

CORDPORATE AND SQUIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Firnair recogrises its rele as responsible partner in the soctety and the
communities where ity operating A responsible and open environment al
policy 15 a permanent feature of the company s way of doing business We
pay active attention to the most pressing environmental ch illenges

DIVIDEND POLICY
(t1s the aim of Finnair's dradend policy to pay on average ar least one
third of the earnings per share as dvidend during an economic cycle

FINANUCIAL TARGE TS

The basis tar serting financal rargets 15 thar the company produces
added hnancial value The target i met il the wix per cen operating prohit
margin and 17 per cent EBITDAR ratio are surpassed
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REVIEW BY THE PRESIDENT AND CEO

IN GOCOD FINANCIAL SHAPF FOR THE FUTURF

The beginming of the millennium has been an exceprional ume for arr
transport Powerful external changes and structural tensiens in the sec
torcame as a surprise to most airlines Many descended into chronic
difficulties, some even went bankrupt Size proved to be na safeguard
for many companies On the contrary

Mammoth, slow moving icons of avwation found rthemseives burdened
with inflexible stractures crippled by intense competinon created by
overcapacity Harsh restructunng measures were intated in many
companies Often too late however

In Finnair we began operauonal efficiency and productivity improve
ment measures at a stage when air transport and the econorny were
nsing steeply In 1999 we disconunued unprofitable routes and rurned
our gaze 1o Asia

We purposefully began to increase our traffic to China, Thailand and
Japan We <aw that Chira < economy was on the thresheld of a boom
and that the market was epening up to travel We negouated addinenal
nghts 1o open routes to new destunations We created the Silk Road

of the new millennium

Our Asia strategy helped Finnair survive through difficult years while at
the same tme providing a solid platform for future growth

During the sireng fluctuations in demand of recent years price com-
petitien promoted by overcapaaity and the recent nise o fuel costs we
have nurtured cur cornpetitiveness and financal health

Sustainable profirabiliry and healthy growth have guided our decsions,
which in the hardest years were troly difficult amidst massive cast cut-
ung programmes and reductions in staff But we were able to imple
ment even major ¢changes n a controlled way, without endangering
operational or service quality

President and CEQ Keyyo Suila reured 31 December 2005

In 2005 we have reported a financial performance that also s on the
nght track from the standpoint of the rargets we set 1n avtumn 2001

Behind the clear improvement in profitability has been good growth
in demand both n the Nordic area and in Asian traffic We have been
able to transfer most of the rise in fuel prices into our ucket prices

Through porsistent goal directed work, Finnair has secured s pusinion
in the European ehte - f performance 1s medsured by serwice quality
and fmancial health

Arlincs are part of 2 valus chainin which they are fundamentally impor
tant Several other Inks w1 the value chain from aircraft construcuon
to leasing activity and from oil companies to airports operate in an
environment of imited competiiion which is strongly reflected in the
costs and profitabidiy of airhies

Despite the many external pressures, we in Finnair have tried te best af
our ability to adapt to a transfurmed operatng environment and to the
new conditions that prevail in the industry We have made independent
deaisions to safeguard our future and to ensure our success

This 1s my final review as Presdent and CEQ | am handing over the
responsibility of managing Finnarir to my successor Jukka Hienonen
and  arm retrning from my post | am leaving Finnairin a good i wistful
frame of mind | would lke to thank the shareholders for the confidence
they have shown towards Finnair, even in uncertain circumstances
Atthe same ume | thank the company s empleyees for thur resilience
duning a periad of enormous change

Keyo Swla
President and CEOQ
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REVIEW BY THE NEW PRESIDENT AND CEOQO

Jukka Hienonen was appainted President and CEQ 1 January 2006

OFAR SHAREHOLDIR

For Finnair, 2005 was a success Following the retirament of Presi
dentand CEQ Keijo Suila at the end of the vear, I would like to take
this opportunity on behalf of Finnair employees and sharehold-
ers to thenk him for his long-term excellent work performed in
dfficult circumstances Finnarr today i< amoeng the best arrlines
i terms of inancial and operational key figures

Compenuon in the airline Industry continues 1o be intense The
wdustey s sull burdenvd by high wvercapacity and an adjustment
will be required before a warldwide recovery in the sector can tke

place The nse inthe price of fuel over the last thred years and fallng
ticket prices represent a problemaunc equanion for airhines Finnair
has decided to come through this situation as one of the winners

We will seek growth where the condibons to operate profitably exist
Traffic berween Asia and Europe 1s expected to grow by around
seven per cent a year far into the future Finnair s Asian traffic 1<
already growing ar double that rare and our market share in the
Eastern market in nsing

Finnair s air trans port hub at Helsinki-Vanraa Airport has an excel
lent location The shortest route from Europe to Asia passes over

Finland and Helsinki is the hrst EU capital city encountcered when
flying from Asia to Europe Finnair s route network of nearly 50
international destinauons 1s useful for those passengers for whom
no direct connection exists between therr place of departure and
therr destination An uncongested arrport ensures fast flight changes
and our location dehvers the shortest possible flying ume

Finnair's balance shect is streng and we are a debt free company

We are implemenuing an extensive investment programme, which
this year will already make Finnair's scheduled traffic fleet the most
madern (0 Europe In the next few years we will be modernisig
our long haul fleer Soon we will be flying on scheduled traffic
routes with two types of aircraft with modern short range Embraer
arcraft and a medwim- and fong range Airbus fleet The fuel otfi

ciency of our areraft s competrtive and environmental ermissions
the fowest possible

The Finnair of the future wants to maintain its posivon as Europe's
most punctual arhne (0 air transport, safety 1y the foundation for
all operations and in this area we make no compromises Finnair s
service is unquestionably amang best in the industry We will continue
to take excellent care of our customers and effer betrer praducts
than our competitors both in business and leisure travel

To our shareholders we aim to be a responsibly managed company
that maintains s financial performance a company that exbibits
figh expernise and a way of operating that inspires trust Finnair
1s one of Finland s most interesung employers and we, as Finnarr
employees are genuinely proud of our company

I have taken over the leadership of a financially sound company and
challenging marke: conditions e before us The urline industry is
a dynamic, fasainaung field of business, which i< growing worldwide
ina competitive environment cvery gain must be hard won results
must be earned through work experuse and trust We want to
develop Finnair as a strong internanional company that has roots
n Finland and a global reach We wili take our customers there
- and bring them home for the evernng!

Jukka Hienonen
President and CEQ



THE BRAND SAFEGUARDS THE FUTURE

For more than B0 years Finnair has played a hev rele in Ninmish sociery Trustearned through decades
of experience 15 a sohd foundation for those faus and images thar are o ystalised 10 the Finn i brand
The Finnar brand’s basic values are safety Finmshness freshness and development

Like every brand, the Finnair brand rests on three main supporting pil
lars recogniion respect and significance A strong brand chstinguishes
a company from it~ compentors and is closely hnked o its tinancial
performance and future compettiveness

Brand development s long rerm, systernatic work ro which every Finn-
airemployee contnbutes

“Customer contacts conunually create millions of moments of rruth in
which one’s acuons cannol be guided by some externally dictated nonsense
Brand values must be intemalised because then acting according ro them
becomes deep rooted ' explains SVP Commeraal Division Mika Perho

“The brand makeover performed 1n autumn 2005 15 an evolunion,
a total overhau! was conducted in 1999 This time we didn’t delve into
basic ssues but checked whether the brand values corresponded to our
current market situation and our operating environment The brand is
really a continuously moving process ' says Perho

BEST N NORTHLRN 5KILY £ UROPEAN FXCFILENCE

“Best in northern skies, European excellence 1s Finnair s vision which s
fulfilled through the company’s strategy, internal values and brand Cor-
porate values guide internal activity, brand values external actwity

‘Brand values represent the company's straregic ntent We cannot
dicrate what s in a customer’s head but we can set targers and work in
every way to fulfil them,” adds Mika Perho

Internally efficient and eftective processes, an anucipanon of situa-
uons and a competive price-quality ratio build Finnair s brand on a daly
basis The Finnair brand was not created by mimimum performance but
by legendary stones in which finnair employees succeeded in surpassing
their own and customers expectations

The brand shows its power when a customer expressly wishes to fly
with Finnair and not any other airline A strong brand also helps to get
through difficulr umes A long lasting, enduring brand requires the con
stant monitorng of quality

* The Finnair brand s monicored with various indicators and surveys
The price level of products also tells us something about the brand ’
says Perho

Finnair's brand values have been opened into dimensiens, which tell us

what kind of airfline we want to be and what we are known for Safety,
Finnishness freshness and development Thesc are our umque strengths
and their maintenance and development require constant care and
work They stand the test of tme, tell us apart from our competitors and
create a strong foundanion te build future growth on

Abrand valucd by customers creates a sustamable base for future
growth mncreascs salcs over the longer term and promotes operational
development It1s often said that a good brand presells the product Every
dimension of Finair s brand 1s present in every customer conract
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FINNAIR S BRAND VALUIS _
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Osaka, Hep 5 Shopping Centre, 15 August 2005 2 3
cities and 1t 1s crammed wath historic sites A newer
which 1s very popular with the young

5 p m Osaka s one of Japan’s oldest
atrraction is the Hep 5 Shopping Centte,



1. DID YOU KNOW?

China is the world s sixth largest econorme power
and at its present rate of growth it will pass
USA In 3040 years The country s the world s
third fargest exporter and importer after the
USA and Gerimany

Source The Confederation of Finesh Industries (LK)

FINNAIR TODAY

Fininair 1s on a strong growth track Profitable growth has been sup
ported by goal directed cost control and productmty improvements in
ling with the company s strategy Animportant driver of devilopment
has been strangly growing Asian rraffic Finnair offers the most direct
route from Europe to many destimations in Asia

As aresult of correct choices and resolute work Finnair has gained
a position as one of Eurgpe’s leading airlines A hugh quality efficient
route network comfortable and punctual travel as well as friendly,
expert service are values with which Finnairis often connected Blue
and white wings have served as a bridge builder between Finland and
the world since 1923

Finnair today has over 8,600 employees The Group has, Including
Aerc and FlyNordic, afleet of 70 aircraft. The fleet has been modern-
1sed since the turn of the mullennium wath the arrval of Airbus A320
series and Embraer 170/190 <enes arrcraft and 1s now the most mod-
ern in Europe In 2005 these arcraft flew more than 200,000 hours
and carried over eight million customers The passenger load facror
was 73 per cent For flight punctuality, Finnair has been year after year
nurnber one in Europe

Finnairis a more sigruhicant operator than its size suggests and s
an expert developer and praneer of the aviation industry Finnair rep
resentatives are active members in the aviation _:n_:m:.v. s international
forums Inthe body responsible for developing fight safety, for example
Finnair’s expertise 1s strongly represented Furthermore, the Finnair
subsidiary Aurinkomatkat Suntours s an active member of a UN-led
project that 1s developing aperating models for sustainable tourism

TINNAIR IN 11 FUTLRE

Finnarr s goal 15 to be the best airline in northern skies and a leading
European provider of travel services

Finnair s strategy has proved to be effective in years past Sound
finances and sustainable competitiveness provide a solid foundation
for the future

Finnair s compeurion strategy 1s based on high quahty of service
a starus as one of the most puncrual airhnes in the industry and a com-
prehensive, continually expanding rout network via alliance partnerships
Finnairis safeguarding its strong compuutive position by making offuctive
use of vanous distribution channels and by develeping its services

Travel between Asia and Europe 1s growing at an annual rate of
seven per cent The number of passengers on Finnair s Asian routes s
growing twiee as fast The company s responding to increasing demand
by expanding its wide-badied fleer and adding new routes Finnar will
Qpen one £ twa New routes every yedr on s Asian nerwork and increase
the frequency of flights to 1ts present destnanans [n this way the mod-
ern Silk Road connccting Asia and Northern Eurape will be reinforced
through carefully considered steps

Finnair and Helsinki offer the fastest route between Asia and Europe,
which 1s an exceptional assct i the airhne industry s ever ntensifying
competiuve chmate

Bestin northern skies, European excellence’ 15 Finnair’s vision

which will be fulfilled through rhe company s strategy internal values
and brand
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FINNAIR’S BUSINESS OBJECTIVE IS SUSTAINABLE
AND PROFITABLE GROWTH

Departure of AY(}87

As part ot its growth and expansion i Asean traffic Fnnair opened
a route to Guangzhouin China on 4 September 2005 Finnair flies
fram Helsinks to Guangzhou on Tuesdays Fridays and Sundays
and from Guangzhou to Helsmki on Mondays, Wednesday and
Saturdays Our example fhight AY087 departed from Helsinki on
22 November at 5 p m and arrived in Guangzhou the following

morning aftera fight of 9 hours and 20 nunutes

A FLEET

As afinancial seund company, Finnair has been able during the last
few years 1o moderrise its fleet at a rapid rate [ts modern fleet 1s
cost efhieient and environmentally positive | terms of 1ts moder-
mry, Finnair's fleet)s first rate on both a European and world scale
and itwill ensure the company s future competitveness

In Seprember Finnair was amaong the first airlines to accepr
delivery of the Brazihan made 76-seat Embraer 170 arcraft Dur
ing the next two years a total of 16 Embraer will be delivered to
Finnair

In 2004 Finnair brought to a conclusion its Airbus fleer mod-
ernisation The Airbus A320 series and the Embraer aircraft have
replaced the Boeing MD-80 aircraft which will be decommis
sioned by summer 2006

and by developing new services

In December 2005 Finnair announced that itwill update its long
haul fleet by 2012 The Boeing MD-11 senes aircraft, which has
served the company well will gradually be replaced by new Airbus
A340 and A350 series wide bodied aircraft, the first of which will
Join the fleecin 2006

AYO087

AY0S7 was flown with the latest Boeing MD 11 ro be acquired
registrinon number OFH LGG The MDY 17 s well suited to Asian
rraffic because it can carry 300 passengers and up to 25,000
kilos of cargo Cargo s an important part of Finnair s Asian
strategy

OH-LGG carried 243 passengers and thar baggage, plus 23 600
kilos of cargo The passenger load factor was 86 per cent The
average passenger [oad faciorin Asian tratfic s 80 per cent

b PRODUCT SUPFLRIGRITY

Finnair must be able in every situation ta offer its customers com
petrive products and services The preduct and service package
1s made up of numerous inter-dependent factors For the cus
tomer, the travel experience generally begins when the journey
s bocoked and ends with a punctual arnval after a comfortable

Finnair's competition strategy is based on high quality of seivice, a status as

once of the most punctual anlines in the ndustry and a comprehensive continu-
ally expanding route network via alliance partmerships Finnair is strengthening
1ts competitive position by making effective use of various distribution channels

For business success, the company's mam competitive asscts are a maodern
and efficient fleer reltable and cost-eftecuive operational suppott services, cost
discrpline and an environmentally positive outlook Franaraim’s to create

the most interesting products and services inits field of busmaess

flight In berween the customer may, for example use Finnair s
e services and lounge faohuies, and will enjoy, of course the in-
fight meats drinks and entertaimment services

AY087

The ourcome of producy superionty s a satisfied and loyal cus-
tomer The services and routes offued by Finnair have proved
therr effectiveness Thisis indicited by continually growing pas

senger ntmbers and market vhares Helsinkaos aneffierent Laleway
between Europe and Asia Finnair is naturalily the best choic for

anincredsing number of customers

COROUIE PEANNING

Finnair has purposefully increased the number of its Asian flights
since 1899 and now the company has more than 80 fhghts
a week berween Asia and Europe [ue to the Helsink gateway, the
number of roure pairs 1s many hmes this amount In future too
Finnair will be among the first comparmes to open new compet

tve routes to the strongly growing Asian market
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!
on the Paarl River Delta which 1s onc of China s bigeestindustrial

vur flies 1o Guangzhon three imes a week Guangzhou o situated

areas Around 40 million peaple lwe in the region and one third
of China s cxports pass through it Finnair was one of the hirst
arhines to open hinks berween Furope and Guangzhou

v FUbL

Fuel costs which have grown due to the higher price of jet fuel,
have a sigmificant impact on Finnair’s profitability During 2005

Finnair s fuel costs rase ta nearly 300 million euros, which 1s 15

per cent of the company s turnover Fuel costs will also grow in

the near future despite Finnair's policy of price hedging

AY087

Gn its flight from Helsinki 1o Guangzhou the Boeing MD 11 con-
sumi s 87 tonnes fuel, which cost the companyv 47,850 euros The
Airbus A350 arrcraft which Finnair ordered in December 2005
and will join the fluerin 2011 consume a third less fuel than the
MD 11<

fOTHE FINNAIR BRAND

Finnair s one of the world’s cldest airlines Since its founding,
customers have come to know Finnair as a quality blue and
white airline. Safety Fiomishness, Freshness and Development
are unique strengths which customers value and which are pres-
ent in every customer contact They are the cornerstones of the
Finnair brand and they contribute to gencrating sales and achiev
ng growth targets

AY087

As they step inte the aircratt for their Guangshou flight the pas-
sengers sense the brighrness and freshness of the cabin Friendly
expert staff wish them welcome The refurbished business class
wrth irs he-flat seaes make travelling an enjoyable experience In
flight services ind meals miarch the strong Finnair brand mage
thar the customers have encountered in Finnair s advernsing and

service promises

FOEPFICIENT SUPPORT SERVICES

Etficient, quality support services are kev tactors in the service chamn
of a successful company Quaity, sausfying catering 1s part of the
Finnair brand while expert marntenance and technical services
keep the aircraft in peak condimien and efficient use Flexible ground
handhing services ensure that flights remain on schadule and that
passengers are looked after well even at the busiest times

AY087

On the Helsinki Guangzhou route 486 meals 750 cups of coffee
and 1 500 drinks are served Qwirthe years, mternacional survi ys

have rated Finnair s catening ammong the clite of the wiline indus
try Finnaris widely known among other things for s excellont
selection of wines kvery meal and drink <erved contribures to
creatung the Finnair brand

Owmg to efficient, expert mamtenance the Q1 LGG Mies on
average 15 hours per day Ten man hours are used to maincun
the OB LGG for every hour of flying ame The arrcraft i« checked
befare every flight Mare fundamental mantenance micisures of
dittering scales are performed at montlily s monthly and five
yearly intervals In the most (undamental survicing measure overy

singl. component of the aircraftis inspecred

G PERSONNIE

A professionally skilled mouvated and committed work force 15
an asset that Finnair values highly The company has more than
9 000 employees of whom 2 150 are fight personnel 550 pilots
and 1,500 cabin staff

Every employec plays a key role in preducing customer satis-
factron budding the Finnair brand and ensuning safety Finnair
actively works to promote the job satsfaction and competence
of staffin a rapidly changing operating environment

AY087

Hundreds of people participate in the phinming of the Helsinki-
Guangzhau flight s well av i sales custonier service aind othier
practical duties Expertise and consuenuous work are decisive
Factors in the efficiency of the scevice chain Fer the customner
the most visible rale s played by the cabn erew which consist of
12 sratt on the Guingzhou flight: Twe of the staff are native born
Chimese, ta ensure thar the largest customeor group can be served
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Osaka, Dotonbor

the economic area

»

15 August 2005 8 00 p m Osaka 15 une of Japan s biggest cities and 15 the
most tmportant finance and cultural centre 1n western japan Osaka’s harbour area has been

H

s gateway to the world for over 1,400 years



2. DID YOU KNOW?

Lastyear major nterrational companies es
tablished in Cluna 700 nuw research and de
velopmenteentres In the next few vears, Chin
will became the world's largest producer of
eleetronics and information produces

Source £K
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NEW SILK ROAD LED TO RECORD YEAR

Planming of flight routes, fight scheduling and ancraft acquisition require fong termwork Finnaun has
succeeded i the overall management of these elements the company’s scheduled traffic grew by ten per
cent i 2005 Of the Finnan Group’s 8 5 million passengers, Scheduled Passenger Traffie's share was

a tecord seven million

The biggest success factor was Finnan s effective Asran strategy The growing Lastern market, moteover,
will cononue to increase Ninnair’s Asian trathc signihcantly m the future The subsidianies Aero and

FivNordic are also delverng growth i the Baloc regon and the Nordic countries

Finnair s Scheduled Passenger Traffic 15 responsible tor regular pas-
senger and caryo traffic as well as passenger service on aircraft The
business area s tasks also indude route network planming, fleet man-
agement and cooperavon with ather airhnes As the Group's largest
business area Scheduled Passenger Traffic accounts for 80 per cent
of Finnair's turnover

Scheduled Passenger Traffic has more than 60 destinations in Finland
and throughout the world Half of revenue comes from Furupean traf
fre, while domesuc traffic represents one fifth Asian rraffic accounted
forone quarter of Scheduled Passenger Traffic's passenger and cargo
revenue in 2005 Travel between Asia and Europe 1s contnually increas
ing, the huge conunent offers Finnair enormeus growth potential

In Scheduled Passenger Traffic, 2005 was marked by strong growth
in traffic and turnover Asian traffic expanded to Guangzhou to which
only two other European arlines fly in addinon to Finnarr At the end
of 2005, a decision was made to acquire 12 new Airbus wide bodied
aircraft. Asignificant change in Finnair's fleet took place with the intro-
ducnon of Embraer aircraft in autumn 2005

LUROPL AN EXCLILTNCE

The populanty of air travel continued to nise 1n 2005 which encour
ages confidence in the future of the sector Intense price compettion
resulting from overcapacity in air tratfic has continued The biggest
challenge to profitability in 2005 however, came from a steep Increase
in the price of fuel

Finnair s competiiveness was top rlass by internatenal standards
Scheduled Passenger Trafhc's profitability has been improved by lower
ing unmit coses In addition, the average price of Finnair’s flight tckets
rose shghtly after falling for several years

During 2005 Finnair achieved new records in passenger iraffic Pas
senger traffic demand i revinue passenger kilometres grew i 2005
by ren per cent and passengerload facror rose 2 6 percentage points
The trend was better than the average for European airlines

ROUTE STRAITGY PAYS OFF

Finnair's chosen passcnger traffic strategy continued ro show s etfective
nessin 2605 The Asian and Scandmavian groweh strategies have proved
to be successful Finmish and international companies are conunually
mereasing thew invesiments in Asia and this has boosted demand
Finnair has a unque position comparcd with its Curopean compen
tors, because rt offers the shortest and fastest conneetions berween Asia
and Eurepe Flying via Helsinki (s the most direct route to Southeast
Asia forexample to Chinaand Japan A wide range of destimations
and optimised nmetables mean that Helsinki-Vantaa Arportis a n wural
stopping point for passengers flying between Asia and Europe

FINNAIR SCHEDULLD PASSENCER TRARFIC
= Finma Schedulud Passenger Traffic

* Acto Airlines AS

* Nordic Airlink Holding AB/FIvNordic

* Finnair Cargo Oy |

_ ¢ Frnar Arceaft Finance Oy
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NORDIC WALKING FOR THE CHINESE

The Finnish technology company Exel manufac-
tures composite sports equipment and (ndustrial
profiles Exel1s best known forits Nordie Watker®
poles, ski poles and floorbalt sticks

Exel 1= expanding 1ts operatrons and s now tar
geung the Asian market where there s enarmous
growth potenval 111 Southern China, the company
15 building a factory, which will produce indus-
trial fibre profiles for international custamers as
well as Nordic walking poles primarily for local
CONSUmers

In cogperation with the China Insatute of Sparts
Science Exel aims to <ell 1ts products m China
The company moreover 15 the International Ski
Federavon s exclusive supplier of poles in China
lapan oo 15 an emerging marker for Exel « Nor
dic walking poles

Excl s ambitious goalis to stmulate enthusiasm
for Nordic walking ameng the Chincse

“IF only ene per cent of Chinese took up Nordic
wlking as a form of enercise (s would triple the
number of enthousiasts in the world” , says Aki
Karihtala SemorVice Presidant Sport division

Finnair s comprehensive Asian route network,
with its direct flights will play its parr m serving
the Exel expansion project

Nearly 30 million journeys are already made cach year between Asia
and Europe, and this figure i< growing at an annual rate of seven per
cent Passenger kilometre capacity in | rnnair’s Asian scheduled traffic
grew by 15 5 per cent in 2605 and demand by 16 8 per cent Finnarr
has achieved a significant market share an the routes that it fles In
the Asian travel market there i sull great scope for growth Finnairw
cantinue in future years to purposefully strengthen the Asian route
network by increasing the number of flights to present destinations
and by opening one [o twe new routes per year

Currendy, Finnair s Asian scheduled rraffic routes are Beying,
Guangzhou Shanghar and Hong Keng in China and Tekyo and Osa
ka in Japan Finnair al<o flies to Bangkok and Singapore In summer
2006 a third Japanese route to Nagoya will apen and in November
Ninnair will begin direer scheduled flights to Nelhy, the capnal of India
In addimon to China, Indiais one of the fastest growing business and
lewsure travel designations

NEW AIRBUS AJRCRATT FOR ASIAN ROLUITS

Due o the streng growth in Asian traffic Finnair wall acqure 12 new
Abus wide bodied aireraft for its long haul fleer OF the aircraft, nine
are A350s and three are A340s The A350 15 a complerely new type
of aireraft, which will be introduced to Finnair's scheduled traffic in
2011 The current Boemg MD 11 aircraft wll be withdrawn from the
Finnair fleet by spring 2012 The A340 aircraft wall arrive in 2007-2008
1o serve the busy Asran routes

The acquisiion of the Airbus aircratt represents the biggese fleer
modernisation in Finnar s history and reflects Frrnair < confidence
EJ& commtment to ts >J_N3 W_\OS\H_J M:\mﬂmmv.

During the last six years Frinnar has renewed over half of its fleer
The fleet used by Finnair Scheduled Passenger Traffic 1= alsu one of the
most medern in Europe which considerably enhances passenger com-
fortas well as the economy and environmentaliy positive attributes of
the arcraft For exampie, the A350-900 will consume a third Jess fuel
per passenger than its predecessor the Boetng MD-11

The streamlining of the fleet will lower maintenance and operaning
costs Forexample the same crew will be able to fly both long haul and
European flights Mantenance preparedness can at the same ume be
restricted to fewer types of arcraft
In 2012 Finnair Scheduled Passenger Trathic will be operating only three
types of areraft Long-haul wraffic will be served by wide-bodres Airbus
aircraft The European and domestic fleet will consist of narrow-bodiad
Arbus A320 series arrcraft and Embraer 1707190 aircraft

FMBRALR ERA BLGAN

The Brazilan Embraer arrcralt joined the Fnnair Mhight for the fiest ume
nautumn 2005 Finnar decided Lo acquire 12 Embraer arreraftin spring
2004 and ordered four more in autemn 2003 The first four of the arrcraft
were taken into service by the end of 2005 By autumn 2007, Finnair
will have a total of 16 Embraers in s fleet Fnnair also has apuons for
ordering four additional arcraft Of the ordered arrcraft, ren are 76-seat
Embraer 170s and six are the larger 100 seat 150 model

The Embraer s first scheduled flight was from Helunki to Qslo on
1 October 2005 Duning 2006 the aircraft will fly to a number of domestic
destinations as well as, among other places, to Stockholm, Oslo and
Hamburg in Europe The latest Embraer destinatians to be announced
are Krakow, Kicv and Gereva which will open during 2006

The Embraer arcraft represent the latest avauon technology The
arrcraft has an advantage in terms of operating costs because 1t con
sumes less fuel than older types of aircraft Morcover, progress will be
made in ervironmental frendliness because compared with other types
of aircraft the Embracr's carbon dioxde and mitrogen oxide cmissions
are low The Embraer arcraftmarch the larger p 1ssengar jets in terms
of passenger comfort

The new aircraft will be assigned to routes on which demand doces
not require the use of larger avrcraft The arcraft which have less than
100 scats al<o allow new roures to be opened profitably Asran flight
passengers can now be offered connecung flights 1o new European
destinations By summer 2006, the Embraer aircraft will replace the
Boeing MD 80 fleet in Finnair's services

PASSINGT R COMEORT AT A THGH LEVE]

In comparisons of airlines Finnair’s service 1v rated rop class Finnair
systemaucally gathers feedback frum its customers in order to improve
IS serwice

High-quality cabin service 15 also 4 key element of Finnair s brand
and product superiority Forthis reason Finnair s flights serve quahey
meals and drinks, tallored according ro the length of the flight In fight
service Is an importan: competitive factor for Finnarr
For many years now, Finnair has been Europe's most punctual asline
as well as the arine thar cancels tewest flights This 1s one of the quahty
factors most valued by customers

Inwinter 2006 the business class seats of all of Finnair's wide bod
red aircraft will be renewed Finnair will be the hirst airline in rhe Nordic
countries to bring lie-flat seats to its intercontinental fleer which wall
boost competuveness
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The development of electronic services has enabled consumers to make
their travel plans more fiebly and has also broughe cost savings to

airhnes at the same time Sigmihicantly more thar halt of fight tckets
sold by Finnair in Finland were sold via the internet Most of Finnair s
scheduled traffic passengers use the e ucker, with the figure in Finland

being more than 90 per cent

FLYNORDIC AND ATRO PLAY STRONG SUPPORTING
ROLLS

The Finnair Group's budget airline FlyNordic strengthened s pesition
in the Scandinavian market during 2005 One of FlyNordc s most
important competitive advantages 15 1ts use of the main arports of
tts destnation cities The easy accessibility of flight reservation and
auxihiary services 1s an esseanial part of the concepr, which has also
attracted many business passengers to the flights

FlyNordic s operations grew to new record levels in 2005 a rotal
of 1 2 mullion passengers were carried on the company » fhights winch
15 62 pir cent more than the previous year FlyNordic flies in coopera
ron with Sterling and Norwegian Airshuttle airlines to a toral of 21
desunanons

The Estonian subsidiary Aero which focuses on Southern Finland
and Balec traffic, also achieved record figures in 2005 when Finnarr
transferred the handling of its Sotithern Finland rraffic to the arrline
Iminternational traffic as well as the Helsinki-Tallinn route, Aero fiies
from Helsinks to Riga in Latvia and to Vilrius in Lithuania It also fies
in the summer to Kuresaare on the Estonia isfand of Saaremaa The
airline carned a total of 760,000 passengers

-
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m SCHEDULED PASSENGLR TRAFFIC IN FIGURES 2005 |
!+ Numberofflights 98 319
* ¢ Schiduled Passenga Tratfic s tornover (null curos) 1 408
*, + Number of di sunanons 64 H
_ *  MNewdestinations in 2005 3 |
H + FyMNordic new operings in 2005 15 !
¢ Asianrraffic growth 16 8%

CARGO TRAVELS ON A MODERN SHIC ROAD
The logistics sernces offered by Finnair Carga are based mainly on
sales of freight capacity on Finnarr’s scheduled traffic aircraft Cargo o
carned mainly onwide bodied Beeing MD 11 aircraft, which can hold
25 tennes of cargo in addiion 1o the passenger load The company
also leases cargo awrcraft capacity according to need and acts as the
eperater of the Helsinki cargo terminal

Finnaw Cargo bas cargo inks 1o more than 30 countnes An essential
part of the company's stracegy 14 to focus on developing the Helsinki
Gareway, all of the company’s long-haul traffic cargo passes through
the Helsinks terminal More than half of the cargo carried on wide
bodied aircraftss transit cargo, which continues via Helsink to other
parts of the world Thointroducuon of a new information system dur
ing 2006 will boost the efficiency of Finnair Cargo’s procedures and
diversify logistics services

Growth in cargo traffic between Europe and Asia otfers very prormusing
prospects for Finnair Cargo For example, the volume of goods brought
from China in 2605 grew more than 30 per cent compared with the
previous year The opening of the Guangzhou route in September 2005
has allowed fast connections to China s teading industral area
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&%\ﬁ . Kyoto, Railway Staton, 17 August 2005 9 25 a m The geisha tradition s still strong in the
former capital city of Japan Young geishas are trained according to ancient tradition to be
skidled 1n art, playing music song, conversation and customs
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Araund 40 000 scrence and rechnology growth
rompanics are aperatng sn China s 53 nanonal
high technology development centrus These
Lmpioy as many peopla as there ar nhabit
ants of Finfand

Source The Embassy of Chinan Helurke
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ACTIVE HOLIDAYS POPULAR IN LEISURE TRAFFIC

Aurinkomarkat-Suntours 15 the market leader inHs sector and a proneer of Finmish feisure rravel Finng

Letsure Flights, the preterred carrier of Finmish hohdaymakers, flies 700,000 Fins each year around the
world on trips ranging from city breaks to beach hobdays in distant lands Hall of these navellers are
Aurmkomatkat customers Actvity and theme trips are growing in populatity

One in three Finnish package tours s arranged by Auninkomartkat-
Suntours The campany s success 1s based on high quality and
a strong brand as well as decades of experience as the trusted rour
operator of the Finns An orgamsanon with the abihty to act fast
enables production structures to be changed when necessary In
aworld where surpnises are commonplace a tour operator must be
able to implement flexible <oluvons and make quick decisions for
the customer s benefit

Passengers are buying trips to new, exotc desunarions and are
ncreasingly opting for active holidays Many howevir sulllong for the
traditional surt holiday and favour famihar hohday destinanons

COMPETITIVENESS RFQUIRLS DIVERSITY

tast year demand for Aurmkomatkat’s services grew by six per cent
Brazil and Cuba, which ar. among Aurinkematkat « new destinitions
were more popular with customers The popularity of Southeast Asia
has grown steadily and Aurinkomatkat has dwersified its programme
there Interest in countries of the Balkan region has also mcreased
substantally Romania, Croana and Montenegro, for example, have
joined Bulgara a long ume favourite

Aunnkomarkat has Finland s widest range of products, of which
the mostimportant remains the beach holiday The populanty of long
haul destinations s continually growing however and new kacanions
are being added to the selection all the time A host of active and theme
holidays in which opportunities to engage n favounte pursuits play
a central role have been created to fultil travellers leisure nme inter-
ests The Aurinkomartkat brands SunSki, SunSall and SunGolf have
focused on offering holidays centred on certain activities SunGolf
for example has proven to be a fast growng product

FONMC STANDING REPUTATION FOR REUIARILITY

The reliability acquired through more than four decades of expenence
15 one of Aurinkomatkat s most important assets Custormers avoid
uncertainties and prefer to rely on a tuur operator they know t be safe,
one that will care for its customersin all circumstances
The casy accessibility of travel products has become an increas

ingly key competiuive advantage fhe role of electronic business has
grown steadily alongside the travel industry s tradiienal sales channels
Currently more than 15 per cent of Auninkomatkat's annual sales are
made via the internet

FINNAIR [TISURT FLIGHTS 1S THE PREFIRRID CARRER
GF THE FINNS

Finnair Lersure Flights produces charter and leisure flight services manly
for tour operators ts strategy (s (o strengthen s role as aninterna-
nonal leisure fight uperator and 1o use Finnair Leisure Tratfic s fleet
effectively

Nnnair has a fleet of seven Boeing 757 areralt which are used solely
for leisure traffic needs In addimon ro this the cip oty of scheduled
flights 1s ualised to allow changing needs to be fulfilled and the range
of destinations to be expanded

The Leisure Flights service concepr has been developed to meet
new trends in travel behaviour In a ughter compettive chmate Fin-
nair Leisure Flights has increased the number of lesure wraffic seass to
popular destinations and has developed its range of desunations in
coopuratien with tour apurators {n future Leisure Flights amms to sell
talored addinonal services wa the internet

In summer 2005, the company s five year cooperanion with the
German TUI Group ended Even so Finnair Lersure Flights' market
share in Finland is nearly 70 per cent
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SUNTOURS TOUR PRODUCTION BY COUNTRY
WINTER 204157 2006

] Span 49%
+ 3 tong haw 27%
O Muddle cast 7%

SunSki 5%

Others 12%

~ )

SUNTOURS TOUR PRODUCTION BY COUNTRY
SUMMLR 1006

Greece 29%
Tirkey 15%
Span 1%
loly 10%
Buigaria 9%
Long hawl 5%
Others 21%

Dagg
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LEISURE TRAFFIC IN FIGURES 2005

* Aunnkomatkar-Suntours turnover
{rmil euros) 240

* No of tnps sold by Aurinkomatkat
326 22%

*  Lasure Flights turnowver
(mill curos) 246

* No of passengers carried on | eisura
Fhghts 1392 400

A SHORT BREAK OR OFF TO THE ENDS OF THE EARTH?

Consumpuon habits change slowly in the travel sector, but new trends in travefiers preferences are perceptible Group rravel in iz tradi
tanal form s dachaung Travellers new feal that s more impartant to act independently and they ofsen have clear views an what they
wantfrom a holiday Customers now tend to setect from package rours the elements that st therr plans best

Itis increasingly common for travellers to divide their vacation time wito several periods Different destinations are favoured 1n summer
than in winter Actrary and weekend breaks are also arranged throughout the year The number of two and three week holidays i falling
slightly

The poputanty of long haut hohdays to new exatic destinations i nsing steadily Various actve holidays represent another growth area
Heking teips to the Alps, for example, are now part of Auninkomatkat s product range



4. DID YOU KNOW?

Guangzhou a ety of ten millien people 15 lo
cated on the Pearl River Dulia The area s one
of the world s fastest developing and largest
centres of industral production Finnair flies
to Guangzhou three bimes a week

TRAVEL SERVICES GO ELECTRONIC

Finnan s Travel Services business area provides travel planming and travel management services

The travel agencies Area and Finland Travel Burean, which are owned by the Finnan Group, atc among

the three largest travel agencics in Finland Amadeus Finland, a supplier of reservation systems technolfogy
to the travel sector, 15 developing new solutions for the changing distibution market

The rapid technological development that has taken place in the travel
sector inrecent years has impacted vn travel agencies operitons and
pracuces, partcularly in the sale of journeys to consurmers Independent
action has increased in the purchase of leisure trips Various aptions
are actively searched compared and bought via the internet Travel
agencies play a more prominent role when the dusuinanons are further
afield or if the journeys require a lot of planaing

In corporate travel, the travel agencies have managed to reram their
strong posibon well Corporte sales in Finland are highly concentrated,
as up to 90 per cent of the market 1s contralled by four operators The
challenge for travel agencies both in the consumer and corporate sphere
15 to develop electronic services and travel management systems

The firancial adrmiristration units of Area and Finland Travel Bureau
were merged and mcorporated i auwmn 2004 The arrangement his
worked well and has generated cost savings

One of the most promminent events m the travel sector in Fintand in
20035 was the bankruptey of the Teolon Matkatoimisto travel agency
The disappearance of a major player from the market clearly increased
the sales of Area FTB and other travel agencies

AREA UPDATES TS IDIUNTITY

Area Travel Agency s largest business area is the provision of travel
management and consulting services to companies In addinon, the
company produces and arranges trips for consurners, and organises
group and actmty holidays Around three quarters of turnover comes
from business travel services and the remainder from private travel and
tailored package tours

Area, which acts as an agent for several tour operators and airlines
has an office network covering the whole of Finland as well as business
travel centres in the largest towns and cities Mikkelin Matkatommisto
Qy s asubsidiary of Area

The value of corporate travel sales in Finland totals around 650
million euros a year of which Area’s share s around one fitth in cor
porate travel the challenge contnues to be ughter compention and
awneakening of the sector's prohitability Area’s goals are cost leader-

ship among business travel agencies and market leadership in the sale
of lusure tps

In 2005 Area’s turnover grew slightly compared to the previous
year A contact centre was developed to prowide betrar multy channel
service The company is delivermg to customers new electronic solu-
use of the

tons that facrlitate seif-service This enables more afhicie
travel agency network which in turn yields cost savings

In 2005 Area received a new visual image, which communicates
the company s identity as an e-business travel agency

FTB GROWS 1IN TINTAND AND THE BALTIC STATES

Finland Trave| Bureau's services include the arrangement of business
trips as well as a comprehensive range of group, conference sportand
package tours FTB < subsidiary Estravel 1s the largest travel agency in
the Balue states with operations in Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania

| THE TRAVLL SFRVICLS BUSINLSS ARI A COMPRISES
¢ AreaTravel Agency Lid
b Fland Travel Burcau i td (FTB)
I e ASEsvavel Lud (FTB < subsichiary)
'+ Amadeus Finland Oy
Mikkehn Matkatoimisto {Arc s subsidiary)
* Fmnair Travel Services Oy (travel ageney financial

|
,
.
i

admimistranion)

A

TRAVFL SERVICES IN FIGURES 2003 m

= Areaswrnover (mill curos) 21 ﬁ
r IrnpssoldinArer 313 000

| FTB s wrnover (mill euros) 62 _

* Mo of customers travel ,_

|

}

!

wwvia FTB 450 502

1
]
“ + Amadeus kinland s twenova {mill curos) 11
L

X

§42i4134 p3ARY)




SAIIAIBY jAAVAY

In addition to an extensive service network and comprehensive serv-
1ces, Finland Travel Bureau's strengths are product names that focus
oncertain tields such as Eturnatkat a city-break specialist, ala carte,
which offers talored holidays, and Menlinga a cruise trip programme
Finland Travel Bureau has more than 30,000 regular customers
Business trips account fur around one half of FTB's sales although
the proportion represented by lersure ime travel 1s expected to conunue
to grow The company’s toral sales in 2005 were around 300 milhon
euros Of this figure, acrual turnover, namely the proporucn accounted
for by services and products produced by FTR 14 arcund one hfth
Finland Travel Bureau has maintamed s profitabidity by keeping its
cost level moderate and by developing electronic services FTB.1s airmn
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ing for modest but constant growth in Finland and the Baluc region

Incoming travel namely travel directed to Finland 1s continually grow-
ing in signihicance and r creaung new business n the country Qn the
business travel side, growth opportunities are 10 found parucularly

in Russia

AMADEUS TRCHNOLOGY RESPONDS T CHANCLS
IN DISTRIBUTION

Amnadeus Finland has strengthens d s posison m Fratand as an imple
menter of comprehonsive informaton technolegy solutions for travel
agencies n line with the updated corporate image of Amadeus Inter-
national greater emphasis is being placed on Amadeus Finland's role
as a travel sector technology partner that has the ability to develop
various opoions fur the changing needs of both establishied and new
operators from the sale of trips to financial management

One of Amadeus Finland s most important tasks is to gather all
the informanon produced by travel providers into one system, through
which travel agincies and prowdirs of travel services can manage their
products worldwide As old systems are decomnussioned, airhnes also
have a need for new infurmation technology Fianarr, for example has
introduced Altea Plan Amadeus’ new seat management system

In recent years the basis for tradimional distribution activity has had
to be re examined as direct internet delivery has become more wide-
spread Systemss are required to be flexible as sales channels dwersity
Amadeus solutions allow systems to be managed fexibly, because Ama
deus’ advanced techmical platform s able to support different business
models and 1s not ted to a tradronal distribunon model

5. DID YOU KNOW?

Guangzhou Hong Kong and Macao form
a powerful economic tnangle, with a combined
populaton of around 40 mibon A third of
China’s exports pass through this regron
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%wn&, Hong Kong, Pacific Shopping Mall, 11 june 2005 120 p m Hong Kong, with its 260 1slands
* and 7 muthion inhabitants 1s a pulsating trading centre both for keen toursts and major

infernational companies
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6. DID YOU KNOW?

1 Jrpan s the world s second biggest ecanom
) and the spunding power of its people 1s one of

the lighest in the wadd Aa indication of the size
\ of the imarket 1s given by the fact thac Japan s
Gross Nauonal Product s sull three nmes big
fer than that of rapidly growing China

in terms of total twenaver Japan s Finland s
thed largest trding partner from outside Cu

rope after the USA and China

Source The Minstry for Foreign Affurs of finland
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SUPPORT SERVICES CREATE NEW MARKETS

The Aviation Services busiess area forms a diverse <ervice chin rhat has a hey mfluence on Minagr s

brand and overall service guality Aviatton Services embraces ground handling, carerng functiens and

technical services

Business urus that suppuort flight operations have assumed an active
rale in creating new forms of service and customer relanonships The
biggest customers of the Avianon Services business area are Finnair

Group airfines, but the proportion of turnover accounted for by cus

tomers outside the Finnarr Group 1s growing all the ome

The cutsourcing of support serwices has become common place
throughout the airhine ndustry, and some of Finnarr's suppar func-
vons have also been entrusted to partners

SMOOTH CONNECTIONS THE MISSTON OF GROUND
HANDRLING

Northport Oy s responsible for the passenger services of Finnair and
many other airlines as well as the loading of baggage and cargo in
connection with aweraft departures and arrivals Each year around
80 000 aircraft turnarounds” are handled and every one of them has
animportant role in an airhne’s overall service cfficiency
Northport and its partners operare at all the domestic airports served
by Finnair Asubsidiary FinnHandling, provides ground handling serv
wces at Arlanda Airportin Stockholm

Ground handling s task s to take care of check-in, lounge services
and aircraft embarkatron al departure gates At the same tme baggage
sorting and loading are performed as weil as balance calculations for
cach flight Inaddinen meecting arrving aireraft directing passengers
o connecting flights and transferning baggage are also part of ground
handling work The efficiency of these services has a decisive impact
on ensuning that customer satisfaction s maintained and flights oper

ate on scheduie

MULTETASKING BOOSTS COMPE TITIVENE 5%

In Finland Northport Qy operates, in addition to Helsinki-Vangaa Arr
port at 15iacatons where services are prowided manly in cooperanon
with partner companies Northport s market share in Finland 1s around
70 per cent, depending on the arport The biggest customer 1s Finnair
but services are also prowded to numerous other airlines

The restructuning process of recent years with its many partnership
arrangements has improved the company cost-effectiveness consid
erably The employees’ traiming in mulu tasking skills has resulted
sensible job descriptions and contributed to a maore flexible provision
of services than before The new service models have kept cusromer
sausfaction and punctuality at a high level

Together with the market situation, the huge luctuancn in the need
for services according to the season of the year day of the week und
ume of the day presents a challenge At Helsinki-Vantaa Airport, for
example up to a third of passengers deparung each day are served in
aone and a half hour period durning the mormng peak

RETENING QUALITY AND PLANS FOR T XPANSION

In 2005 Northport focused on refining the restructuring programme
implemented in previous years and on promoung quality 1ssues Proht
ability has been systemaucally improved The overall level of costs for

FINNAIR GROUP AVIATION SFRVICL S
= Northport Oy s responsible for ground h indhing services
+  Fianair Catening Oy handles meal services on airerft H
and in wrports
[« FmnarTechmcl Services provides aucraft mowntenance m
| SEIVICLS 1
1

*  Finnair Fag

1es Management Oy s e sponsible for
|
| real estate management i
I

B U —_ e e
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| NORTHPORT OY

* Twnoverin 2005 (mdl euros) 70 i
m *  Marketshare in Fmland 70% u
| = Tumaroundsinycar 80 000 X
= No otemployues 800 .“
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the year was around twe million euros lower than the previous year
The absolute number of turnarounds declined in 2005 and the gen-
eral price level of the handling market fell shghtly due to the airlines
cost pressures

In autumn 2005, Northport made organisational changes to sup-
port the company’s expansion strategy The Finnish markets mited,
50 growth opportunities are based on geographical expansion con-
cluding network agreements and new products In addion, serving
transt passingers offurs new development opportunities, parucularly
in long-haul tratfic

TECHNICAL SLRVICTS COOD RIPUIATION ATTRACTS
CUSTOMLRS

Finnair Technical Services performs bath full-service maintenance and
repair operations as well as indvidual repairs for Finnair and other air-
lines A reputanion earned through professional quality and reirable
services 1s bringing new customer relationships to the company

In addinon ta quality, Finnur Technical Services’ strergths are fast
delvery tmes flaxibility and serwice tailored ra customers’ needs The
company has the capacity to repair and service the airframes and engines

of several types of arrcraft

MOST INTERLSTING DIRECTION FOR GROW I 1S EAST

Finnair is Techmical Services’ most important customer, but the unit is
nereasingly cooperating with other asrlines External customers account
for around one third of turnover The main goahs to buld a strong posi-
tonn the growing Asian and Russian markets The uniz s successful
cooperaton with Aeroflot will help open doors towards the East

Anumber ot significant agreements were concluded 11 2005 through
an actve sales effort Essenuialissues for the compentiveness of Finnair
Technical Services are keeping its level of service hugh and remaimng
a pioneer as a technical expert of new types of aircraft

FINNAIR TECHNICAL SERVICIS
* Turnover in 2005 (LUR millien) 202
= No ofemployecs 1800

* No of arrcraftiypes serviced 8
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TECHNICAL EXPERTISE HAS EXPORT POTENTIAL

Finmar Techmeal Services busingss s growing High-qualiy, axpertmaintenance keeps Fnnarr s fleet of areraft i brsteclass con-
dition and in efficient use: The prowision of mantenance semnces to other arlines 1< al<o & rapidly growing arca of busincss

Finnas Techmcal Sevnces sefls s wide-ranging mamtenance expertise to around 20 arhines [n recent years the volumae of
the Finnair Group < external mantenance services has rigen sharply and new markats are opening all the time In Russia and
Asna there are numerous avhnes for whom Finnar s expertise and reliable maintenance 1s an attractive ophion

One ef Ffinnair Technical Services most impartant external customers 15 Aeraflat Carge Cooperation covers line imainte-
nance, equipment repair and airframe maincenance of the company s DC 10 eargo aireraft, 1e in practice all mamtenance
except for the engines Maintenance 1s peeformed at the aireraft s home base at Frankfurt-Hahn Arpartin Germany, where
Finnair Technical Services has its own staff




AVIATION SERVICES
PERSONNEL
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AVIATION SERVICES
TURNOVER
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Techncal services 53%
Catering 23%
Ground handhng 23%

Facility services 1%

Technecal services 46%
Catering 28%
Cirownd handiing 14%

Tacihty services 127

The arline mdustry wall expand i future which will also increase demand
for maintenance services On the other hand modernised fleets will
reduce the need for maintenance and repairs The competitive chimate
for arrcraft maintenance 1s relatvely stable because the investments
required by the sector restrict the start up of niew companies

In connection with the introduction of the new Embraer aircraft
Finnair Technical Services has applied a new model for hme mantenarnce
based on the LEAN concepr Madelling is being used to try ro develop
processes taking the whole of ine maintenance acovity into account

The new operating model wiil improve productivity

FINNAIR CATERING STANDS QUT 1O 15 ADVANTAGT

Finnair Catering produces meal services for light passengers and s alvo
responsible for sales that take place in arports and on areraft namely
travel retail operations A subsidiary Finncatering Oy has specialised
in preparing meals for economy class and leisure traffic flights Each
year more than seven midlion passengers are served through Finnair
Cartenng s logistics centre

The food and drinks service has a strong role in building an airhine’s
brand The overall service connected with catering produces added value
that enables Finnair to stand our from 1ts competitors For exarnple,
Finnairis perceived as a quality airhne as a result of the wines it serves
A numberof research surveys have shown that Finnair's catening service
ts one of top three among European airlines Finnair Catering s goal1s
to be the best service provider in its field in Europe

Around 80 per cent of Finnair Catering’s revenue comes from Fin
nair s Scheduled Passenger Traffic business area Finnair < 1mage as
a quality prowider of catering services sets high standards for cater-
ing operatians, which the company has succeeded in mamtaning At
the sarme time services must be produced at a compebitive price This
¢quanon requires INNGvation in catering operanons and an ability o
constantly create new product concepts

SALTS AT AIRPORTS GROW

The competitiveness of catenng operations 1s based on a wide product
range and efficient management of many work stages The LEAN pro

duction method aimed at reorgamising and enhancing the efficiency of
working pracuces, was introduced in 2005 within both Finnarr Cater

ing and Finncatering

Although the average price of products fell in 2005 profitabiliey ~rayed
arasausfactory level Anincreasing part of Finnarr Catering’s opera-
uons and earnings 15 connccted with the travel retar! side of the bust-
ness This acovity includes amaong other things sales thar take place
inairports and on aircraft Finnar Catering has three tax frec shops
at Helsinki-Vantaa Arpart

Catenng operanons worldwide are faced with a challenging situ
avon because nflight catering has been reduced Quality arines sull
trust n the added value brought by catering In future the trend will be
towards personalising catering accerding to customers’ preferences

FINNAIR CATERING QY + FINNCATERING QY
o+ Mealsprcpared / dav 15 800
o Torsover 2008 (ol curos) 125
[ Employees 894
p 0 Cupsofeoffec served / year 11500 000
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:..rw&m Guangzhou, Pot and Porcetain Room 13 June 2005 415 p m Guangzhou is called

) the City of Flowers It has a hurmid climate that allows flowers to bloom ali year round
Beauniful Flower themes are also reproduced in the local handicrafis




/. DID YOU KNOW?

Nearly 30 000 large and medium sized industnal
companies are operatng in China OF these
around 7,000 have serence and technology re
search unitsin the country |

Sourct The Lmitssy of Chinain Relsimla

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH IS PROFITABLE

A ghreenng hustory 1s no guarantee of future success Today and in the future, Finn e must be able

to meet the growinig, diverse needs of Mnmish and infernational cosiomers This will be possibic only
if operatsons are compentive and profitable in the long rerm

For ovir B years, Finnaw’s route network has expanded as Finmish society
and business life have opened up to the world in that tme more than
200 mithon passengers have lown on blue and white wings

Acomprehensive route network, an efficient fleet and expert person
nel are also the cornerstones of future acuvity Development must take
place, however 1 harmony with the surrounding society and enviran
ment That's why Finnair’s business abjective 1s sustainable, profirable
growth

AIR TRANSEORT A PART OF MODLRN SQCHTY

Efficient transport ks and services arc a prerequisite of modern West
ern society Finnair with it highly efficient and extenwive route network
s an important part of the structure and competitiveness of Finnish
society Direct inks to nearly 50 nternanonal and 16 domestic desti-
nations plus 60 leisure flight destnanons constitute an excepuonally
diverse route netwark

Airtransportin Finland is the only form of public transport that does
not need taxpayers’ support Finnar, indeed finances a significant part
of Finland’s air transport infrastructure and generates for society rax
revenues as well as inancial profic

Finnair directly emplovs mare than 8,000 people and indirectly thou
sands more 11 different parts of Finland and the world Rapidly growing
Asian traffic has provided work for thausands of Finnair employees

COMPETITION THE FNGINE OF SUSTAINABLL
DEVELOPMENT

Only a finanaially competrtive company has what it takes to fulfil its social
obligations A transport is an extremely competitive sector in which
operating conditions change very quickly Surprising unforeseen events
<€an, in a instant, present the entire industry with new challenges

Overthe years Finnair has had to make painful decisions to preserve
the company's viability and to secure sustainable competinveness and
high service quality for the future teo

Pursuing respons ble profitability and a sustainable growth straregy
has created the financial health thar enables future investments to be
made Taking the dcmands of sustainable development more widely into
account in air transport and tourism is a guiding principle In Finnair’s
decision making A large scale envranmentally posttve {lees renewal
programme began in 1985 and will continue into the rext decade

NO SHORT CUT TO RESPONSIRILITY

The charntable partnership of Finnar and UNICEF over the last tun yuars
isindicarve of Finnair’s desire o makc a tangible impact n areas where
the prerequisites for life are not automancally within reach

Environmentally sustamnabie well-being 1s also important to Fin
nair Finnair supports the Finmsh Assoaation for Nature Conservation s
waterways protection project, which aims to prevent the eutrophication
of the Baltic Sea by reducing the loading of Finland's coastal waters
Internal waterways and rivers. During the waterways protection project,
a teaching pack will be produced for schools Finnar and the Finmish
Association for Nature Conservition want to ensure that millions of
people can enjoy in future, too, the unspoilt, beaunful nature of the
Baltc region

Finnair s reputation as a lugh quality a1nd responsible Finnish operator
15 the result of many years of goal directud work Operating successfully
s a challenge even duning periads of steady growth to say nething of the
turbulence encountered during the external shocks of recent years

Corporate social responsibility 1s fundamcntal actitude and a way
of working Finnair bears (ts responsibility for Lomorrow and the goals
of sustainable growth also extend our own actmties more widely, nto
the surrounding socioty

PAIING CARED €F THE CUSTOMER

Open honest rreatment of customers and expert fmendly service underlic
the operariens of a reliable puncrual airline Finnar must in every sirua
uon iso do all i can to promere safety and passenger comfort

Finnairis a quahty, reliable and punctual arrline Finnair surveys
customers sansfaction with fhght travel on a daily basis Asin 2004,
customer sansfaction remained on a high level Customers valug in par
ucular Finnar s business class service but European economy class s
also highly rated 1n comparison with compenitors

Aviauon medical services have developed wig,
recentyears The standard of medical equipment and thght personnel s
medical expertise on lang haul flights i< clearly higher than that required

wantly i Fmnairin

by arr ransport regulations Due to caoperanion berween the ntLrnational
MedLink World Doctor enterprise and Finnarr, passengers who fall ill
during a flight can be given advanced medical care o necessary
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».M.u*, Guangzhou, Shamian island, morming dance, 13 june 2005 10 45 a m The Pearl River

(Zhu Jrang), which flows through Guangzhou, contributes to the throbbing life of rhe ciry
Relaxing traditions such as morning dances dre appropriate in this growing metropohs
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A MODERN FLEET SAVES THE ENVIRONMENT

Fmnan takes environmental perspecaves into account i allits actvities In this way, the < ompany
ensures sustainable, profitable growth also from an ecologieal standpoint Finnair operares within the
fragile, umique nature of the North, which requires a ligh seandard of environmental actviy

In 2005 the international debare on cimate change and the role of air
transport gained impetus Due to the global nature of air transpert
and to ensure common game rules for operating, Finnaw considers it
Important that rargers and measures ro reduce air transport emissions
apply to airlines alt over the world

The average age of the Finnar fleet 15 only 4 4 years As a result
of its advanced rechnology and light structures a modern fleer saves
fuel and reduces emissions Econormic flying methods and direct route
selection mean that the environment is being taken into account bet-
ter than ever before

INTERNATIOMAL GUHITLINES ANDY COOPLRATION

tnalhits acuvnies Finnair adheres to current environmental legislation
and the environmental protection prinaiples of the Internatonal Crvi
Aviation Orgamsation ICAQ As a member of the International Air
Transport Association [ATA, the comp iny s also commieted to reducing
the environmental effects of its operations in an economcally reason

able way withour jeopardising ar safety 10 addiion to legislation and
tnternational commitments, the wel being of the environment requires,

even sa that the airline engage i its own active work

TOWARDS EUROPT 5 MQOST FCO THRICIENT FLFEY

International air traffic s forecast ro grow further in the future ln terms
of competiiveness and the enviranment, 1115 therefore IMPOrTant 1w
operate with a fleet that loads the environment to the minmum pos
wible extent A modern fleet v the fastest, most effective way to reduce
ermronmental impacts The aruficral taxes and fees proposed in the
pubhc debate would impose a burden on airlines and in reality would
puta brake on environmentally positive investments

MNnnair has systematcally conrinued its fleet modernsation pro-
gramme The company announced in December 2005 thar it will replace
1ts present Boeing MD-11 long-haul fleer with Airbus A340 and A350

aweraft by spring 2012 The kerasene consumprion of these types of
aurcraft 15 nearly 30 per cent iower than on the Boeing MD 115 At the
same ume the emissions from the new arrcraft are also lower

By next summer, Finnair will have vne of the most modern fleets
m Europe when the Embracr 170 arreraft replace the Boeing MD 80<
Of the Airbus A320 series aircraft used on European trunk routes
most were built during rhe current dec ide and thew engines also fulfil
future emussions criceria The fleet’s economic fuel consumpon and
low carbon dioxide emissions support Finnair s efforts to meet the
enssions targets set for ar transport

ENVIRONMENTAF WORK ON AND OFF THE GROUMD

In 2006 the greenhouse enuissions of Finnair's aircraft wall fall further as
the fleetrs modernised with the 76 seat Embracr 170 and the 100 seat
Embraer 190 arcraft Key figures descnbing environmental efhoency
such as fuel consumpuon and carbon dioxide ermissions per passenger
kilometre wall improve

Finnarr Technical Serwices, which carnes out arrcratt maintenance
and repairs was granted a new environmental pernut in December
2005 The Technical Scrvices area 1s facing a major buildings projuctas
work on an erghth aircrafl hangar begins In the design of the hangar,
special arterinon has been paid to among other things, energy saving
solutions The ground equipment used by Finnair is also bemng mod
ermised with the acquisinon of low-emission vehicles
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z‘mﬁ.ﬁ Macao, 12 June 2005 10 a m Like Hong Kong, Macao 1s a Specal Administrative Region of China
Macao, which has a population of around half a million, 1s known, among other things, for its textle,
electronics and roy industries It 1s focated 60 km from Hong Kong and 150 km from Guangzhou




PRICELESS EVERYDAY VALUES

Inautumn 2005 Finnarr svalues were updated to corre
spond with the present changed operaning environmant
The values lend support to the choices and decisions
that Finnair employees make in their daily work

Finnairvalues are a funcuoning work community,
conunuous development customer orentation and
protitabibity. The values are depicted as a inange, as
they illuence onc anather

TEAM PLAY DEVELOPS SURE TOUCH

Afunctioning work community s one in which an encour
aging atmusphere prevails Employees understand their
organisation s basic tisk management SUPPOTLs SUC
cess and common game rules are follewed n an open
atmosphere

Afuncuoning work commurity 1s inspived to con
unuews development which gives nse o the nght exper-
use Sohd professionalism s the foundanon of Finnair's
opertions and something of which employees are proud
Fmnair emplayees have the courage to modernise and
adesire 1o strve to be the best Knowledge and skills are
shared openly in the werk communiy

SATISFIED CUSTOMERS GENERATE PROFITS

Exprruse is evident m the customer orentation of sory
rees Finnair employees are easy to work with because
they keep thewr promises and actively seek 1o improve
n overy m—mﬂum_n‘n Oﬁﬂrn_ﬂ’-ﬁﬂﬂ—n

Profits rise from satsfied and loyal customers
Finnair » profitability will guarantee operanonal con
binuty and wability also i the future

MOTIVATED PERSONNEL THE KEY TO SUCCESS

the goat of Finnair's human resources management s to support the suscamable profirable
growth strategy of the entire Group  The starning pomnt is a management approach thar encourages

the development of empioyecs petformance expertise and wel-bemng in work Finan’s operating

v
b

princples aie based mainly on recommendations for ethical behaviour 1ssued by the Inteinanonal A

Transport Assocration IATA

Finnair operates in an industry in which expert, morvated staff are
exceprronally important for a company's success The company requires
from its staff loyalty and a commitment to set objectives

Working in air transport professions 1s physically and mentally
demanding now and then Safeguarding, maintainmg and developing
well-being both in the long and short term are the key tasks and chal-
lenges of human resources management

MANAGEMONT OF KEY SKHLS THE OB LT IvE

Finnairimplements an active human resources strategy Work objectives
and skills requirements of both umits and individuals are determined
based on set performance targets

In 2004 the company imtiated an extensive payroll and work time
management reform project, winch aims to standardrse rarget sequng
and performance measurement wathin the Group's different unizs The
work of supervisors has been improved by developing management
working practices and taols

Finnair has for a long nme now utilised Asian service personnel an
Asian roures, where this 1s required by cultural and language differences

In this way international customers are offered high-leve| services in

FINMAIR 5 VALUES

;
ﬁ . F.Cr;T}J\
H * Custormer orentation

*  Contnueus development
‘ *  Funcnonmg work
i

community

thewr own languages which has been of absolute importance in imple
menung the Asizn strategy Paying due attenuon w cultural differences
Is not only a matter of customer service but also a safery issue

Safeguarding rhe safety of personnel and customers 1s fundamental
to Finnar’s operauons Safety s part of Finnar s culture and the eve
ryday Ife of each emplovee Every Finnair employec has 2 duty in their
work to adhere to an uncompromising safety philasephy

COMMON GAML RULTS

Finnair requires its employees in their work to cenform to fugh moral
and ethical standards Finnair strives for absolute equality and a work
ing environment free of harassment No-one s discriminated against
for reasons of gender, religious or polincal conviction age race skin
colour or arigin

Dunng autumn 2008, the company has made a close analysis of its
values and strategy the themes that play a contral role n drrecuing Fin
Nair s operalons The arhne industry has been subjected to enermous
change in recentyears Thatis why it has been appropriate to consider
how the company’s present corporate culture and values suppuort the
strategy of sustainable profitable growth under altered conditions
A commen understanding about obpctives and working pracuces will
become a key success factor in an intensely compentive chimate

Representanves of the employer and employees sat on a working
group set up to reformulate values lnteracuon was also encouraged
through internal communications, where values were the subject of
lively debate In autumn 2005, updated valves were presented and
introduced in all of the Finnair Group s business units

@9
@5

4181308 pue sspauig




Al131205 pUP tiFuLI4

WE BORROW THE WORLD FROM QUR CHILDREN

The raw matenials of any holiday tip are environment and culture Tourism beipes to travel destinations
mcome empluys vase numbers of people, helps preserve histornical attractions, cultural sites and local
fauna and promotes interaction benween different cultures Unconsidered and uncontrolled tourism,
however can speil a holiday destination s environment, exhaust natural resoutces, disturb the netural

wildlife and offend the local population

Since 1999 Aunnkomatkat-Suntours has been implementing a pro
gramme whose goal 15 10 make leisure travel sustainable For a rour
operator this 1s sensible from a business perspective because no one
wants to travel to a spoiled environment or witness 2 mynad of sacal
problems The future of our tourism 15 dependent on the state of the
environment, culture and society at holiday destnations

Aurinkomatkat-Suntours” staff are tramed to take the challenges
of sustainable tourism into account Cantractual partners in destuna-
uon couatries are also offered training and information Before therr
Journey, all customers receve a destination booklet gving pracical
adwice on how, as tounsts, they can protect the nature and local cul
ture of their hohday desunation

COOPFRAHON AMONG COMPLTHORS

Aunnkomatkat-Suntours 1» actively nvolved in estabhshing the Tour
Operatorininiative for Sustainable Tounsm Development (101) ajoint
project of UNESCO, the UN's environment project UNEP the WTC
{World Tounsm Qrganisation) and tour operators Compeong tour
operators have thus combined ther energies with UN orgamisatians
to safeguard the future of their business

In collaboration with the Glabal Reporting Ininative (GRI) the
Joint project has prepared for the tour operator scctor its own sus
tainable development reporong indicators In addinon, prloc projects
to develop sustainable tourism have beer inmated at Side in Turkey
Punta Cana in the Dominican Republic Agadir in Moroceo and the
Itacare area in Brazil Tools for the sustainable management of tour
operators production chains have also been prepared

The TO! has produced a guidibook on sustamable hotel management
for the accommodation sector in collaboration with the Centre for
Ervironmental Leadership in Business The book has been distrib
uted to 30,000 hotels worldwide 10 addition the TOI has pubhshed
aninstrucuon beoklet on sustainable tounsm for mannc and coastal
area as well as a handbook on the integration of sustanable taurism
INto tour Oﬁm“WﬂOﬁm_ actvines

AURINKNOMATRAT SUNTOURS RNOWS |TS
RESPONSIBINITIES

Aurnkomatkat-Suntours lias sighed a commitment to fight agawist the
sexual abuse of children The company has a clause i all of s haotel
agreements stating that the agreement can be terminated if the hortel
permits child sex eracdle in1ts area

Aurinkematkat-Suntours also employs a 35 paint sustamable tour
15m check-iist when making agreements with hotels The check-listis
used o gather mformation among other things, about ownership
structure 03<__\C3:‘_ﬂ3ﬂwﬁ Programmey :—N].—Wn:,_m:n CﬂS\ LEEr W s(e,
wastewater and energy, procurement policy and community rclation
ships The hsthas been used 1o prepare an environmental clasaificaton
and ‘drop ratings for hotels were published for the first time 10 the
Winter 2005 2006 brochure and on the company s website



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS 2005

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT

Kaisa Vikkula b 1960 D Sc (Econ } Board
Member of Frnair Plc since 2003 2,000
Finnair shares

Veh Sundback b 1946 LLM , Member of
the Nokia Group Execurive Board Senror
Vice President Corporate Relations and
Respansibiity, Nokia Corporation Secretary
of State at the Ministry for Foreign Affairs
19931995 Member of the Executwe Com
mntee of the Board of the Canfederaton
of Finnish Industries Vice Chairman of
tie Board of the Technology Industries of
Fraland Vice Chawman of the Board of
the Internatonal Chamber of Commicree
Finmish section, Chairman of the Board
of the Finland China Trade Associaton,
Chairman of the Board of Huhtamaii Qy
1999-2005 Board Member of Finnarr Ple
since 2004 O Finnair shares

Helena Terho, b 1948 M Sc (Eng )

LMBA Vice Prusident Competence De

velopment Kene Corporation, Board
Member Kermira Grow How singe 2005,
Board Membur of Finnair Plc sin¢e 1997
0 Firnar shares

Chnstoffer Taxell b 1048 LLM Chancel

lor of Abe Akadermt Universtty Chairman
of the Boards of the Confederauon for
Finnish Indusines, Abo Akadems University
Foundanon and Qrganisation Foreningen
Kenstsamfundet Board Momber of Rasie
Group Ple Sampo Ple Stockmann Ple

Nardkalk Corp , Cidron Internatronal Ple,
Finmsh Business and Policy Forum {EVA),
the Research Instiute of Finnish Economy
{ETLA}, Chairman of the Board of Finnair
Plc since 2003 2 000 Finnar shares

MarkkuHyvannen b 1948 Duputy CEO
of Marma Mutual Pension Insurance Com

pany, Deputy Charrman of the Board of
Mutual Insurance Company Kaleva, Board
Mermber of if Skadeforsakrng Holding AB
{publ ) Member of Finnair Supervisory
Board 1992-1957 Chairman of Finnair
Supervisory Board 1997-2003, Board
Member of Finnair Ple since O Finnarr
shares

Karijordan b 1956 8 Sc (Econ) Presi
dent and CEC of Metsahitio Yhtyma Board
Member of Neste il Oyg and Julus Tallberg
-Knnteistor Oy, M mber of Warking Cam
minee EK Mermber of Working Comimic
teq and Vice Chairman of Mursiteolhsuus

ry Member of the Supervisory Boards of
Finmsh Business and Polcy Forum (Eva)
and the Rescarch Institute of the Finnish
Economy (ETLAY, Vice Chairman of Finnair
Ple since 2003 0 Finnair shares

ALTHTORS

Regular rudicor

APA Jyn Herkkinen and
PricewaterhouseCoopers firm
of auditors

Depury Auditors

APA Matt Nykanen and APA Tuomas
Honkamak: PricewaterhouseCoopers
Lrd
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GROUP MANAGEMENT 31.12.2005

Hannes Bjurstrom, b 1950, colonel
ret , SVP Flight Operations served with
Finnair since 1999 900 Finnair shares
(Qoptions

EeroAhola b 1943 M Sc (Econ), SVP,
Corporate Business Development and
Strategy surved with Finnair since 1970
G Fuwair shares 0 optons

Kene Sufa b 1945, B Sc (Econ ) President
and CEQ, servud with Finnair since 1998
10 250 Finnair shares 60,000 options

Heark Arfe & 1948 LL M Deputy CEQ
COOQ EVP, Scheduled Passenger Traffic,
served with Finnawr singe 1979 3 5758
Finnair shares 63 000 cptions

Antero Lahtinen b 1949, SVP, Cargo,
Managing Director Finnair Cargo Qy,
served with Finnair since 1973 0 Finnair
shares © opuons

MaurtAnnala, b 1945 M Sc (Econ) EVP
Leisure Traffic and Travel Services served
with Finnair since 1975 1 350 Finnair shares
45 000 opuons

Jarmo Vilenuus, b 1950, M Se (Eng J, SVP,
Technical Services served with Finnar
since 1973 954 Finnair shares 80 000
options

AnssiKomulainen b 1964 M Sc SvP
Catering, Managing Director, Finiair Ca

twring Oy served with Finnar 1989 1999
nd again since 2001 1 350 Finnir shares

10 000 opuons

Lasse Hemonen b 1968 M Se (Econ), SVP
and CFO servid with Finnair since 2004
1000 Finnair shares 7033 eptions

Tero Palats: b 1947 LL Lic  SVP Admimis-
trawon and Human Resources served with
Finnairsince 1992 1 575 Finnairshares,
20 D00 oprions

Mika Perho, b 1959 BBA SVP Cominercral
Dwision served with Finnae since 1985
1 618 Finnair shares 2 500 opuons

Christer Haglund b 1959 BA VP Com
munications, served with Finnarr <mce 2000
2,350 Finnarr shares 7 000 oprrons

Tero Vauraste b 1967 Lieutenar Semor
Graderet M Sc SVP Ground Handling
Manmging Director Nornhport Oy served
with Finnairsince 2001 1,100 Finnar shares,
0 opuons
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS® REPORT FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR, T JAN - 31 DEC 2005

GENERAL REVIEWY
The posive trend in profitability continued ;i
2005 Strong growth i demand, an increase
in average prices and an improvement in
productraty through operanonal efficiency
and cost-cutting measures strengthened Fin-
nair's profitabibity significantly

Air transportin 2005 was marked by a
growing demand for fight travel and higher
fuel pnces In Europe the compeunon for
market share continued as new companies
entered the market [n the USA most of the
major airhnes were operating under Chaprer
11 of the US Bankruptcy Code Asian arlines
focused on increasing traffic on flights within
the cantinent Traffic between Europe and
Asla grew seven per cent

The strong rise in fuel prices that began
early in the year halted the decline in aver-
age flight and cargo prices In the second
and third quarters, the average price of arr
tickers rase four to five per cent Tighrer
competition towards the end of the year,
on the other hand, dampened the nse in
the average ptice

Finnair’s Asian uaffic grew almost 17 per
cent In Seprember 2005 a new destination
was added with the openmg ot flights to
Guangzhou in China Finnair will continue to

REVENUE TONNE KILOMETERS
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Increase its capacity in traffic berween Asia
and Europe |nDecember 2005 the company
announced that 12 new long-haul aircraft
would be acquired by the year 2014

The passenger numbers of the Finnarr-
owned budget airling FlyNerdic grew in line
with expectations The company carred nearly
1 2 mdlion passengers in 2005 The price
trend in the Swedish market, however, has
been weaker than expected and fuel costs
have been increasing, so FlyNordic’s result
remained in the red

Sales of leisure flights developed favour
ably during 2005, even if sales in the final
manths of the year were a little lower chan
the previous year A surcharge resubtng from
the rise in fuel prices has affected demand
for leisure travel to scrme extent

FINANCIAL RESLALT,

| JANUARY - 30 DECLMBER 2005
Turnover rose 11 2 percent and was 1,871 1
mifhon euros The Group’s operating profit,
excluding capnal gains and fair value changes
of dervatives, grew to 70 1 mulhion euros
(25 2 mithon) Adjusted operaung profit
margin was 3 7 percent (1 5%) The result
after financial items clearly improved and
was 87 5 milhion euros (30 6 million)

NUMBER QF PASSENGERS
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In 2005 passenger traffic capacity grew 51
per cent and demand grew 7 2 per cent
Load factor rose from the previous year
by 1 4 percentage points to 72 § per cent
The quanuty of cargo carried grew by 4 5
per cent

tn scheduled passenger and leisure traf-
fic, unit revenues per passenger kilometre
rose by 3 2 per cent Unit revenues for cargo
traffic declined by 5 0 per cent Total unir
revenues for passenger and cargo traffic
rose by 18 per cent

Operating costs in euros rose during the
period by 9 2 per cent Unit costs of fhight
operatons rose by 2 4 per cent. Ehmnating
fuel costs and gains from hedging of future
cash flow, units costs fell by 1.5 per cent

Capital gains on asser sales totalied 7 3
milion euros (5 8 million)

Earmings per shaie for the financial year
rose to 0 73 ewros (0 30) Equiy pershare
arthe end of Decemnberamounted re 7 73
euros, compared with 6 87 euros the year
before

INVES TMENT FINANCING AND RISk
MANAGLMENT

In 2005 capital investment excluding advance
payments totalled 57 5 million euros (114 5

PASSENGER LOAD FACTOR
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million} and included informanon system
investments and technical equipment tn-
vestment during the fourth quarter totalled
18 6 million euvros (14 0 million euros)

Operational net cash flow was 191 8
million eures, compared with 128 5 million
euros a year earlier At the end of December,
the Group’s liguid cash reserves exceeded
interest-bearing debt by 155 3 million euros
Gearing has dropped from -3 1 per cent at
the beginming of the financial year te -25 1
per cent Gearing adjusted for teasing ii-
abilities was 66 8 per cent (102 5%) The
equity ratio rose from the previaus year by
nearly two percentage points to stand at
42 2 per cent Key figures are clearly bet-
ter than the targets set by the Board of
Directors

At the end of December, the Group
had hquid cash reserves of 418 4 mullion
euros, In addition to which there is a total
of 200 millien euros n unused committed
loan facilities

Risk management at Finnairis a part of
the Group’s management, directed primarily
at rishs that threaten the fulfilment of the
GCioup’s business cbjectives In order to
exploir business opportunities Finnan 1s
prepared to take controlled and calculated

TURMNOVER
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risks Meanwhile, no risks are raken in flight
safety matters

FMinnair's nsks are classified into strategic,
operational, financial and accident risks
The Board of Directors and the Chief Execu-
uve Officer are responsible for the Group’s
risk management strategy and principles as
well as for the management of risks that
threaten the fulfilment of strategic objectives
The Executive and Senior Vice Presidents
of business units and Managing Directors
of subsidiary companies are responsible
for nsk management in their areas of re-
sponsibiity

In accordance with a finanaial nsk man
agement policy approved by Finnair s Board
of Directors, the company has hedged 60 per
cent of scheduled traffic jer fuel putchases
for the first half of 2006 and 40 per cent for
the rest of the current year, and thereafter for
the following 12 monihs with a decreasing
level of hedging With the hedging imple
mented in 2005, the adjusted jet fuel price
was around 500 dollars per tonne

The weakening of the US dollar against
the euro has a positive impact on Finnair's
operational result and snengthening has
a negative impact, because the company
has more dollar finked costs than revenues
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* Excluding caprtel gains and fair velue
changes of dermvaties

SHARFS AND SHARE C APYTAL
The company s market capitalisation grew
121 per cent, namely by 568 6 milion euros
from the previcus year ta 1,039 ¢ million
euros on 31 December 2005 At the begin-
ming of the financial year the market value
was 471 3 milhon eures During 2005 the
highest price for the Finnair Plc share on
the Helsinki Stock Exchange was 12 15 eu-
ros (6 57), while the lowest pricewas 5 56
euros (4 46) and the average price 8 56
euros (5 40) During the financial year, some
32 2 mithon {21 3 milion) of the company s
shares were traded on the Helsinki Stock
Exchange Arthe end of the financial year,
the Finnish State owned 57 O per cent {58 4)
of the company’s shares, while 29 1 pe:
cent (18 4) were held by foreign investors
orin the name of 2 nomnee

At the beginrung of the financial period
the company held 422,800 of its own shares,
which it purchased in 2004 Cn 23 March
2005 the Annual General Meering authorised
the Board of Directars for a period of one
year to purchase the company’s own shares
up to a maxmum of 3,500,000 shares and
dispose of the company’s own shares up
te a maximum of 3,922,800 shares The
authorisanon applies to shares amounung

EBITDAR®
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to less than five per cent of the company s
share capital Under the authorisation, in
April 2005 the company wansferred a total
of 37,800 shares to key personnel as part of
a share bonus scheme for key personnel The
Board of Directors decided on 15 August
2005 to imitrate the purchase of a maximum
of 500,000 of its own shares The purchase
of the shares began on 1 September 2005,
and by 31 December 2005 a total of 150,000
shares had been purchased On 31 December
2005 the company held a rotal of 535,000
ownshares, e 0 6 percentofall shares
Two series of Finnair Plc opnion rights are
traded on the Main List of the Helsinki Stock
Exchange Al the beginming of the financial
penod 1,997,500 Series A 2000 opricns were
in circutation and 2,000,000 Series B 2000
options During 2005 1,601,106 Series A op-
tions were exercised to subscnbe for 1,601,106
new shares and 1,183,850 Series B options
were exercised to subscribe for 1,183,850
new shares, 1 e arotal of 2 784,956 new
shares Of rthe new shares subscribed for
by virtue of the above-mentioned options,
2,044,900 shares had been entered in the
Trade Register by 31 December 2005 Finnair
Plc’s registered share capital on 31 December
2005 was 73,783,496 05(72,045,331 05)

OPERAFING PROFIT, EBIT

w= % of turnover
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euros and rthe toral number of shares was
86,804,113 (84,759,213} Of the shares
subscribed for during 2005 by virtue of the
above mentioned options, 740,056 shares
were unregistered on 31 December 2005
and were entered (n a share issue

If all the option rights in arculation on 31
December 2005 were exchanged for Finnair
Plc shares, the Finnish Government’s hoid
ing would be 55 8 per cent On the basis of
share cptions that remain unexercised, the
company’s share capital can rise by a maxi-
mum of 1,030,662 40 euros, corresponding
10 1,212,544 shares, which 1s 1 39 per cent
of the company’s shares

PELRSONNEL

During 2005, the average number of staff
employed by the Finnair Group amounted
to 9,447, which was 0 8 per cent fewer than
ayear before Scheduled Passenger Traffic
had 3,884 employees and Leisure Traffic 336
employees The total number of personnel
in technical, caterning and ground handling
services was 3,816 and in rravel services 1,178

Atotal of 233 people were emploved 1n other
operations Around 400 staff are employed
in foreign units and they are engaged mainly

in commercial duties

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

- % of turnover

0,6

Of Finnair Group personnel, half are women
and halfare men The proportion of women n
management positions, for example in depart
meng manager roles, 1s growing Finnair Pic's
seven-strong Board of Directors has had nwvo
women members since 2003 The firstin Fianair s
history woman has been appointed to the
Management Group as of 1 March 2006

Full-time staff account for 92 per cent of
employees Around half of part ume staff are
employees on partial child-care feave Some
93 per cent of staff are employed on perma-
nent basis Seasonal staff are included among
those on fixed-term contracts The average
age of employees is 43 years, with most be
ing from 30 to 50 years of age More than
20 per cent are over 50 years old and one in
ten are under 30

Employees’ average length of service is
14 years One third of Finnair's personnel
have been in the service of Greup for more
than 20 years Nearly half of these have been
employed for more than 30 years

Staff receive an average of five days of
training per year More than 300,000 eurcs
was Speﬂ[ on acuvines al{'ned at mau‘lrammg
the working capacity of employees as well
as on recreational and hobby actvities Job
satsfacrion 1s measured regularly on a unit

PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS AND TAXES
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level An index measuring the well being in
work of Group employees moved in a posi-
tve direction during 2005 This has been the
unbroken trend since autumn 2002

The Group has formulated an updated
equality plan for 2005-2006 The purpose of
the plan 1s to promote the implementation
of equality n the Finnair Group

The company has collecuve employment
agreements valid at least unul 30 September
2007 with six labour urons and with pilots
unul May 2008

On 1 July 2005, the Finnair Pension Fund
transferred the managemenrt of the Finnair
Group s employer pension labilities under the
Employees’ Pension Act (TEL) to llmarinen
Mutual Pension Insurance Company, In ac-
cordance with an agreement signed on 22
June 2004 The TEL pension liabihines and
obhgauons transferred to llmannen were cov-
ered by assets rotalling 491 & million euros
The Finnair Pension Fund sull contnues to
provide voluntary supplementary pension
nsurdnce

Achange in the rules of the Finnair Pension
Fund and changes in pension legislation were
taken into account by Finnair in 2004 1n 2004
and 2005 Finnair s pension expenses have been
exceprionally low compared with the long-term

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (GROSS)

D Other captal expediture
Bunldings
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annual level The positve impact on pension
expenses for 2004 was felt particularly in the
final quarter of the year In 2006 pension
expenses will reach normal levels

For 2005 2 7 6 million euro provision has
been recogrused for profit bonus based on the
Group's financral performance and payable

to Finnair’s Personnel Fund

MANAGEMENT
The Annual General Meeting held on 23 March
2005 re-elecred the following members to
the Finnair Board of Directors as Chaiman,
Minister Christoffer Taxell and as members
Director General Samuli Haapasalo, Deputy
CEO Markku Hyvarinen, President and CEOQ
Kari Jordan, Senior Vice President Vel Sund-
back, Vice President Helena Terho and D 5S¢
{Ecen) Kaisa Vikkula

Samul Haapasalo submitted his resigna-
on from membership of Finnan Plc’s Board
of Directors on 22 june 2005 on being ap-
pointed Director General of Finavia

The Annual General Meetng appointed
as regular auditors APA Jyn Heikkinen and
PricewaterhouseCeopers firm of auditors
and as deputy auditors APA Marm Nykanen
and APA Tuomas Honkamaki

Jukka Hienonen, who has been appointed

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
AND LIQUID FUNDS

O tterest bearmg habihies
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to succeed President and CEQ Keno Suila,
who renired on 31 December 2005, joined
Finnarron 1 November 2005 MrHienanen
ook over as Finnair Ple s Presidentand CEQ
on 1 January 2006 Before joining Finnarr,
Hiencnen was Executive Vice President of
Stockmann Oy Abp with respensibility for
the department stores group

EVP Scheduled Passenger Traffic, LL M
Henrik Arle was appointed Deputy CEO start-
ing 1 January 2606 New arrangements have
also been made at Finnair regarding the posi-
tion of Accountable Manager The Account-
able Manager 1s responsible for the Airline
Operator’s Ceruficate and other operating
licences granted by the authorities Starting
1 january 2006, Finnair Plc’s Accountable
Manager 1s Depury CEQ Arle

in 2006 changes took place in Finnair’s
Management Group when SVP Corpotate
Business Development and Strategy Eero
Ahola reured on 31 December 2605 SVP
Technical Services Jarmo Vilenius moved to
become Managing Director of Finnair Facili-
ties Management as of 15 January 2006 The
new SVP Techrucal Services is Kimmao Soini,
who transferred to the post from his role as
Scheduled Passenger Traffic’s VP Technical
Operations

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
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SVP Leisure and Travel Services Maur)
Annala will reare on 1 March 2006 Kaisa
Wikkula D Sc {Econ) has been appointed
to replace him She has been a member of
Finnair’'s Board of Directors since 2003
Vikkula left her Board position on 16 Feb-
ruary 2006

Finnair SVP Administranion and Human
Resources Tero Falatsi has resigned from
Fimnair As of 15 February 2006, Palatsr’s
duues have been taken over temporarly by
VP HR-Services An Kuutchin

PELRFORMANCE OF BUSINFSS AREAS

The pnimary segment reporting of the Finnair
Group's financial statements 1< based on bust-
ness areas The reporung business areas are
Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Leisure Traffic,

Aviation Services and Travel Services

SCHEDULED PASSENGLR FRAFHC

This business area Is responsible for sales
of scheduled passenger traffic and cargo,
service concepts, flight operations and
actvity connected with the procurement
and financing of arrcraft The Scheduled
Passenger Traffic business area leases ro
Letsure Traffic the crews and arrcraft it re

EQUITY RATIO
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quires for its operatons The dmvision con

sists of the following units and companes

Finnair Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Aero
Arrlines, FlyNordic, Finnair Cargo Oy and
Finnair Aircraft Finance Qy The Scheduled
Passenger Traffic business area s Markening
Division became the Commercial Diwision
on 1 Augusr 2005

In 2005 the business area s turnover rose
by 12 1 per cent 1o 1,407 9 rilhon euros
Adjusted eperaning profit was 34 3 million
euros ( 5 5 miflion)

Demand for Finnair s scheduled traffic
grew by 10 per cent last year while capacity
grew by 5 8 per cent, which resulted in the
passenger lcad factor rising 2 6 percentage
points to 67 7 per cent

Unitrevenues for scheduled passenger
traffic improved 0 7 per centin 2005 Aver-
age prices rose in all types of traffic

Qwing to the night compenitive situa-
uon, unit revenues for cargo traffic fell by
5 0 per cent The number of cargo kilos
carried grew by & 5 per cent The number
of cargo kilos carried in Asian traffic grew
by 12 6 per cent
Finnair s market share in traffic between Asia

and Europe has grown further as a result of

GEARING
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increased capaaity and new destinaucns In
international traffic, Finnair has maintained
1ts market share relative to)its main com
petitors

In 2005, the arrval punctuality of sched-
uled traffic flights was 88 percent (90%) As
in previous years, Finnairis Europe’s top
anhne forarrval puncruahity

LEISURE TRARNIC
This business area consists of Finnair Leisure
Flights as well as the Aurinkomatkat-Suntours
package tour company, which is the biggest
in s field in Finland with a marker share
of more than 35 per cent Finnair Letsure
Flights also enjoys a strong market leadership
in leisure travel flights, even though more
compeution has entered the market

The business area’s turnover grew last
year by 9 2 per cent to 387 3 million euros
Summer season demand was bette) than the
previous year while late in the year demand
was slightly below last year’s level The busi-
ness area's adjusted operanng profic was
20 3 million euros (24 8 million)

Finnar Leisure Flights evacuated 2,600
tounsts from the devastation caused by the
2004 Boxing Day tsunamiin Southeast Asia

ADJUSTED GEARING
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The disaster interrupred flight series for a
couple of weeks at the start of 2005

The lease agreements of four Boeing
757 asrcraft used in leisure rraffic were re-
newed ar the beginning of Aprl 2005 The
new agreerments were concluded on more
favourable terms and have contributed ro
reducing the umit costs of leisure flights and to
strengthening compeutiveness in the leisure
flight market Compared with the earlier
agieements, the saving rotals more than
five mullion euros peryear

Feliowing the positive resolution of new
arcraft lease agreemencs and terms of employ-
ment agreements with fight personnel, Finnair
15 plepaning to incorparate s lersure traffic
CPerations INtoO a separate company

To boost capacity utilisation, Finnair Leisure
Flights operated fram the UK with two Boeing
B757 arcraft on behalf of Air Scandic during
the 2005 sumimer season Cooperanon with
Aur Scandic ended in September 2005 after
the company encountered financial difficul-
ues In view of the scope of the operanon,
no substanual costs anse from the ending
of cooperation The remaiming flights were
flown to the end of the agreement period in
cooperation with tour operator Ercel Avia-

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED
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von/Awr Arlanta UK This arrangement will
also continue in 2006

in 2005 demand for lesure traffic grew
by 1 2 per cent, while capacity grew by 3 3
per cent The passenger load factor was
87 3 per cent

AVIATION SERVICES
This business area comprises atrcraft mam
tenance services, ground handhng and the

DEVELOPMENT INDEX OF FLJEL PRICE 2005
tndex
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Group’s catering operations The Aviation
Services business area also includes the
Group’s property holdings, the management
and maintenance of properties relating to
the Group’s operanional activities as well
as office services

Awviation Services” turnover fell by 1 6 per
cent 1o 400 9 million euros owing to a fall
tn the price level of services provided The
business area’s adjusred operaning profir,
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excluding capital gains, improved to 25 §
milhon euros (27 4 mulhon)

The increase in oparanng profit s the result
of implemented productvity improvement
measures In a number of Aviauon Services
funcoens, operations are being improved
using the LEAN process concept

At the beginning of 2006, Frnnair Tech-
nical Services inimated a competinveness
project which will review the entire organisa
tion and attempt to make operations more
cost-efficient by improving processes and
operaning models

Finnair Technical Sexrwices has concluded
a number of sigruficant new customer agree-
ments Of the business area’s turnover, sales
outside the Group have risen to around
one third and this year rotalled more than
50 million euros

TRAVEL SERVICLS
This business area consists of the Group s
domestic and foreign travel agency operations
-including Finland Travel Bureau, Estravel
and Area as well as the operauons of the
reservations systems suppler Amadeus
Finland Oy

The business area’s turnover was 91 2
million euros (91 6 million) and adjusted
operatmg profit was 8 1 rthon euros (6 3
mithon} Turnover has remamed flat, al
though business travel picked up rowards
the end of the year, compeution berween
travel agencies has reduced the level of service
fees The business area’s operating profie,
however, improved shghtly from the previ-
ous year due [o cost cutiing

The bankruprcy of the travel agency
Toolon Matkatoimisto m spring 2005 te-
sulted in a credit foss of 2 6 milhion euros
for the Finnair Group At the same nime,
however, the Finnair Group’s Lravel agencies
won new business

During the last three years the Finnair
Group's travel agencies have successfully ad-
opred a new earnings logic as airlines have
abandoned the payment of sales commuissions
The process of adaptation and productivity
improvement is conunuing however Finland

Travel Bureau announced in January 2006
thatit will begin statutory employer-employee
negotianions with around 40 employees

SERVICES AND PRODUCTS
The Finnair route nerwork consists of a
comprehenswe domestc network as well
as an internanional network that includes
more than 50 destinauons, of which ten
are on long-haul routes Finnair’s success
in European scheduled passenger traffic
15 based on the morming-evening concept
favoured by business passengers

The long haul strategy explows Helsmki s
ideal pasition an flight routes between Asia
and Europe Finnair has purposefully increased
the number of 1ts Asian flights since 199
In carly Septermber 2005, a new route was
opened between Helsinki and Guangzhou
in China Finnair will fiy to the new destina
ten three times a week Finnair already flies
more than twice a day to China and daily
ro Bangkok and Japan

Asian traffic will also grow i furure
A new destinauion, Nagoya In Japan, will open
1n June 2006 and Delhiin india in November
In Europe, five new destinations, which will
serve the needs of both local demand and
Asian traffic, wil epen by next summer The
new destnations are Edinburgh, Geneva,
Kiev, Krakow and Florence Flight frequencies
on the St Petersburg and Warsaw routes
will be increased

The type of aircraft used in long-haul
traffic is the wide-bodied Boeing MD-11
The wide-bodied fleer 1s being expanded
to satisfy growing Asian traffic demand in
the next few years The cabins of the wide-
bodied fleet will be refurtnshed by summer
2006 and new lie flat seats will be insralied
in business class

The first four of teny new Embraer 170
aircraft being acquired by Finnair joined
the fleet at the end of the year The new
Embraers have 76 seats and conform in
terms of travel comfort to the standard of
targe passenger jet arcraft

The electronic ticket, or e-ucker, 15 al-
ready in use on all of Finnair’s domesnic

routes, on several European routes and on
long-haul fights Over 60 per cent of all flight
uckets ale now sold as e-tickets

The oneworld alliance will be strengeh-
ened by Japan Arlines, Malev of Hungary
and Royal Jordaman, which have apphed
for membership oneworld s an alhance
of financially sound arrlines

ADOPTION OF IFRS REPORTING
PRACTICE AND CHANGE
OF RECOGNITION PRINCIPLES
On 29 April 2005, Finnair pubhshed both
annual and quarterly comparative data for
the Group’s 2004 income statement, balance
sheet, cash flow staterment and key figures
as well as segment-speaific key figures and
new accounting prnciples according 1o the
IFRS reporting standards

For Finnair the mos<t significant changes
anising frem the introducoon of IFRS com
pared with the Finnish Accounung Standards
(FAS) were an improvement in the result
for 2004 and a reduction i shareholders’
equity

More detailed transition data can be
found in material pubhshed on Finnan’s
website, www finnair com/investor

The adoprion of IFRS accounting prin
aiples will affect the result and shareholders’
equity for 2005 partcularly through changes
in the fairvalue of hinanciat dervatives (IAS
32 and 39) Operational cash flow is hedged
by derivatves, which are recognised in the
accounts in two different ways

On the one hand, income from approved
denvatives within the sphere of hedge account
Ing 1s recognised in the income statement
only when it s realised and the tming of the
impact of dervatives income on the result
conaides with the ending of the hedged nsk
On the other hand, income realised from
dervatives outside hedge accountng as well
as the change in fatr value of the denvauves
portfolio are recogrused in the income state
ment wermn “other expenses  Forward contracis
used for hedging jet fuel purchases and USD
currency nsk represent the most significant
part of the denvatives portfolio




Hedge accounting dampens the effect on
Finnair's result of changes in the market value
of denvatives in 2005 the effect of changes in
the market value of dervatives outside hedge
accounting was to reduce other expenses and
improve the operaning profit by 4 5 milhon
ewros Key figures also present the operating
profit excluding capital gains and fairvalue
changes of derivatives The operating profit
adjusted in this way (70 1 million euros) de-
scribes the operational result

The recognition practice for the passenger
taxes of Finnair’s subsidiaries FlyNordic and
Aero was changed in the third quarter of the
year and thereafter so that the passenger fees
collectad by the arlines and ransferred to
the airport holder no longer appearin the
arhnes’ income statements The change has
reduced traffic charges in the larter part of
the year and correspondingly other revenue
and turnover The figures for the comparison
year have been adjusted to correspond to
the new recognition practice

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The stable and sound long-rerm develop-
ment of Finnair will continue, even though
this year competition in European traffic
will ughten and price levels will come under
presstie The price of fuel 15 expected to
remain at the present high leve!

Higher fuel costs will increase pressure
to raise nicket prices also in 2006 but the
ught compeunve siwatian will ultmately
determine whether piice rises are possible
Atthe current price level of jet fuel, fuel costs
are expected to be around 20 per cent of
turnover m 2006 1n 2005 fuel costs were
equivalent to 15 6 per cent of turnover The
company has hedged 60 per cent of sched-
uled tiaffic jet fuel purchases for the early
part of the year and 40 per cent for the rest
of the year, and thereafter for the following
12 months with decreasing level of hedging
In fewsure traffic, fuel surcharges are applied
accordmg to an agreement bertween tour
operators and Finnair

Growth in demand and the smprovement
of load facrors is expected to conunue during

2006 Capacity increases wiil be directed
to Asia traffic The arrival of the Embraer
170 arcraft to Finnair’s fleet, which began
in late 2005, will bring flexibility to capac-
ity management and replace the Boeing
MD-80 aircraftin the parent company’s
services by sumimer 2006 The introducuon
of the Embraer arcraft, which have fewer
than 100 seats, means that seat capacity in
Europe and Finland may fall shghtly, thus
improving the load factor in this traffic seg-
ment The new technology will also improve
eco-efficiency

A seventh long haul traffic Boemg MD-11
aireraft began operating in January 2006
In the wanter season, the capacity brought
by the new aircraft will be used to cover
for withdrawals of arcraft for maintenance
related to the refurbishment of the wide-
bodied fleet s cabms The increased capacity
will be in operational use in spring 2006
Finnair aims to introduce an eighth long
haul ancraft in summer 2006

In December 2005 Finnair decided to
commut to groweh in Auan traffic by acquur
ing 12 new Airbus A340/A350 wide-bodied
awrcraft by 2314 One or two new desunauons
will be opened in Finnair’s Asia network
each year and flight frequency to current
destunations will be increased

Work te improve compeaitiveness will
conunue in all business areas Finnair s
implementing an operational efficiency pro
gramme in which processes are improved
1¢ enhance their cost-effictency and pro
ducowvity Patocular attention will be pad
to the competitiveness of umits thet provide
support services to flight operatrons The
introduction of Embraer for Boeing MD-
80 aircraft currently under way will result
in a short term weakening of productivity
in flight operations due ro crew tansinon
training

In feisure traffic, the rise in fuel prices
and operating environment risks have led
customers to delay the decisions to travel
and which also complicates forecastng the
future development of the leisure travel

business

Compenuon will intensify to some extent
in the Northern European market and wall
exert pressure on the development of aver

age prices Asian traffic s expected to grow
by more than ten per cent and the level of
average prices to remain good

The ratio of fuel costs to wrnover has risen
from 13 per cent to 19 per cent, so profit

ability in the first quarter will fall short of
lastyear's level The result for the full year
15 expected to be clearly in profic

THANKS TQ PRESIDINT AND

CLO «EIQ S0l A

The Finnair Plc Board of Directors wishes
to extend the warmest thanks 1o President
and CEO Keyjo Sutla who retired at the end
of 2005 for hus significant wark for ensuring
the success of the company in historically
difficulc time« Under his leadership Finnair
has claimed its position 10 the Eurcpean
arline elite One of the most significant ac
comphshments has been the determined
reahsation of the Asian stiategy based on
sustainable, profitable growth  Bestin
northern skies, a Eurcpean excellence” is
President and CEQ Sumila’s umeless wsion
for Finnair

BOARD OF DIRLCCTORS PROPUSAL
ON THE DIVIDEND

The Group s distributable equity amounts
to 352 6 milhon euros, while the distribut-
able equity of the patent campany comes
to 311 3 million euros The Board of Di-
rectors proposes 1o the Annual General
Meerting that a dividend of 0 25 euros per
share (0 10) be distnibuted, a total of 21 7
million eures euras, 2nd that the remainder
of the distnburable equity be carried over as
retained earmngs The proposed ddend 1s
equivalent to over one third of the earnings
per share and 1s thus in line with Finnaie’s
dmwidend policy

FINNAIR PLC
Board of Directors

1C)

]Jod?}j HAEL L]




IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 JAN-31 DEC 2005
CONTENTS

Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidared Balance Sheer

Consolidared Cash Flow Starement
Shareholders’ Equity

Notes to the Finanoal Statements

Board of Directors’ Proposal en the Dividend
Auditors’ Report

1

12
13
15
16
59
59




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1 jan 2005- 1 Jan 2004-

EUR rmill 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004 Note
Turnover Ll _H1_,§Z:I__‘I______ o 1,682___ o o 3
_ Work used for own purposes and capiraleed - _ W13 14 - T
_ Otheroperatng income ... ;s A0 - 6
_ Other operating expenses e _ .. Vw5732 7
" Deprection and ymparment __ __ _ _ 807 e . 8
_ Operaongprofit L . B 30 Ll
_ Rwmancialimcome .. 201 .25 - S
__Financial expenses el .. S 235 .o
" Share of result n associates 01 _ _ 06 15
_Profitbeforetaxes R -7 S 306 o

Income taxes . L L _____';2557A___ L __fl§,, L 11__
__Profitfor financial year T T TTTTTTede T Tess
" Earmings per share to shareholders of the parentcompany 614 __256 o
_ Minoriyy interest . % . ___082 .
-Ea:nlngs p;rs-l-'na;e—calcala;eéfrom proﬁ;at_tr—l—btvltabaa” T T - - -7 i )
_ toshareholders of the parentcompany  _____  _ __  __ _  _ __.. _
_EammgspershareEOR _ _ _ _____ ________07m ___ __ 0% _..n
Earmings pershare EUR (dlured) 071 030 o2

The notes form an essential part of the financral statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EUR rrull 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004 Note
ASSETS o . N . o o _
Nomeurremtasses . o
_ Imangable assets: - _7 _ ) o . 446 - _ 368 _ 3
" Tangbleasses o T T Basa 8738 14
_Iﬂvestments Ig} aSSc;c—l_a_ms i L V_ o _— _ﬁw B __———?:—l‘__ o _ i2- L 13
Francalasses .. TTTwroo . w73 _ 6
—@@rgitjxge@agle; o o L 7_ _ Tli’iw‘j_i o 57 o 17
o - T s 945 8 o
B &O_RECEITTI recevables ) _ N B - -1 L o o
_inventeries N o o . o . ;5-__1__ . 487 o 18
Trade recewables and o(he_r rec-ewables . o o M;E‘ﬁ_» B s 0 B _ 19
" Investments . ez ms2 20
Cash and bank equu_/alents N T 267 296 o 21
o - T T i N F o
CReeweowi . T0 T TThesssl o _asos
" SHAREMOLDERS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES T T ) i
Equity. anrlbutable to shareholders of parent cc company - _: T o ) ,,
Sharehoﬁlderiieguny B B “:-:_';.;)_8_ B 7N )
" Otherequiy T Y 5177 B
S o T T emza . 5898 ) i
@ntz interest - T B h ) T ::—E B 1 E N
_Equiytoral L L6740 o910 22
__l_._o_ﬂg Egm |lab!|ltles _ 7_ _ | B ; T _:7:_ L _ 7_ _
pgfgrl_g tax i ||ab|||ty ) -::- 1_2_§_8— 16 4 o 7
Financial habihuies o T 2149 i 2299 26
Pgrjs_lgn_oblsgano_ns ) o t——_j}wj'j B 99 24
o | ) 3534 356 2 )
_Short-term ||ab|htles o B T -:':____ ) _ .
Currgt income tax Inabnlwnes o T a0 1 . 02 B _
" Financiab habihities T TTsa7 493 | 26
| T;a—d; payables and other Ilabthes o 7 o fﬂ__?"i—'s_:%; 503 6 27
. L 810 5531 _
_ Lablites,total __ _ o ) .. 9644 9653 o i
. Shareholders equn:yand labilges, tota-l o i ’ _-:njis._f_i_ff;A o 1,596§ o

The notes form an essential part of the financial statements




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1 Jan 2005- 1 Jan 2004-
EUR mull 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004
Cash flow from operating activities ) o o e o

] Profir fothe ﬂpanﬂal year o A T 620 238
Operauens for \;h|zl:a;yment 15 nat mcluded ’ T T g7 806
Interest and other financial expenses - ) B T __‘—:-'I_4m6m R ) 236

 Other rancalmeome L LT
Ddend income ~ o B . b3 _ 03

T Taxes I ) T s a8

’ aan‘é_?rn v-;orkmg capnal N o T o e o _7 :_
_ Change in trade and other recewables o _...ces _ 619

Change 1N INVen{ories _ ~ _ 1;1_ L 19
_ Change in accounts payables and¢ other ||abllmes A _ 35 782
Interest pad &rade payables: o A o _ _ 95 R:
_&ud ﬂnancml expenses _ B o _ ~ o . ______'I_S__ . __ _ -3
Recewed interest ) o 70 .52
Taxes paid o ~ ) | o - 20 __Go

r_;l]:r cash ﬂow from operatmgiactlwnes - ~ ,,— - A o 1_?_1_?_ N 1295 )

_Eaus_héé}rom mvestmg actwutles ___ ) ’ _: ___‘—_ ) i
Sell of subsidiarys, nergfcg%h sold T ) w: ~ —3_-5—: B 00
Jnveﬁsmﬂtg in intangble assets B - . . _:.j_i—gl_ . BER
Investments in tangible assets _ N i 7 o o 577 239
Investmentis in other non-current mvestments T - . 6o 04
Net chzmge offlrlanrlal nterest l|ear4ng assets at faie value through proﬁ( orfoss . -302 121
S_EI_ES_O_“ESQCE[EC‘ companies * o 00 o7
Sales of rangible fixed assers i - i ___: 28 h z2
Rec_eTve_d _dmdends ) B ; - :________:_U_E_ _ 19_3_-
Change 1n non current recclvabie B o 26 _71
Net cash flow frog'\ INVesTINg activities o 1000 910
C—ash flow from ﬁnanC|;|g-a-ctWIt|es 7 o : _ -

_ Loan withdrawals . o T .94
Loan repayments -19 0 -279
E_u_rﬂase of own shares - ) : . a5 _ __7 - 7 gj3
Sales own shares_ ) ’ o B 02 0o
Opuon rlghl Lo own shares N 126 oo
Share-based paymenrt expense . _ _ 23 oo
Dlwdends pard o - } ~ 85 -85
NEt cash flow from ﬁna-m:lng activities ’ | } -2_2__ _ _-293
Chan_ge_m cash ﬂows“_- ) L - A ) :v —‘3;9‘“ B ) .é 2
Change n ||qu|dfunds - o . ’ ___ ‘_____ﬁ" ) o T
__Liquid funds, at the begmnlng o o o 2505 _ 2413
Changein ca:h flows L A o . 88 9 %2
_biquid fun funds, inthe end ¥ 3394 2505

The cash flow statement analyses changes in the Group’s cash and cash equivaleats dunng the financial year The cash flow statement
has been dmded according mto the IAS 7 standard in operating, mvesung and financing cash flows
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CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Notes to conschdated cash flow statement

"t Operacions for which a payment is not included

EUR mill 2004
. Peprecaven o _osr
Employee benefts I 2
_ Otheradustmenss I -
80 6

2 Tarvalue changes of shares recognised at financial assets at fairvalue through profiL or loss are eliminated from cash flow
from operatng actvities Shares recognised at financial assets at fair value through proficor loss are iremised in notes 20 and 29

* The Group has disposed of its real-estate companies in 2005 and an associated company, Gourmet Nova, in March 2004
Informanion about the assets, haphites, and cash and cash equivalents of the companies are presented in the notes to the
income statement, it item 4

) Ner change of financial interest bearing assets at fair value through profit orfoss maruring afrer more than 3 months

%) Cash and cash equivalents include cash and other iquid assets, which are presented in the balance sheet in separate accounts
A reconciliation of the cash flow statement’s cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheer figures s presented below

Balance sheet item o

_Brencalessessatfarvalve . _ __ . ___ _ _ 37 2882
Cash and bank equwvalents o 27 0 __ __ 286
_ Shoruterm cash and cash equvalents i balance sheer L _mss 2978
Shares held for rading purposes ) 78 63
‘NTityrlng after more than 3 r;lonrhisi B - T - __Z,L]: ﬁ‘”, 0
Tewal oL xea 2505

Cash and cash equivalents encompass cash and bark deposis as well as other highly kquid financial assets whose term to maturity
is a maximum of three months Such items are € g investment and commercial paper Balance sheetitems are itemised in notes 20
and 21

Cash and cash equivalents have been changed to correspond with the above definition at the beginning and end of 2004




SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company _

Share T T Own
Share New  premum Borus hedging shares  Retaned Capiral Minority
EUR il capnal IS5UE accourn issue reserve fund earmings loan Total nterests Total
Shareholders equity
_1)an 2004 721 .56 1477 00 0O 3483 57 5794 12 5806
_N_ewimsiueiofsih;;; . oo o T - 01 L 01
_jfaﬁ[arlonjife;er;; L o ) _ ” __ - ;7 ﬁ: ___ oo 00
| Changesoftabass  _ _ _ _ _ ___ o ___ __ 1 s
— Diwidend payment e e e e e 8585 02 87
_Capialloan repayment e AN T T
Purchase of own SFE_I’Eé o i_ o . 2% 23 00 _bo
~ Profit for the period ) ) 256 256 02 258
Shareholders e_qalty h | o o - T T
| 31Dec2004 . 721 _ 57 1477 00 23 3620 00 5898 12 S§910
Char‘:geTr;Lge 7 B T T
_ Companies Act ol ayoa2s a2y
Adopuion of IAS 32 i
__and 39 standards ) L 99 25 124 -12 4
Adjusted own equity
_1Jan2005 7217 57 1477 _ 99 00 3595 00 5751 12 5763
Equity attnibutable to shareholders of parent company o . e e
Share Qun
Share New  pemum Banus Hedging shares  Retaned Capiral Minonty
EUR rrall capital 1sue account BT reserve tund  earmings loan Total  wtarses Total
Shareholders’ equity
1Jan 2005 721 57 1477 99 _ 3595 _ 5751 12 5763
New issue of shares ' 6o 00
. lriqs\atlgnjilfFerenn:f 04a __bo __bo
Dmdend pagment I 85 85 02 _ 87
Change in farr value )
of hedging instruments B 308 ) 308 308
_ Purchase of own shares B ) - B -” B 15 __-15 1S
Sales of own shares. S .. b2 82 02
_ Opuon right to own shares 7 . 103 ] o L. teoo o M20
Option right Lo own shares,
newissue 0e_ - - .- SR L T
Share based
_ payment expense - - oo 23 . R . 23 _ 23
_ Profitfo rvtwh‘{iperlod o i o o 614 . __ 614 06 620
Shareholders equity
31 Dec 2005 738 06 183 1477 209 4111 672.4 16 674 0
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BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

The Finnair Group engages i worldwide ar transport operauons
and supporung services The Group’s operations are diwvided into
the Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Leisure Traffic, Aviation Services
and Travel Services business areas

The Group's pareat company 1s Finnair Ble, which 1s domiciled in
Helsinkr at the registered address Tierotie 17 A The parent company
15 listed on the Helsinki Exchanges In addition, its shares zre also
traded in the SEAQ) system of the London Stock Exchange
The Beard of Directors of Finnair Plc has approved these financral
statements for publication at its meetng on 15 February 2006 Under
Finland’s Companies Aci, sharehalders have the option to accepr or
reject the financial staternents in a meeting of shareholders, which will
be held after the publication of the financial statements The meeting
has also the option of changing the financial statements

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The accounung prinaiples of the canselidated financial statements
are presented below The accounting principles have been followed
in the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements
unless otherwise stated

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Finnasr Plc s consohdarted financal srarerments for 2005 have been
prepared for the first ime according 1o the International Financia!
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and i therr preparation the 1AS and IFRS
standards as well as the $1C and IFRIC interpretations in effect on
31 December 2005 have been followed By Internanonal Financial
Reporting Standards 15 meant the standards accepted forapphcation
in the EU, and interpretations ssued about them, in accordance
with the pracedure faid down in Finrish law and prowisions 1ssued
by virtue thereof in the EU Regulauon (EC) No 1606/2002 The
notes Lo the consolidated financial statements also comply with
Finmish accounung and corperate law

During 2005 Fmnair Group has adopted the IFRS reporung
practice and has applied in connection with this the IFRS 1 stand-
ard (First-Time Adoption of IFRS Financial Reporung Standards)
The transiion date s 1 January 2004, excepr for standards I1AS 32
{Financial Instruments isclosure and Presentation) and 1AS 39
(Financial Inszruments Recogniuion and Valuatton) in terms of
these, after the change made 1n March 2004 to 1AS 39 and applied
by Finnair Grotp i 1ts 2005 financial statements, comparative data
according to this standard do not need 1o be prepared for 2004
In presenning financial instruments that fall wathin the area of ap-
phcation of IAS 32 and 39, Finrssh reporting pracuice has therefore
been apphed in the 2004 comparanve data Differences resuluing
from the adopuon of IFRS standards have been presenred in rec-
oncihiation calculauans, which are included in item 36 of the notes
o the financial statements Comparanive data for 2004 have been
changed, with the excepuion of financial instruments, to comply
with IFRS standards

The 2005 consolidated financial statements have been prepared
based on original acquisition cesis, except tor financial assets rec-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ogrsable through profit and los< at farvalue, financial assers which
are available-for-sale, and derivatves contracts, which have been
valued at fair value Combinations of Group operauons have taken
place before 2004 and goodwill in respect of these correspends 1o
the carrying amount of the previous finanaial statement, which has
been used as the assumed acquisition cost under IFRS Financial
statement data s presented in mithons of euros

The preparation of financial starements in accordance with [FRS
standards requires Group management to make certain estimates
and 1o exeraise discrenon m applying the actountng principles
Informauon about the discretion exercised by management in ap-
plying the acceunting principles foliowed by the Group and that
which has mostimpact on the figures presented n the financial
statements has been presented in the item “ACCOUNTING PRIN-
CIPLES THAT REQUIRE MANACGEMENT DISCRETION AND MAIN
UNCERTAINTY FACTORS RELATING TO ESTIMATES”

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION SUBSIDIARIES
Finnair PIc’s consolidated financial statements include the parent
company Finnair Plc and all its subsidiaries As subsidiares are
deemed to be thase companies in which the parent company di-
rectly or indirectly owns more than 50% of the votes orin which it
otherwise exercrses the night to determine the company’s financial
and business policies in arder 1o benefir from its acuvimes

The beok value of shares in undertakings included in consoli-
dation has been eliminated using cthe acquisiion cost method
Subsidiaries that have been acquired are consolidated from the
date on which the Group has acquired control, and subsidiaries
that have been disposed of are no longer consolidated from the
dare that control ceases All of the Group’s internal transactions,
recevables, habilines and unrealised gains as well as internal distei-
bunion of profit are eliminated in the consolidated financial state-
ments Unrealised losses are not eliminated in the case where the
loss results from animparrment Subsidianies’ financsal statements
have beer: converted to correspond with the accounting principles
m use in the Group

ASSQCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
Assocated undertzkings are undertakings in which the Group gen-
erally has 20-50% of the votes or in which the Group has significant
influence bur mwihich it does not exercise controf

Hetdings in associated undertakings have been inciuded
the consohdated financial statements by the equity methad If the
Group’s share of the loss of an associated undertaking exceeds the
book value of the iInvestment, the investment 1s entered in the bal-
ance sheet at zere value unless the Greup has incurred obligations
on behalf of the associated undertaking Unrealised gains between
the Group and assocrated underiakings have been elirinated ro the
exrent of the Group s holding The Group’s share of an associated
undertaking includes goodwill arising from its acquisiion  Asso-
ciated undertakings’ financial statements have been converted 1o
correspond with the accounting principles in use in the Group

MINQRITY INTEREST
Mimenty interest 15 presented in the balance sheer separarely
from habilities and the parent company s shareholders’ equity



as its own item as part of shareholders’ equity In the income
statement 15 presented the distribunion of profit for the financial
year to the parent company's shareholders and mimonity interest
Mincrnity interest of accrued losses are recognised in the consoli-
dared financial starernents up to a maximum of the amount of
the investment

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY ITEMS
ltems included i each subsidiary s financial statements are valued in
the foreign currency that 1s the main currency of operating environ-
ment of each subsidiary (* operational currency”) The consolidated
financial statements have been presented in euros, which is the
parent campany’s operatonal and presentation currency

Monetary 1tems denominated in foreign currency, except for
advances pard and receved, have been translated into the operating
currency using the mid-market exchange rates on the closing date
Advance payments made and recewed are entered at the exchange
rate of the operating currency on the date of payment Non-men-
etary items have been translated into the operating currency us-
ing the exchange rate on the date of the transaction Translanon
differences on operations are included in the income statement’s
operanng profit, and translation differences on foreign currency
ioans are inciuded in financial items

The income statements and balance sheets of forergn subsidi-
anes have been translated into euros using the exchange rates on
the closing date Translanon differences of shareholders’ equity
items anismg from eliminations of the acquisition cost of foreign
subsidiaries are recognised in shareholders’ equity When a foreign
subsidiary is s0ld, these translation differences are recogmsed in
the income statement as part of the overall proin or loss ansing
from the sale Translation differences that arose before 1 January
2004 are recogmsed i retained earmngs i accordance with the
relief permitted by the IFRS 1 standard in connection with the
adoption of IFRS Since the transiuon date, translation difference
ansing mn the preparauon of the concolidated finanaat statements
are presented as a separate item in shareholders’ equity

DERIVATIVES CONTRACTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING
According roits financial pehicies, the Finnair Group uses foreign
exchange, interest rate and commaduty derwvatives 1o reduce the
exchange rate, interest rate and cormmaodity nsks which arise from its
balance sheet iems, foreign exchange purchase contracts, anticipated
purchases and sales as well as future jet fuel purchases

The derwvatives are recognised at the time they are made in the
balance sheet at onginal acquisition cost and are subsequently
valued artfairvalue in each financial statement and interim report
Gains and losses on derwvatves qualifying for hedge accounting are
recogrised inaccordance with the underlying asset being hedged
Derwatives contracts are dessgnated at Inception as hedges for future
cash flows and binding purchase contracts (cash flow hedges) or
as financial dervatves not meeting the hedge accounnng criteria
(economic hedges) The valuation prinaples of the fair value of
dervanves 1s presented in note 29

Ar the inception of hedge accounting, the Finnair Group docu-
ments the relationship berween the hedged item and the hedging

nstrument as well as the Group's nsk management objectives and
the strategy for the inception of hedging The Group documents and
assesses, at the inception of hedging and at least i connection with
each financial starements, the effectiveness of hedge relanonships by
exarmiming the capacity of the hedging mstrument to offset changes
in the fair value of the hedged item or changes in cash flows The
values of derivatives In a hedging relabonship are presentedn the
balance sheer irem short-term financial asser and liabihnies

The Finnair Group implements i accordance with 1AS 39 hedge
accounung principles the hedging of future cash flows {cash flow
hedging) in terms of the price and foreign currency risk of jet fuel as well
as foreign currency hedging of leasing fees and aircraft purchases
Hedging of the fair value of the net investments of forugn units was
not used at the closing date Meither were embedded dervauves in
use on the closmg date or during the financial year

The change in the fair value of effective portion of derwvatve
nstruments that fulfl the terms of cash flow hedging are entered
directly in a hedging reserve in equity to the extent that the require-
ments for the application of hedge accounting have been fulfilled
The gains and losses recognised im equity are transferred to the
income statement in the period in which the hedged item 1s en-
tered n the Income starement When an instrument acquired for
the hedging of cash flow matures or1s sold or when the critenia for
hedge accounuing are no longer fulfilled, the gain orloss accrued
from hedging instruments remain in equity unul the forecast rrans-
actuon takes place If, however, the forecast hedged transacuon s
not longer expected 1o occur, the gain orloss accrued in equity 1s
released immediately 1o the income statement

The effectiveness of hedging s 1ested on a guarterly basis
The effective poroion of hedging is recognised in the hedge reserve
of shareholders’ equity, from which 1t is transferred to turnover
when the hedged 1item is reafised or, in terms of investments, as an
acquisit:on cost adjustment

To hedge the interest rate and foreign exchange risks of foreign
currency loans the Finnair Group uses foreign exchange and inter-
est-rate swap contracts The translation difference ansing from
foreign exchange and inverest-rate swap contracts that fulfil the
condinons of hedge accountng is recognised concurrently agamst
the translation difference ansing from the loan, while other changes
in farr valve are recogmised in terms of the effective poruon in the
hedging reserve of shareholders’ equuy Interest income and expenses
are recogmsed in financal income and expenses

The Finnair Greup concludes jet fuel swaps (forward contracts)
and apnans i arder to even out future price flucruations u jer fuet
purchases The changes mn the fair value of jet fuel dervatives that
fulfill the rerms of IAS-39 hedge accounting principles are entered
dwectly in hedging reserve in equity The gaing and losses recogmized
in equity are transferred to the income statement In the perod in
which the hedged itern 1s entered mn the incame statement If a forecast
transactian Is no longer expecied to occur, any gain or loss s
released immedately to the income statement Ineffective portion
of fair value change of derivauves 1s presented in other operating
income and expense

Fair vatue changes of derivanives hedging future cash flows {for
which 1A5-39 hedge accounung 1s not appled) are presented in
other operating income and expense Fairvalue changes of interest
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rate dervatives (forwhich 1AS-39 hedge accounting 1s not applied)
are prese nted in financial items

PRINCIPLE OF REVENUE RECOGNITION
Scheduled Passenger Traffic and { eisure Traffic sales are recogmised
as revenue when the flight 1s flown in accorcance with the flight traf-
fic programme Awiation Services” sales are recogrused as revenue
when the service 1s completely performed Travel Services’ sales
are recognised as revenue when the service has been conveyed
Discounts granted and Indirect taxes, among other things, are de-
ducted from sales as adjustment items

The recogninion as revenue of unused flight uckets 1s based on
the expiry dates of the tickets

Interest income
Interest inceme 1s recogrised by the effective yield method

Dividend income
Duwvidend income 1s recognised when the company has acquired
a legal nghtto recewve the dividends

INCOME TAXES
The tax item n the consolidated income statement comprises tax
based on raxable income for the financial year, adjustments to
taxes of prewious financinl years and the change in deferred raxes

A deferred tax hability or asset 1s calcutared for all temporary
differences between accounung and taxauon using the tax rates
prescribed at the closing date

The largest temporary differences anse from sales of tangible
assets, depreciauion, revaluations of derivatves contracis, defined-
benefit pension schemes, unused tax losses, and valuations at fair
value made in connection with acquisions Deferred taxis not rec-
ognised for subsidianes’ undistnibuted earnings where 1t s probable
that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

A deferred tax asser1s recognised to the extent that it will prob-
ably be available 1o taxable profit of future financial years, against
which the deductible temporary difference can be uuhsed
The Group main business takes place in Finiand Taxes based on
1axable mcome for the finanael vear have been caleulated with a tax
rate of 26 per cent Taxes based on income raxable for financial year
2004 have been calculated in Finland at a tax rate of 29 per cent
Taxes based on the taxable income of foreign subsidaries for the
financial year have been calculated arv rax rates of 0 - 26 per cemt

Depreciation difference and voluntary reserves have been di-
vided in the consolidated balance sheet inio shareholders’ equity
and deferred tax habihty Under the Finnish Companies Act, the
portien calculated for shareholders equity 1s not included in dis-
tributable equity

PUBLIC GRANTS

Public grants, for example government aid for simulator traiming,
has been recogrused in turnover Public grants that the Group may
receive, for example, for fixed asset acquisiuons are recogrised as
a reduction in onginal acquisition cost Grants are recognised in the
form of smaller depreciations over the usefuf Iife of the asset The
Group has not recerved during the financial year or the comparison
period any pubc grants for fixed asser acquisinions During the fi-

nancial year and the previous financial year, grants amounting to
1 5 milion euras have been recogmsed in turnover

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets are recognised In the balance sheer when the
financial benefitis longer than one year, in acquisition cost, inchuding
the direct costs ansing from the acquisinon fangible fixed assets
are valued at oniginal acquisition cost less accumulated deprecia
tion and write-downs
Asrcraft and their engines as well as flight simulatars are de-
preciated on a straight-iine basis over their expecred useful lives
The acquisiton cost of aircraftis allocated to the aircraft fuselage,
engines and heavy maintenance and these are depreciated as sepa-
rate assets Residual value depreciations are made for buildings and
orher fixed assets Land areas are not depreciared
QOther equipmentincludes office equipment, furmshings, cars
and transportation vehicles used at airports
Depreciation is calculated using the following principles, de-
pending on the 1ype of asset
Buildings, 3-5 % of their undepreciated residual value
Arrcraft and their engines on a straight-line basis as
follows
- new Airbus A320 family aircraft, over 20 yearsto a
residual value of 10%
- other jet aircraft acquired earlier as new, over 15 years
to a residual value of 10%
- used jer awrcraft more than six years old, over 10 years to
a restdual value of 10%
- new turboprop aircraft, over 12 years to a residual value
of 10%
- turboprop aircraft acquired as used, over 10 years to
a residual value of 10%
- arrcraft to be withdrawn from use, fully on a straight-line
basis according ro thewr useful life outlined in the fleer
modernisation plan
Heavy maintenance of arreraft, on a strarght-line basis
during the mawmntenance penod
Embraer components, over 15 years to a residual value
of 10%
Airbus components, over 15 years to a residual value
of 10%
Fhight simulators are depreciated as per the corresponding
type of aircraft
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets, 23% of the
undepreciated residual value

-

The residual values and estimated useful lwes of assets are
adjusted ar each closing date and if they differ significantly from
previous estimartes, the depreciation periads and residual values
are changed accordingly

Ordinary repair and maintenance expenditure Is recognised as
an expense in the financal period in which i anises Expenditure of
modernisation and improvernent projects that are significant in s1ze
{manly aircraft modificacions) are caprtalised in the balance sheet
if it 15 probable thar an addiwonal financiai reward will anse to the
Groupin future Modernisation and improvement projects are de
preciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful tives




Depreciation of a tangible fixed asset s discontinued when the
tangible fined asset s classified as being held for sale in accord-
ance with [FRS 5 standard Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Disconuinued Operations

Gains and losses anising from the dispesal and use of fixed
assets are included i the income statement in the item other op-
erating income

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Itnangible fixed assets are recognised in the balance sheet, when
the financial benefit 1s longer than one year, at acquisition cost,
including the direct costs ansing from the acquisition Deprecia-
tion and impatrment of intangible assets are based on the following
expected economuc Lifetimes

Goodwill impairment Lesiing

Computer programs— 3 - 8 years
Other intangible assets,
_depending on therr nature 3 1Qyears

COODWILL
CGoodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fairvalue of the Group's share of the net assets of the subsidi-
ary, asseciated undertaking or jont venture acquired after 1 Janu-
ary 2004 Goodwill fram the combination of operations acquired
prior to 1 January 2004 corresponds to the carrying amount ac-
cording 10 the previous financial statement standards, which has
been used as the assumed acqustion cost The classification or
handlmg i the inancial statements of rthese acquisinons has not
been adjusted when preparing the Group’s operung IFRS balance
sheet The Finnair Group has made no company acquisitions after
1january 2004

Goodwill 1s tested annually for possible impairment For this
purpose, goodwill has been allocated to cash generaung units
I the expected present value of future operational cash flow of
some business operauon 1s lower than the carrying amount in-
cluding goodwll, the impairment 1s recognesed as an expense in
the Income statement

The Finnair Group has allocated in the financial statements
part of the goodwill arising 1n an acquisiion before 31 December
2005 vo the acquired company's intangible asset irems, which are
depreciated on a siraight-line basis over their economic life

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Research and development on aircraft, systems and operanons 1s
conducted primanly by the manufacturers Research and prod-
uct development expenditure relating to marketing and customer
serwice 1s recogmised as an expense at the ume at which st is in-
curred Expenses are included in the Group s income statement in
a costitemn according 1o the nature of the expense Development
expenditure is recognised in the balance sheet as an intangible as-
set when itis probable that the deveiopment project will succeed
both commercrally and technically and the project expenses can
be reliably assessed The Group has no capitalisable development
expenditure

COMPUTER SOFTWARE

Computer software mantenance costs and expenditure on the
research stage of sofltware projects are recogmised as expenses
ar the ume they are incurred Software projects’ minor develop

ment costs, moreover, are not capialised, they are recognised as
an expense User rights and licences acqusred for IT software are
presented n the category intangible rights and mn other respects
in other intangible assets Acquired user nghts and hecences are
entered in the balance sheer at acqwsition cost, plus the costs of
making the hicence and software ready foruse Capitalised expenses
are depreciated over a useful hfeof 3 - B years

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other intangible assets, such ase g patents, trademarks and Ii-
cences, are valued at acquisition cost less recognised depreciation
and imparrment Intangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over 3 10 years

LEASE AGRLCEMENTS
THE GROUP 15 THE LESSEE
Tangible fixed assert lease agreements where a substapual part of
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Group are
classified as finance leases The asset item acquired wath a finance
tease 1s entered at the start of the agreement as an asserin the bal-
ance sheet at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the mirkmum lease payments A corresponding
sum s recogimsed as a financial 2sser The lease payments pay-
able are allocated between finance expenses and debt reductron
The corresponding rental obliganions, net of finance charges are
included :n other long-term interest bearing habiives Financing
interest 1s recognised in the income statement during the lease
so as to achieve a constant interest rate on the finance balance
autstanding in each financial period Asset wems feased undera
finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
hfe and the term of the lease

Tangible fixed asset-related lease agreements where a subsiannal
part of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as otherieases Payments made under other [eases are
charged to the income statement over the term of the lease

The operating tease liabiliies under other leases of Finnawr Group
aircraft have been treated as rental expenses m the income state-
ment Lease payments due in future years under agreements are
presented in the notes to the financial statements

IMPAIRMENT
On every closing date the Group reviews asset itemss {or any ndica-
uon of impairment losses If there are such indicavons, the amount
recoverable from the said asset 1tem 15 assessed The recoverable
amount is also assessed for the following asset items irrespecuve
of whether there are indicacions of impasrment  goodwiill and in-
tangible assets which have an indefinize useful hfe The need for
impairment 1§ exarnined on the cash generating unn level

The recoverable amount 15 the higher of the asset item’s fair
value, less the cost ansing from disposal, and 1ts value in use By
value 1 use 15 meant the expected future net cash Aows obrain-
able from the said asset nem or cash generating unit, discounted
to therr present value The value of the recoverable amount of
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financial assets 1s erther the fair value or the presentvalue of expected
future cash flows discounted ar the orniginal effective interest rate
An impawrment loss 15 recognised when the carrying amount of an
asset iter 1s greater than the recoverable amount The imparment
loss 1s recogmised in the mcome statement The impairment Joss 1s
reversed if a change in conditions has occurred and the recoverable
amount of the asset has changed since the date when the impairment
loss was recognised The impairment lass is notreversed, however,
by more than that which the carrying amount of the asset would be
without the recagmition of the impairment loss Impairment losses
recogmsed for goodwill are not cancelled under any circumstances,
neither are smpairment losses on equity investments classified as
avallable for sale financial asseis cancelled through profit and loss
From recewables included according to IAS 39 in the allocated ac-
CIUISIUUI’] price, InLerest INcome 1s recovered afrersmpalrment LISIHg
the interest rate that has been used as the discount rate when cal-
culating the impairment

Animpatrment test required by the transition standard has been
made for goodwill applying IAS 36 to IFRS standards on the transe-
tion date 1 January 2004

INVENTORIES
Inventories are asset items that are intended for sale in the normal
course of business, are handled in the production process for sale
or are raw matenals or supplies intended for consumpuion in the
production process

Inventones are valued at the lower of their acquisition cost and
probable net realisable value Acquisiton cost s determined using
the average cost method The acquisinon cost of inventores includes
all acquisition-related costs, production costs and other costs that
have ansen from the transfer of the inventory 1item to the focaton
and space where the item 15 situared at the ume of inspection The
preoduction costs of inventories also mclude a systemaucally allo-
cated proportion of vanable and fixed production overheads Net
realisable value 1s the estimarted selhing price in the ordinary course
of business, less the costs required to complete the product and
selling expenses

TRADE RECEIVABLES
In trade recevables are recognised assets recerved on an accrual
basis for the products and serwvices of the company’s operatiens
Trade recevables are valued at their original carrying amounis on
the closing date, provided that they are not considered recewvables
held far trading purposes

When the Group has objective evidence that uncertainty is at-
tached to the collection of trade recewvables, then they are valued at
their lower probable far value Public financial problems that indi-
cate that a customer 1s gomng into bankruprey, significant financial
restructuring or substanual delays in payments are examples of ob-
tecuive evidence that mighe cause trade recewvables 10 be valued at
probable farr value iImparment of irade recevables is recognised in
other operatng expenses

Trade recevables denorminated in foreign currency are valued at
the exchange rate on the ciosing date

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense for the period dur-
ing which they arise

LOANS

Loans are valued at their onginal value Loans that fall due for
payment within 12 months are presented in short-term habilities
Foreign cusrency loans are valued at the smid market exchange rate
on the closing date and translanon differences are recognised in
financial rems

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Group has applied the IAS 39 standard (amended 2004) ‘ Fi-
nancial Instruments Recogmition and Valuacion” from 1 January
2005 In 2004 financial assets and habilicies have been valued in
accordance with Finmish reporong practice (see Note 37) Fromthe
beginning of 2005 the Group's financial assers have been classified
according ro the standard into the following caregories financral
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to-matunity invest-
ments, loans and other recewables, and other inancial assets The
dlassificaon s made on the basis of the purpose of the acquisiion
of the financial assets in connection with the onginal acquisiion
All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date

The financial asset category recognised at fair value through
profit er loss includes assets held for trading purposes and assets
measured at fasr value through profit or loss oninimal recogrition
Assets held for trading purposes have mainly been acquired to
obtain a gan from shore-term changes in market prices All those
derwatnives that do nor fulfit the conditions for the apphcation of
hedge accounting are classified as held for trading purposes and
are valued m each financial statement ar fair value Realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recogmsed in the ncome statement {esther in other operating iIncome
and expenses orin financial tems} in the period in which they anse
Financial assets held for trading as well as those matunng wirhin
12 months are included in current assets On the closing date all
the Group’s investments are in the category financial assews atfar
value through profit or loss Group finanoal assets on the closing
date consist of money marker deposits, cernficate of deposits and
commercial papers as well as Finnmsh Government bonds

Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets not belong-
ing to derivateve contracts which mature on a specified date and
which a compary has the firm mtent and ability to hold to marurty
They are valued at aflocated acquisiion cost and they are sncluded
inlong-term assets On the closing date the Group had no assets
belonging to the said group

Finnair Group assesses on each closing date whether there 1
any objectwve ewidence that the value of a financial asset tem or
group of items has been impaired If there 1s objective evidence
that an impairment loss has ansen for loans and other recevables
entered at allocated acquisitions cost in the balance sheet or for
held-to-maturity investments, the size of the ioss 1s derermined as
the difference of the book value of the asset item and the present
value of expected future cash flows of the said financial asset em
discounted at the onginal effective interest rate Fhe loss is recog-
nised through profit and loss




Financial lrabiliies are recognised art fair value on the basis of the
oniginal consideration receved Transachons costs have been in-
cluded in the original carrying amount of the financial lrabilities
Later, alt financial habihties are valued at allocated acqusition cost
using the effective yreld method or at faw vakee through profit or loss
Financial habilities are included in long- and short term liabilimies
and they can be interest-bearing or nen-interest-bearnng

The fair value of other financial assets and habihines 1s assumed
to correspond approximately 10 their carrying amount due to their
short matunity or because their fairvalues cannot be easily deter-
mined Other financial assets include trade recewables, prepaid
expenses and accrued income and other long-term recevables such
as loan recewvables, other shares and holdings and arrcraft lease
guarantee deposits Other financial habihties include trade payables
as well as accrued habilities and deferred income

Derecogmuion of financial asseis takes place when the Group
has lost a contractual right 10 recewe the cash flows or when it
has transferred substanually the rnisks and rewards outside the
Group

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash reserves, short-term bank
deposits and other short-term, highly hquid investments, whose
term to maturity ss a maximum of three months

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
The norminal value of a share 1s recognised in share capstal
At the end of the financial year, the norminal value of paid but as yer
unregistered shares is recogmised in the bonus issue account

Share 1ssue gains ansing after the Companies Act of 1997 have
been recogrised in the share premium account, less transaction
expenses, reduced by tax effect, relating to increases in share capi-
tal Addinonally, costs of the company's share based payments are
recogrised i the share premium account as per the IFRS 2 standard
Possible gans from the sale of 1reasury stock are also recognised,
reduced by tax effect, in the share premiwm account

Gans from share 1ssues arising before 1997 have been recog-
rised in the general reserve

The revaluacon reserve includes a fair value reserve for avail-
able-for-sale investments and a hedge reserve for dervauves used
m cash-flow hedging

Retained earnings include profit from previous financial years,
less dividends disinbured and acquisitions of own shares In can-
nectior with the sale of own shares (treasury stock) the original
acquisition cost 15 returned to reiamed earmings Under the |1AS
8 standard, changes in accounung principles and errors are also
recogrised wn the resules of previous financial years

DIVIDEND

The dvidend bability to the company’s shareholders 1s recogmsed as
a labshity 1n the consolidated financial statements when a meeung
of shareholders has decided on the dwvidend distribunion

TREASURY STOCK (OWN SHARES)

When the company or its subsidiaries have acquired their own shares,
the company’s shareholders’ equity 1s deducted by an amount con-
sisung of the consideratson paid less transaction costs after taxes

unless the own shares are cancelled No gain orloss 1s entered in
the income statement for the sale, 1ssue or cancellaton of own
shares, the consideration receved 1s presented as a change of
sharcholders’ equity

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PENSION LIABILITIES
Pensicn schemes are classified as defined-benefit and defined
contribunon schemes Payments made into defined-contnbu-
uon pension schemes are recogmsed in the mcome statement
in the peniod 10 which the payment applies In defined-benefn
pension schemes, obligatons are calculated using the projected
umit crediz methed Pension expenses are recogmsed as an ex-
pense aver the employees’ perod of service based on calcula-
tons made by authorised actuaries Actuanal gains and losses
are recognised in the iIncome statement over the employees’
average remaining term af service to the extent that they exceed
the greater of the following 10% of pension obhigatons or 10%
of the fairvalue of assets When calculaung the present value of
penston obligations the interest rate on government securites 15
used as the discountrate The terms to matunity of government
securities approximate to the terms to maturity of the related
pension habilities

The Group's fareign sales offices and subsidianes have various
penston schemes that comply with the local rules and practices
of the countries in question Al of the most significant pension
schemes are defined-contnbution schemes As of 1 July 2005 the
siatutory pension cover of the employees of the Group’s Finnish
companies has been arranged i 2 Finmish pens:on insurance
company The pension cover s a defined-contribution scheme
The pensien schemes of the parent company’s President & CEOQ
and members of the Board of Management as well as those of
the managing directors of subsidiaries are individual schemes,
and the retrement ages under these schemes vary from 60 to
65 years All of these pen<ion schemes are also defined-contri-
burion schemes

Up o 30 June 2005 the stawtory pension cover of the em-
ployees of the Group’s Finmish companies was arranged in Finnair
Plc’s Penston Fund Orther {voluntary) penston cover has been
arranged 1n Finnair Ple’s Pension Fund, in which the pension
schemes are entirely defined benefit schemes These schemes
spectfy pension benefits, disabubity compensation, post-retre-
ment health-care and e insurance benefits as well as benefis
paid in connection with the termination of employment

On the transizon date to IFRS standards on 1 January 2004
allactuanal gains and losses have been recogrsed in the opeming
shareholders’ equuy according to the relef permitted by the {(FRS
1 standard Actuarial gains and losses arsing thereafter have
been recognised m the iIncome statement over the employees’
average rematning term of service to the extent that they exceed
the greater of the following  10% of pension abligatons or 10%
of the fawr value of assets

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
All of the Group s post-employment benefits are defined con-
tribution benefits
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group has apphed the [FRS 2 standard (Share-based fees) to
afl share-based transactions payable as eguiry in which the equity
nstruments have been granted after 7 November 2002 and to
which no rnight has arisen befare 1 January 2005 The Group has
two share-based schemes, namely the 2000 oprion scheme and
the 2004 share bonus scheme tn respect of the option scheme,
an arrangemem accordlng w the PFEVIOUS reportlng practice has
been followed and the opuions are not recogrused as an expense
in respect of the share bonus scheme, the {FRS 2 standard has
been followed

in the option scheme, key indmduals who have been granted
share options can subscribe for Finnair Plc shares at a price which
5 based on the weighved average price of the shares on the Helsimls
Exchanges in the tme period specified i the apion scheme The
subscription price 1s lowered by the amount of dividends decided on
afrer the end of the determination period of the subscription price
and before the subscription of shares 'When shares are subscribed
for with the share options, the sharehalders’ equity is credited with
the payment made, less transaction costs

in the share bonus scheme, key Individuals have the possibilny to
recewe as a bonus both company shares and money for a three-year
perfermance period according to how targets set for the perform-
ance period have been achieved The Board of Directors decides
annually the targets to be set The targets are determined on the
basis of the Group’s financial development (note 23) Achieving
the targets set for the performance period determines how large
a proportion of the maximum bonus will be paid The fair value
of the granted shares on the dave they are granted 1s recognised
in personnel expenses and as an increase tn shareholders” equity
during the financial period according to how the degree of fulfil-
ment of the targets 1s assessed The monetary bonus 1s recognised
on the basis of the fair value of the shares at each pontin tumen
personnel expenses and as a hability The expense impact on the
pernod i question s aliocated 1n the interim reports Own shares
for the share bonus system have been acquired in the market, so
the granting of these shares does not dilute share ownershup

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present fegal or
construcnive obhgation as the result of a past evenr, the fulfilment
of the payment obligatron 1s probable, and a rehiable esumate of
the amount of the obligation can be made If it1s possible to re-
ceve compensation for part of the obligation from a third party,
the compensation 1s recognised as an asser 1tem when (€15 10 prac-
tice cerrain that the compensation will be receved Provisions are
valued at the net present value of the expenses required to cover
the obligation The discount factor used when calculating present
value 15 selected so that it describes the marketview at the ume of
exarmination of the tme value of the money and the risk relating
vo the obligation

Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Group has
prepared a detasled restructuring plan and has begun to implement
the plan or has announced it will do so A restructunng plan must
inctude ar least the following informanion the operations affected,
the main cperating points affected, the workplace locations, work-
ing tasks and estimated number of the people who will be paid

compensanon for the ending of their employment, the likely casts
and the date of implementation of the pian

SEGMENT REPORYTING
Segment information is presented according to the Group’s busi-
ness and geographical segment dwvision The Group’s primary form
of segment reporting (s according to business segments Business
segments are based on the Group’s internzl orgarisatuenal structure
and financial reporung of management The business segments
are Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Leisure Traffic, Aviation Services
and Travel Services

The Scheduled Passenger Traffic segment is responsible for
sales, service concepts, flight operations and the procurement and
finanomg of aircraft Scheduled Passenger Traffic leases 1o vhe Lei-
sure Traffic division the fhght crews it requares In 2005 the unis
belonging the Scheduled Passenger Traffic segment were finnair
Scheduled Passenger Traffic, the feeder arrhne Aero As, the budget
airtme FlyNordic, Finnair Cargo Oy and Finnair Arreraft Finance Oy
which manages the Group’s fleet

The Leisure Traffic segment consists of Finnair Lessure Flights
and the package rour company Aurinkomatkar-Suntours

The Aviatian Services segment comprises aircraft maintenance
services, ground handling and the Group’s catering operations as
well as real-estate management and faciity services for Finnair’s
operational premises In 2005 the following companies befonged to
the Aviation Services business segment Finnarr Catering Cy, Finnea-
tering Qy, Finnar Facihities Management Oy and Northport Oy

The Travel Services segment consists of the Grougp’s domesuc
and foreign travel agency operations as well as the operations of
the reservations systerns supplier Amadeus Finland Oy In 2005
the following companies belonged to the Travel Services business
segment The most significant subgroups are Finjand Travel Bureau
Ltd, Matkatoimisto Oy Area and Finnar Catering Oy

Pricing between segments takes place at the going market
price

The assets and habthties of segments are business iwems which
the segment uses 1n its business operatons or which on sensible
grounds are attributable to the segments Unateributable stems
nclude tax and financial iems as well as items common to the
whote company Investments consist of increases in tangible fixed
assets and intangible assers which are used m more than one fi-
nancial year

Although the Group’s four business segnients are managed from
Finland, they operate in five geograplical areas Finland, Eurape,
Asia, North America and Others
The twrnover of the geegraphical segments 1s presented according to
sates destination, and assets according to the Jocation of the asset

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES REQUIRING MANAGE-
MENT DHSCRETION AND THE MAIN UNCERTAINTY
FACTORS RELATING TO ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of esumates
and assumpuons relatng to the future, and the aceal outcomes
may differ from the esumates and assumprions made In addition,
discretion has to be exercised in applying the accounting principles
of the financial statements



IMPAIRMENT TESTING

The recoverable amounts of cash generaung unics have been determinea
i calculations based onvalue in use The preparavion of these caicula-
nions requires the use of esumares Estmates are based on budgers and
forecasts, which inherently contain some degree of uncertainty The
man uncertainty factors in calcuiavons are the USD/EUR exchange

APPLICATION OF NEW OR

AMENDED IFRS STANDARDS

The IASB has announced the following interpretations, standards and
amendments made to them that were notin effect on 31 Decernber
2005 Their dates of entry into effect and the Group’s esumate of
the )impact of ther introduction are as follows

5]
@

rate, umit revenue and estimared sales volumes

___1Jan2007 7

1Jan 2006 @

JIAS 1 Amendment  Capital disclosures

1AS 19 Amendment - Employee benefits

_I!i%.’ﬂ Amendment Net investmentin a Foreign operation L o o Uin_ZO_Oé ) ’i
125 35 Amendment Hedamg o frecast meamos. . T Voo o
_I;Aé 39 Amendment - Fair val_uﬂm e Vljingo%ri
A5 39 and |IFRS 4 Amendment - Insurance contracts 0 L1 s
IFRS & - Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources ) o o o o ~ 1}an 2006 77)
PR 7 Finanenl msmenes Decissies T T T oy s
IFRIC 4 - Determinng whether an arrangemenr contams g lease 1Jan 2005 "

IFRIC 5 - Rights te interests ansing from decommissioning,

t Jan 2008 ™
Tjan 2006
71 March 2006

Vhiay 2005

restorauion and erpronmental funds ) -

IFRIC & - Recychng fee habiliies oo o~

IFRIC 7 - Financial reporting in ijipe?nnﬂ_aminairy economies

W Impact on disclosures

B impact on disclosures, because the accounting practice in terms 1n terms of actuanial gains and losses 1s not changed
3 No substantial rmpact

4 Noimpact, because the method s enabled but not applied

% Nosubstantial impact on the classification orvaluavion of financial assets

®  Notapplicable, because the Group has no insurance contracts according to the standard

7 Notapphcable, because the Group does not engage 1n the exploration of mineral resources

B Impact on disclosures

9 The Group s currently evaluaung the wmpact of the snterpretation on current arrangesments
) Notapplicable 1o the business of the Group

™ Notapplicable to the business of the Group

") Mot apphcable 10 the business of the Group

" No substanual impact

The EU has notyet approved for use the following standards 1AS 21, IFRKC 7 and IFRIC 8

A copy of the consoldated financial sratesnents can be obtained at the internet address www finnair com or from the head office of the
Group’s parent company at the address Tietotie 11 A, Vantaa The full financial statements contaiming the financial statements of both
the Group and the parent company can be abtained from rhe head office of the Group s parent company at the address Tietoue 11 A,

Vantaa

These financial statements do not contain all of the parent company s financial statemenr information under the Finnish Accounting Act
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information 1s presented accordmg to the Group’s busi-
ness and geographical segment division The Group's primary
form of segment reparung 1s according 1o business segments

Business segments are based on the Group’s internal organ-
sational structure and financial reporting of management The
business segments are Scheduled Passenger Traffic, Leisure Traffic,
Avianon Services and Travel Services Pricing between segments
takes place at far value The assets and habilities of segments
are such business irems which the segment uses in its business
operatens or which on sensible grounds are attributable to the

segments Unatiributable items include tax and financal items
as well s items common te the whole company investments
consist of increases in tangible and intangible assets which are
used in more than one finanaal year Although the Groups four
business segments are managed from Finland, they operate in five
geographical areas Finland, Europe, Asia, North America and
Others The wrnover of the geographical segments 15 presented
according to sales desunation, and assets, habilites, deprecia-
tion and investments accarding to their location

Primary reporting format_business segment data 1)an-31Dec2005 = __ B
Scheduled Avianon Croup Un-
Passenger Leisure  Serwices Travel elmina allecated
EUR mill 1raffic Irathe Serwices ons ITems Group
External rnover 129697 3837 102 883 00 1471
Inteinal wrnover .. Mmoo 36 2967 | 49 _ AMe62 _90
Turnover ) 14079 3873 4009 912 4162 00 18711
_Operaungprofic _ 376 203 _293_ 81 __ 134 819
_ Share gfr_e‘;-ult_b _ofisq_c_l;tedyngle_rtakmg_s ) ) _ : - e o B o o A _ o
_ Finanaal income o ) I 201 201
Flnancualhe;(penses ) i T -14 6 -14 6
Income tax 7 ) S T 255 255
:MlncrqrEtErEQS -; . B ’ o . __“77 o 06 __ _Q_G:
Profit for the financial year o . — 614
Segment assets . 9537 748 2704 644 1606 4326 1,6353
Hoidings in associared underakings . o ) 31 _31
_Assets,total i 9537 748 2704 644 1606 4357 16384
_Segmentlimbilies 4214 862 1050 460 1061 4119 9644
S D T T
nvestments - 268 01 278 09 0o 19 575
____ Depreciation_ _ o o625 02 237 e 00 27 907
_Primary reporting formar - business segmentdata1Jan-31Dec2004 T~
Scheduled Aviation Croup Un-
Passenger  Leisure  Serwices Travel  elrmna-  allocated
EUR mil! Traffic Traffic Services tiens items Group
Eternal wrnover ___ Cla76 3si0  9ss | _sss 16829
Internal turnover - 108 6 36 3089 58 42609 090
Tumew T T Gges Wae awd s aes _ igms
Operatngprofit 35 248 ;6__ &S __ W4 310
Share of results of assoaiated undertakings _ L o 06 06
_fmnancialincome S e e 225 225
_Financial expenses B ) T 2?>_§ o233




Secheduled Aviation Group Un-
Passenger Leisure  Services Travel ehmina  aflocated
EUR mull Traffic Traffic Services tons items Group

Mwonymerest 02 02
Proht far the financial year . el 56
_Segmenrassers 9056 706 2984 760 1596 3061 14971

Holdings in associated undersakings 3232
_ Assers, total _ %56 706 2984 = 760 1596 3093 15003

Cmemebion T Tmsy T sea @4 sy wsa " eosi
Otherwems Lo L
weswens 782 93 250 is G0 es s
7VﬂDFSCI_3tI_Oﬂ__"_ ) B __7479 92 ) __332 19__ ~ 90 _ 61 ) 104]_
_Employees (average) by segment o T T

1 Jan-31 Dec "1 Jan-31 Dec
2005 2004
3884 3,839

_5cheduled Passenger Traffic

Leisure Tralfic ) . :_7— ) 7_ S - i _ _» ﬁ’_____n 336 - ) o325 )
Aviation Services - i - o Y- T 3008
Travel Services L .. ars _ss
_ Other operations ; o o o 233 L
Total _ o . ~ o -_ 9,:!-17 9,522
Employees at end of year T T T eest T Team

_Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

Turnover outstde the Group by sales segment 1 Jan-31 Dec i Ja'n—31_De_c
EUR mull 2005 2004

lflnland . B 475 3 ) 4451
Europe ’ T | T 567 324 4
Ama a I T 2989
North America T i T B T 571
Othes T &4 574
Towl s 16829
Eegrﬂgnt_aﬁffts_asceﬁi@g to CPEL“xef'_ocat'_P" B o o — . o —_— o

EUR mull 2005 2004
Folnd o . 12598 13953,

= wope LT T S —
TAsa T T = “100
L\lo_rthiAir;_er;ca_i_ o o o - o 20 27
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31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mul} 2005 2004
Group eliminavons _ o o _ S 1666 1596
Unallocated rems S i . 4357 3093
el _ L .. __ . . . .. L. . Thema 1,500 3
Segment habilities according to country of locaton L
i i 31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
_Finland 5952 ) 5254
Europe T o T - aa9 T my
Asa S o T A
NorthAmenca ~ _ _ .. L T s 93,
_Others - _ L L2 o 35
_Group elmnatons—_ T I [/ X A I
Unallocared nems - 19 3754
Toral S _ T T s 9093
_Capital expenditure bycountr;oﬁ;catl_on o . wf
T 1?3n_—:31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
Fnlard ] ] L 570 1011
Ewrope ) . S 05 o 39
_Asia . — 00, ) 20
North Amenca _ o Y ) 00
Others 7 ) T R T oo
_Unallocared nems e e 00 RS-
Total o 575 145

ASSET ITEMS SOLD

in October 2005 the Group sold the real estaie companies Knnteistoosakeyhuo Aerola A-talot and B-talot for 3 7 mithon euros A
capial gain of 3 5 million euros was recognised In March 2004 the Group sold its assoctated undertaking Gourmet Nova The capi-
tal gain before taxes was 6 3 million euros The asset items sold did nor fulfit the charactensuies of disconunued operanons ner the
criteria for classification as held forsale

The sold assetitems did not fulfilthe charactensucs of disconunued operations nor the critenia of assets held for sale

Net assers and habiliues of sold operations

EUR mull 2005 2004
_ Cash and cash equvalents _ - 0t -
Intangbleassers ~ B T ) )
_ Tal\g?bTeT"ued assets ) ) ) i 08 -
Loans  ~ T T -t T T T TR T T
JTowl L . R _02 -
_Capuaigan S T 7 o 35 63
Consideration, lCEi-l ; - ) ) ) oo 17 5_3-
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EUR mill 2005 2004
_ Cash and cash equivalents of disposed subsidiary _ R A ) =
_ Balance sheet value of disposed associated undertakmg L _ e _ _ 05
E cash flow of disposal o B _ . 35 63
PRODUCTION FOR OWN USE
e s e 1 Jan-31 Dec 1 JanffiTB;c—“
EUR mull 2005 2004
_Component produchion .. S L. 14
__Heawy maintenance o i o _ 95 00
Total . B o _ 111 ) ) 14
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
T T T - 1jan—§1_—De_c B TJan 51"5;“
EUR mull 2005 2004
Capnal gans on sales of tangible frned assets . .36 55
_Cagi_ti\ gan from shyes__ R _ b2 _ 03
Sell of subsidiarys net of cash sold ) ) 35 _ aa
Rental ncome S 2 ; 59
Others 70 123
Total T ) R 240

Other aperating income includes frequenc-flyer income of 5 3 million euras (5 4 nuthon eures in 2004) The rest consists of several

iterns, none of which are mdwidually significant

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

1 jan-31 Dec 1 Jan- 3\ Dec
EUR rull 2005 2004
Matenals and services _ 709 8 608 3
Personnel expenses - _ B 4958 4355
_Otherexpenses - - 3380 5284
Total ) 1416 31,5732
B-re:ak_g!cﬂvn ofe;;e;ls; Eal:ggt;rles_ . 7 ) ) ‘__ —:«::_ _'__H_ i ) } h
Materials and services _ _ ) s
Matenials and supplies for alr(raf[ maintenance ) 77 21 3
 Ground handiing and catering charges, _ o 1340 1290
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1 jan-31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004
_Fuels for flight operauions . e e e el 2927 oo n2s
_Expenses for tour operavons ) a0 940
_Arreraft mantenance and servicing e 380 463
Data admurustration services R ~ 579 ~ 684
_Othernems* L. L. Tas o 368
Tewl . _ L ___ 7098 6083
* Consists of several tems, nane of which are indmdually significant
Personmelespenses __ __ _ _ ___ _____ o .
_Wagesandsalares oL L 3ses _ 3e27
__ __Pension expenses _ - - } L. 858 . 37
_ __ _Othersocial expenses R B 434 331
Towal 7 o o 4958 . a35s
i SAaIa-rl_es a_r::ﬁm-::u_se-s' of Chief Executive bfﬁ:er i ST T )
_and Members of the Board of Directors, EUR A e B
__ Chief Execunve Officer _ . - A
__ KepoSula ] S o 8w200
Deputy ghn_ef_Ex;cunvo Officer ) B o L o
_ Members of the Board of Directors 7 o o B
___ Chrsioffer Taxel . L 45055
B KariJordan L _ ) ) _ 27300 o
L §anlu|v|_Ha_aPa_sia|oiup o 22 Jun 2005 ~ B R B - i :__1_2,2_5:5__
_ Markku Hyvarinen - o 28200
Vel Sundback - o ... 23,800 . )
_ Helena Terho 28048
_ Kaisa Vikkula h o 25200

Personnel incentive scheme
The Group operates an mcentive scheme based on a balanced scorecard, defined separately for each business unit, which covers most
of the Finnair Group’s employees The total amount of bonuses in 2005 was 9 8 milhon euros (previous year 2 6 million euros)

Transfer to Personnel Fund
The Minnair Group has a profit bonus scheme, which allows employees to pariicipate In a profir bonus payable on the basis of the
Group s result and return on capital employed A profit bonus is paid into a Persennet Fund, which is obliged to mwest part of the bonus

in Finnair Plc’s shares Other sraff costs include 7 6 milhon euros of profit bonus {previous year 0 5 miilion euros)

1 Jan-31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
_Socialexpenses ______ . - — . N
__ __Pension expenses  defined contribution schemes L 486 U
____ Pension expenses - defined benefn schemes, statutory i . __.83 A
_ Pension expenses _defined benefit schemes, voluntary "_ T 82 29_0 :
_ _  Other defined-benefit expenses ) T - 0s Y
_Other social expenses _____ [T = ¥ T




* The leve! of pension expenses for 2004 was lowered by a change in the Pension Fund rules and an amendment to the Employee Pen-
stons Act The combined effect of the rule change and the amendment of the Employee Pensions Act was a non-recurring improvement
in the result of more than 20 million euros

Management pension benefits

The pension schemes of the parent company’s President & CEQ and members of the Board of Management as well as those of the
managing directors of subsidiaries are indwidual schemes, and the retrement age under these agreements varies from 60 to 65 years
All of the management pension schemes are defined-contribunion schemes

?_jan—31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec

EUR muill 2005 2004

_Other operaung expenses . e
Lease payments for aircraft o _ o T 885 B g9

" Rental of cargo capacw_ry_ - o T T ‘18 6 150

_ Other rental of fight capaciry __ R L EE]
Office and ather rents o L o 327 378

__Eiilc charges T | o - o B o {_5_9 1 ~ N EES a
Sales and markeung expenses o C T ess w78
Owersemst .. _ . _____wmy  Tim2
Toral e e 5360 . 5294
* Consists of several nerns, none of which are indvidually sigmficant
8 DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

T - - I ) 1Jan-31 Dec 1Jan-31 Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004
Cepreciation of tangible tixed assets ) }

Buldings i S sa 35
Aircraft ) i o i - TTTeso 809
-O_rher equipment m B h wmm:gj; 7 . 124

o ' &7 %68
péereglgtlpg of intangible assets - R 7 - ; Jn:w::_w_._ - .-
Goodwill _ L . @0 15
ailerirl'[anglme assets o 50 _ 58

T . Y 73
:I"&tal S i - - T 96_7— i __“__ 164 1-‘

The Group has re-assessed the useful e of aircraft heavy maintenance As a result of re-assessment the masntenance intervals of Airbus
aircraft were lengthened Depreciations of heavy maintenance reduced as a result of the re-assessrent by 1 0 mullion euros compared
to the earler practice The depreciavion penod of flighr ssmulators has been changed 10 match the depreciation period of the corre-
sponding arrcraft In the compansen year, an addinional deprecianion of 5 mithon eure was made for the fleet

9  FINANCIAL INCOME

1Jan—H3?‘Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mul! 2005 2004
Interest income 80 93

Dwdend income

o
_ Gauns from sales of shares of the associated comparnies 00 63

)
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- ’ T _ 1 Jan-31 Dec  1jan-31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
_Foreignexchangegans . _ __ __ . U £ I 24

_Fairvalue changes of financial assets at fair value through profit oc loss . S - 9o
Fair value changes of currency dervatves . 59 ) a0
___O_[her ﬁnagaa-l m__c;—m‘; o ‘ T B L 03 39
Towl D R I T -1
10 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
T T T CT T T T T T T Wjan31Dec 1Jan-31Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004
Interest expenses - .- - . — .- o
Interest on bank loans ) B 96 ns
~ Intereston finance leases o ) T 13 15
T T i T T ’ L 109 T 133
Farglgn ;xgrsxng_e lasses ) T ) _ T 64 _ _ 32
jFF_;I’_Xal_tiCh__arl‘gE_h_Ui—ﬁ;_alh:ld! assets at far vatoe through me_n orloss A i -i:g_éi_ ) _ 00
Fair value changes of curtency dervatives 20 B Ry
-E)_rae_r-!;rr{apricél _n;ppn-se;‘ o - } k ) :_—_m@_Q__ 70
Tewl D _ o ____M§ 235
_?gga_l_gi\—e;_;_-ha_r_\_g_e‘g—al; a:t;cms_st_a; ;\El.l!dl‘.d m_cn;\solldé_ted lq:m;;ta:e—me—_n; o - T __ T _- T
h T ) T 1 Jan-31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
Fuels for fight operanions o } A 64
Lease payment for arcraft o _ b3 27
Orher_e—xpenses ) 105 oo
Ne;ﬁ:;a:;;a_l |Eem-< _ i . %&.._.5_5._ _ _r 0
Total ] ) s -101
11 INCOME TAXES
“Taxes for financial y;\:;;\g;-r:vrc;us ye;rs T T __— B w—j T T
ST ST " Y jan-31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
Tax based on raxable income of financial year _ ) ) 221 02
Taxes for previous year'S ) o 22 05
Seferred taxes B B i B I 12 11

Deferred raxes ——
_Total 255 48




The rax expense included in the consahdated income statement differs in the following way from the theoretical sum obtamed
by using the tax rate (26%) of the Group's home country Finland

1Jan-31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
_Profit before taxes e 875 306
. Ialxes Calcu!ated using Lhe}lnmsh tax rate - 7 N ) _ _ i j -_—:»: ::j_;g: o ) -89
Eﬁ?rgn[ tax rates OF forclg_n syljsgilar:es o _ o ﬁ‘._.ﬂ___.,_m,g.oﬁ.. o 01
Share of result n associates [ L __ a1
Tax | Freemcome e o o R A . 00
Nondeducnble expenses _-_ : o 04 } . 51
Deferred tax expense / tax asset resulting Frcm reducnon of Finmish tax rate 6o _ . __ %2
Use ofpﬂo_\isly_u_nr_ec_ogwacd tax losses L . _Go __ _ 05
jage)b&t_fl{pr;wous fnﬂ&m;i year o 7 o w22 ) 05
Income taxes, total T L ) s . 4B
Effecvermme 0 0 Tww 0 158%

i
|
|
|

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The undiluted earnings per share figure 15 calculated by dividing the profir for the financial year atiributable 10 the parenr company’s
sharehaolders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the financral year

When calculating the earnings per share adjusted by ditution, the weighted average of the number of shares takes into account the
dduaing effect resulting from changing into shares all potentially ddunng shares The Group has had share options which have a dilut
ing effect when the subscripuion price of the options s lower than the fair value of the share because with the funds abiained from the
exercising of the options the Group could not issue the same number of shares at fair value The fairvalue of the share 1s based on the
weighted average price of the shares in trading

1 Jan-31 Dec 1 Jan-31 Dec
2005 2004
Proht for the financial year EUR vl A B 614 256
nghted a?eraée num7er ofashares 1000s o o _ 1_ 84,24? 84,328
Und:luted earnings per share EUR b7 030
When calculan_ng dllu(ea—e—;rnmgs per share the number of shares s adJuSled i
for the effect of convernible loans, share opnions ana own shares o i o
Profic for the f:lr;anaal year o ) i - 614 256
Weughg{average number of shares, 1000s ) o 88,150 ) 86,758
_Effect ofcon‘vern{bl_e Igan : ) _ ) B j 0 0
Effect of share options _ :_ T B 873 0
Eﬂ'ert ofown nshares N I -431 21t
Weughled average number gf 5hares diluted 10005 o o __——:8_7,076—‘ 86,547
Diluted earnings per share, gU_F{__ . B B 0_7“1_’_ ) 030

A converuble bond has been patd off in full on 2 September 2004

The Finnarr Group inroduced the IAS 32 and IAS 3% standards on 1 January 2005 As a result of the introducton of the standards
the company has valued financral instruments at fair value The introducnion of the standards has been estumated to have an effecr of
0 08 euros on undiluted earrings per share and 0 08 euros on the diluted earnings per share, as stated 1n the accountung principles
in the introduction of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 standards no comparison data has been changed to correspond wath the 1AS 32 and iAS 39
standards

1
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Dividend

The diwvidend paid in 2005 and 2004 was B 5 million euros (0 10 euros per share) The Board of Directors proposes to the Annuat
General Meeting that a dvdend of 0 25 euros per share be paid, v e aroral of 21 7 milhon euros These financial statements do nor
include this dradend distribution habilizy

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Fimancial staterment 31 Dec 2004

EUR mill Connecton fees Others Goodwill Total
_Acqmcost R
_Acquisition cost 1 Jan 2004 o _ 7 %46 M3 676
Addmons . . .ma . na_
_Disposals . . 83 A2 25
_Acqusimon cost 31 Dec 2004 ] 7o ety 7785

Accumulated deprecaatlon and |mpa|rment

Accumulared deprecwamon and impairment | 1 Jan 2004 . 37 __-0 1 — _—IiS_S_
. Deprecna[@g ~ o o s 16 75
Accurnulated planned deprecianicn of dlcposeﬂs i o 36 ) 38
_ Accumulated deprecration and impairment 31 Dec 2004 _ 00 o _ 380 7z 387
“Bookyalue3iDec2004 T Tz 0 297 | sa 7368
Bookvalue 1Jan 2004 ) Ta7 153 TR T T

-'EmancnaJ staterment 31 Dec 2005

Connection fees Others Coodwill Toral
Acquisition cost _ L
‘Acquisition cost 1 Jan 2005 I o677 o T T s
Rdwons T R T TTTea
_Disposals i - ) ) B 08 B i -08
Transfers betweer |tems ) ) 30 31 a1
Acguisition cost 31 Dec 2005 B a7 861 40 918
Accurr:;ll:ated deprecnatl(;n-aljrd impairment B B 77 o 7;7 :: T
Accumulated dep’r;\iatlon and mp;;lr’meint 1Jan 2005 00 ) 38 0 17 387
DBDIEC!E\EIOH i j; - B - __ o £1_14 o ) - 81
_ Accumulated pianned dep_re_cgt:fm of dlipogf_‘: s o 7~ - bs o _fo 6
_Accumulated depreciation and impairment 31 Dec 2005 oo 455 17 '4» 472
‘Bookvalue31 Dec200s " a7~ "Ta0e 23 446
e e T A F AT ST

Ortherintangible assets consist mamnly of computer programs
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Goodwill allocated to the Scheduled Passenger Traffic segment1s 2 3 miulion euros Afterimpairment resting it was found that noim-
parment losses need be recogmvised Goodwill has been re-allocated on 31 December 2005 to the segment’s asset-restncted intangible
assets Inimpairment testing, the recoverable amount has been determined based on value in use Cash flow forecasts are based an
management-approved budgers and forecasts, which cover a five-year period The discount rate used 15 8 5% The main assumpiion

I
3
)
2
2
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©
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in budgets and forecasts 1s 11% growth n passenger numbers and 0% growth in umit revenue

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Financial statement 31 Dec 2004 Other
EUR mill Land Buildings Aircraft equipment
_Acquisitioncost o - e
Acqusioncost 15an2004 08 1867 _ 13444 2248
Addwons ~ L o3 _ &0 _ 52
Disposals -_—— A _-24 63
_Transfers benween tems S 66 66
Acquision cost 31 Dec 2004 08 S 1870 1,4224 2303
Accamalaed deprecaton andmmpanment ST T e
Accumulated gepreciauion B
_and imparment 1 Jan 2004 925 -626 1 -1e81 7 ) ) 900 3
Depreciation o a5 809 BRIk %8
Accumulared planned 7
_ depreciation of disposals. B : 23 50 _ -
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment 31 Dec 2004 Qo -970 -704 7 1881 0o -989 8
“Book value 31 Dac 2004 o8~ so  gwi a2z 231 &8
“Book value 1Jan2004 08 943 7208 3as 206 810
Financial statement 31 De‘c:MZEbE— T 77‘&__——6—(@ - o
EUR mill Land Buildings Aircraft equipment Advances Total
_Acguisition cost - — .
Acquisition cost 1 Jan 2005 08 1870 1,422 4 2303 231 1,863 6
Addwons 10 02 34 4 57 64 577
Bt T Tor s ss s L
Transfers between items J79 . s2 27
_ Acquisition cost 31 Dec 2005 17 1858 14551 2272 395 1,909 3
_ Accumulated depreciation and impairment S L L
Accumulated depreciauon
and mpawment 1)an 2005 00 970 7047 1881 oo ___-9898
_Deprecavon. 54 690 83 _ 827
Accumulated planned o
_ depreciauon of disposals _ 07 T B 76
Accumulated depreciation
_and impawrment 31 Dec 2005 _go -y o 7687 -1945 00 -1,064 9
b diDed0s 47 s s 327 w5 wma
“Bookvalue1jan2005 o8 _ %00 7177 422 231 8738
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The remaining undepreciated part of the acquisinon costs of machinery and equipment included inthe Group’s tangible fixed assets
amounts to 690 8 million euros on 31 December 2005 (2004 726 9 miilion euras)

As surety for habilities 1n 2005 is the carrying amount of aircraft pledged, namely 232 3 million euros (in 2004 the carrying amount
was 243 9 million euros)

Other equipment includes office equipment, furnishings, cars and transportation vehicles used at airports

Finance lease arrangements

Tangible fixed assets include assets acquired under finance leases

Financial statement 31 Dec 2004

EUR muil Bulldings Other equipment Toral
Acquisition cost 31 Dec 2004 _ o _ 82 L8760
_Accumulated depreciauon 7_7 B . o e A7 27

Bookvalwe _ ____ _ R T T U F

T i " 2005 20062009 20100

Lease payments L ~ __-j_— _ 419 o _1&s 54
Dscounong R L 1o
_Netpresent value _ } ] 36 ] 135 S L.
—Flnan;a\_statemeat ??1_Dec_20(_)5 N - ) 7 T

Buildings Other equipment Total

Acquisinon cost 31 Dec 2005 g2 o 87 ___leg
Aecumulaes copreciion S S S

Bookvalue ) 62 o.os2 o a4
0T ) 2006 2007-2010 T 2011

Lease payments A ) 49 128 A2

Discounting S A I 06
VNe_[’pirgsem;vailugi o L ~ o 38 o105 38

15 HOLDINGS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group s share of the result, asset |Le-r:r;_s-a_nd labiliies ofa;sac;[éd C();'\pames, T T

none of which are publicly iisted, 15 presented below

T o -0 T - - o E'ETD: o 31 Dec

EUR mull 2005 2004
_Atbeginning of financial year I 32 33

Sharesofresults - _ _ | L L L.

Disposals o 02 07
Aend of mariialyess T ¥




Information on the Group’s associated undertakings . -

Financial statermnent 31 Dec 2004 E)F;eratm;g7 -HE)Idmg
ELR mull Domicile Assets Liabilities Turnover  profit/ loss (%)
SiomenJakelove Oy Fwland 08 _ 0y b1 __ __ai ___ 4758
TTovelomat Oy Foand _ 0s  0r 03 o0 " Tas30
Amadeus Estonia S j,E,SEO,",'a B 03 R - D—i—_———; 01 3335
el e es L wr Ter
Financal scacement 31 Dec 2065~ Operanng  Holdiag
Domicile Assets Liabilities Turnover  profiy/-loss (%)
“Suomen Jakeluoei Oy Fland 0§ _ 01 _ 04 __ o1 _ a0
_Towelomar __Fmand 63 0] 03 00 4830
_AmadeusEstona _____ Esowa _ 05 ___ 07 _ 08 03 3315
Total 16 03 s 04

The carrying amount of associated companies on 31 December 2005 does not include goodwill

Aunnkomatkat-Suntours’ associated company Toivelomat Oy eperates in Finnair Group as a prowider of support services in three
sectors in transporting forwarding services, in counung comns accumulated on Finnair flights and as a field representative at arports
Amadeus Finland’s holding \n Amadeus Estonia ensures the provision of consistent products and services to Finnish companies
operaung in Estomia and helps increase cooperation between Estomia travet agencies and Finmish travel service providers Amadeus
Finland’s asscciated company Suomen Jakeluuet Oy produces the Finmish Hotel Reservations system as well as travel agency network
services for hotel sales

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, LONG-TERM

&9
A

31 Dec 31 Dec
2005 2004
Loan recewables - ) e P3 03
Q_therr_ece\!a_b_les ) o 74 147
Ownshares _ _ _ S ) S ee 23
Total _ _ e _. T - A B
Fiancial year 31 Dec 2004 T T
Loan recevables Other recevables Own shares Total
_Arbeginning of financial year 13 L L A 23 83
Addions o - oo 00 o0 00
Dsposals - do_ .00 00 0
_Atend of financial year o 03 _ _ w7 23 W73

Other recenables are security deposits related 1o arcraft operational lease agreements
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Financial year 31 Dec 2005

Loan receivables Other receivables Qwn shares Total
_ At the beginning of the financial 1al year . R 47 23 ;_..___1._7_3_-_
_ Addwons . %o 27 . 0o 27
Disposas oo oo 23 23
_Attheend of the finarcialyear E e 00 W7
Other recevabtes are security deposits related areraft operanional lease agreements
The fairvalue of receivables 1s presented in note 29
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Changes in deferred taxes during 2_0_0"4'}7 o _—h_ _ _—_—_ _
Recogmsed In Recogmsed n
1 Jan the income shareholders’ 31 Dec
EUR mll 2004 staternent equity 2004
Deferred tax assets o L o L o o
_Employee benefits - K 79 L3 37
Conhnﬂ losses - _ i 13 0z . 00 -
DEpIEC\atlan_Of_ti;ng\blG fixed assers _ 00 i 22 2o ) 22
Finance leasing _ - ) 27 _ 03 __ 02 22
7R§Xenue recogniton 25 22 oo __ 03
Capualisation of overhead expenses 00 0o 00 B 090
FleaivEmé\;t;ance allocamons i 27 28 06 49
Credit loss B 14 4 00 00
O[he-r—te}‘\;:orary alfferences i - 05 _ 04 ~ oo 08
Total o 230 62 11 157
Deferred tax assets That can be used | ) ’
_after more than 12 months i 202 . ~ o _ 148
E_ﬂfgr;ét;(habllltlesij;: - . _' _ ___ ~ i ) ) -__ _ 7-_ .
Accumulated deprta_cTatlon difference 2212 44 _ 0o 266
Gains Frnms_agof_t;_nyble ﬁxed assets 95 3 76 ~ _ 0o 877
Copnaon i ovrhesd openes o T
Recognition at farvalue B 6o 00 00 . 00
Other temporary anferences 69 o9 00 78
~ EE[IOH of derivates at falj‘vﬂe_ _ 00 __Gbo . 0o B _ 00
Total 18 s 21 00 1164
Deferred tax I\abulutresipayage a ) “ V
after more than 12 months 110 9 16 3

No deferred rax hability 1s recogrised for undistributed profits of Finnush subsidiaries and associated companies, because In mos: cases

these profits wiil be transferred to the company without tax consequences




Changes in deferred taxes during 2005 _ - -

R_ec_og_msed n

i Recogm;ed n

1)an the 1ncome shareholders’ 31 Dec
ELR mill 2005 statement equity 2005
_Deferred tax assets o . . _ R o o
Employee benefits T ~ 37 B oy 00 44
_Confirmed losses - _ i S s T a7 a0 26
Depreciauon of tangible faed assets _o.o22 T _en .0 00 _ 23
_Finance leasing ~ 22 _ 03 0o B R
Reenverecognuon 03T "o T T Teo 0 o3
_Capitalisauon of overhead expenses 00 00 0o 00
_Heavy nTa!rl_mnﬁﬂciajloga;mT ) 49 ) 08 00 ) 57
_ Other temporary differences. Y a6 o0 03
Toal ] 157 18 00 75
B-ef-er_rea ax—asser;hat;e;nTJé used i T
after more than 12 months 148 . - .50
Deterad coxabiies S
Accumulated depreciauon difference 266 _ 13 00 279
_Gans from sale oftangbleiﬂxediaﬁsgts 877 D8 0o 885
f;i;:ﬂréhsiaﬁn of oyej};ead:qpcnsgs B ) 03 01 00 . 02
_Recognition at fa_lr \_ral_ue__ - _ _ 00 09 _0 (_] : 09
~ Oih_e_r_ulm—j)f_raly c_illifergn'cgs_ ) 18 o ._ oo 00 N 18
Valuauon of denvates at fair value _00 _ ) 00 65 635
Tota! o B ) ) 116 4 29 65 125 8
" Deferred tax labilities p:;ygl:_ylp: - T o
after more than 12 months ) 163 ) 118 2

No deferred tax habulity 15 recogrused for undisiribured profits of Finnish subsidiares and associated companies, because in most cases
these profits will be transferred to the company without rax conseguences

18 INVENTORIES

31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
Marerials and supplies o 43 8 450
Work i progress T - i3 17
Towal 7 o ) T Tws T Taed

in the financal period an expense of 0 2 milhon evuros was recognised, equivalent to the sum by which the carryaing amount of in-
ventones was reduced 1o correspond vath thewr net rezahsable value (0 8 milhon euros sn 2004} The carmang amount of inventones
recogmised at farr value 1s 6 0 million euros (5 3 million euros 2004) Inventories have not been pledged for Group habdites
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004
_Trade recewables fﬁf o 89 1333 ’
Recewables from associated undertakings o s i 7_ : _:____91_ L 0o
Prepaid expenses and aceruedincome 766 _ - .88
_ Other recevables S o _ A ) _ L 220 o __ 1
Total ’ T 2476 2090

Credit loss on trade recewvables

The Group has recogmsed durning the financial year credit losses from trade recewables of 3 8 nilion euros (0 5 mullion euros in 2004}

Essential items included in prepa:d expenses and accrued income

31 Dec - 31 [5éc
EUR mull 2005 2004
_Pimancial mscruments ~ ~ A ~ ...z B 17
Pension expense allocations o _*m_ 47 92
_Interestincome - ) - 73 73
7‘O'Ebers o o o T | T 264 i s . i4_4
Et_ajj- Tt T ’ ) B 76 6 _ 626

Balance sheet values correspond best tc the sum which 1s the maximum amount of the credit risk, excluding the fair value of collateral,
in cases where the other parties to the agreement are unable to fulfil their obliganions in relanon to financial mstruments Recewables
do not contam significant concentranons of credit risk Other items included m prepard expenses and accrued income consists of

several items, none of which are mdidually significant

The fair value of recewvables i1s presented in note 29

20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, SHORT-TERM

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
Deposits, commercial papers, certificates
_c_)f@eﬁposg,iagd gqvernmgn&bonds _______383 2_3__4 261 9
Listed shérg_S‘ 36 04
Unlisted shares o o 43 _ 59
_Towal ) _ .z 2682
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss are presented in note 29
21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
— ————— ———— e e e e —— — ———— |
31 Dec 31 Dec }
EUR rmill 2005 2004 }
_Cashandbankdeposws_ e e 267 296 _ 1

ltems included in cash and cash equivalents mature i maximum of 3 months Foreign currency cash and bank deposits have been

valued at nud-market exchange rates on che closing date




22 EQUITY-RELATED INFORMATION

Number Share

of registered Share Share Share 1ssue, premium

shares capital, EUR Issue EUR account, EUR
_lJan 2004 . . _B4743163 72,031,688 55 _ 2500 22500 _ 5,656,95835
_Oprionsupscriprons 2,500 202500 2800 202500

_ Debenture swaps . __ 13850 mswyso - . .o 7257650
(31 Dec2004 _ 84759213 72,045,331 05 . . 572953485

_Opuonsubscriprions 2044900 173816500 -0 - 747144200
_Disposal of ownshares - o - e ) 28,30146
_5&-’”_2!5&__? B L o _ 740,056 629,047 60 2,745,45312

31Dec2005 | 86804113 7378349605 740056  629,04760 _15,978,73143
Numbero%m" o

own Shafes Price Average PI’ICE

1 Jan 2004 . _ - -

Requmion Fowrsiie T mEe T gmees T 5w
3 Dec2004 ) Cemg00

Disposal of own shares o s ousmsse 55

Acquiswion of own shares ] , 150,000 1,516,680 00 1011

31 Dec 2005 L. 535000 358250795 670

Share capital

The nominal value of shares 15 0 85 euros per share According 1o the Arnicles of Assocation, the Group s mimimum and maxamurm share capizal
are 60 million euros and 240 million euros The share capital entered in the Trade Register was 73,783,496 05 euros If all the optians in circula-
non were used to subsenbe for Finnair Ple shares, the share capital would nise to 75,443,206 05 euros, corresponding to 88,756,713 shares

Obligation to redeem clause

The Articles of Associanon have no obligation to redeem clause

RESERVES INCLUDED IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share issue

At the end of the financial year, the nominal value of paid but as yer unregistered shares 1s recogrused in the share issue account

Share premium account

Share 1ssue gains ansing after the Companies Act of 1997 have been recogmsed in the share premium account, less transacnion expenses

Generalreserve

Gains from share i1ssues ansing before Companies Act of 1997 have been recogmised in the general reserve

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve includes a fair value reserve for avadable-for-sale investments and a hedge fund for dervative instruments used in cash-

flow hedging

) E-UR mill

1 Jan-31 Dec 2005

_ Change in equity hedge reserve

Changes in vaiue of derivatives

_Jer fuel hedges matured

_ Lease payment heddges matured durmg_year o

Aurcraft payment hedges matured during year

Loan hedges matured during year _

416

297
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During the year, values changes of hedge accounting tems amounting to 41 6 millon euros have been recognised in the equity hedge
reserve During the year, 29 4 million euros from the hedge reserve has been recognised on the income staterment in the same row
with the hedged item

Distriburable equ'xt-y_ 31 Dec
EUR mull 2005
Reram earnings at beginning of financial year_ o o o 359 5
Revaluation reserve o o - 200
_Dwdend distribuvon _ o - -
Qwnshaes  ____ ___ __ . . . _ N - A
Translavon difference - ~ o . i . 00
Profir Forl—hgfnlancmlyear - L ) o S _ 61 4
Total . _._._. .. S 4320
_YQ_lu_nEg_pic_a_\g_s_lgrEE\;har;f:ol-d;rs' equity B B L B L 794
_Dstrbutableequey ] S . 3526
Voluntaryprowsions 7 .
f\f&:mx]hlefi depreciavon difference o . ~ o o 107 3
_Residencial building reserve _ S o 00
_ S Sl 1073
Def‘?err)ea :ax ||;bL|I|7ty of:}aljr;[a_ry_prov;l_ons- | 7‘ j ; -_ o v_i o o -279
Total T 7 79 4

Own shares

The acquisiuon cost of own shares held by the Group 15 included in own shares During 2005 the Group purchased in the market
150,000 shares at a total price of 1 § milhion euros and disposed of 37,800 shares at a total price of 0 2 mullion euros The total acqui-
sition cost of own shares held by the Group 1s 3 6 mullion euros

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group has two share-based incentive schemes for personnel

Finnair Plc’s option scheme 2000
The Annual General Meeting on 24 August 2000 approved the pro-
posal by the Board of Direclors 10 1ssue share opuon rights for key
personnel of the Finnair Group The share option rights are intended
to form part of the incentoive and commitment scheme for the per-
sonnael of the Finnair Group The number of options rights issued
15 4,000,000 Of the option rights 2,000,008 are marked with the
Jetter A and 2,000,000 witk the lecter B

The share subscription price in case of option nghts A s the trade
volume weighted average quotation of the Fmnair Plc share on the
Helsinki Exchanges between 1 july and 31 August 2000, with an adds-
nion of twenty (20) per cent, namely 5 19 euros, and in case of option
B the rade volume werghted average quatanion of the Finnarr Ple
share on the Helsinkt Exchanges between 1 July and 31 August 2001,
with an addition of fifteen (15) per cent, namely 5§ 48 euros From
the share subscription price 1s deducted, as per the date of record of
cach dvidend distribution, the amount of dvidend distnibuted after
the beginning of the period for determination of the subscripwon
price bur before the date of the share subscnpuon

The subscription persod began in stages on 1 May 2003 and 1
May 2004 and i shall end for all warrants on 31 August 2006 The
Finnair Pl share capital may rise by a maxsimum of 3,400,000 euros

as a result of subscripuons The social secunity provisions for the
share oprion scheme have been made

Cpuons were been granted prior to 7 Novernber 2002 These
opuons have not been recogmsed as an expense according to the
relef permrited by IFRS 2 standard ‘Share-based payments” Neither
have disclosures according to the standard been made

At the end of the financial period, the number of opurons eut-
standing was 1,212,544, as consequence of which the company’s
share capital can nse by 1,030,662,40 euros

Finnair Plc’s share-based incentive scheme 2005
The Board of Directors of Finnarr Plc approved the share-based incen
uve scheme on 18 June 2004 In the share based incenuve scheme
key persannel have the oppartunity ro receve company shares as a
bonus for three one year earnings periads, depending on whether
argets set for the earmings penod have been met In addiuon, the
proporuon payable as cash 1s 1 5 nmes the value of the shares

The Board of Birectors decides annually the 1argets to be set. The
targets are determined on the bases of the Group's financial develop-
ment Achieving the 1argets set for the performance period determines
how large a proporuon of the maximum bonus will be paid




Abonus for the 2005 earming period will be paid out if the Finnair
Group’s earnings per share (EPS) is over € 30 euros and if return
on capital employed (ROCE) 1s over 5 0% The bonus will be paid
n full if the £PS s at least 0 90 euros and the ROCE at least 10 0%

Between these two values the bonus will be determined in 2 linear
fashion The company’s Board of Directors has allocated 425,000

_Options/share based incentwve allocations granted 10 management

shares 1o key personnel The far value of each share at the ume of
grantng was 6 40 euros

in the financial statements, share based habiizes payable to-
talled & 5 mahon euros b the financial year a toral of 9 5 million
euros has been recognised as an expense

Shares, Shares,
Year 2000 share cash Total
number Number component component shares
of opricn of shares (EUR) {EUR) (EUR)
~ Chief Executive Officer 60,000 30,030 192,192 463,010 655,202
Deputy Chief Bxecutve Officer 63,000 17160 109,824 264,577 374401
_Members of the Board of Diectors 00 o ___ o_ 0

24 PENSION LIABILITIES

Pension schemes are classified a< defined-benefit and defined-con-
tribution schemes Payments made into defined-contriburnion pen
sion schemes are recognised in the income statement in the period
to which the paymerit applies in defined benefit pension schemes,
obliganions are calculared using the projected unit credit merhod
Pension expenses are recognised as an expense over the employees
period of service based on calculanions made by autherised actuar
tes Actuanal gains and losses, in terms of the portion exceeding a
certain limit, are recognised over the employees’ average term of
service When calculating the present valus of pension obhgations
the interest rate on government securies 1s used as the discount
rate The rerms to maturity of government secunties approxmare
to the terms to matunity of the relared pension iabilinies

The Group's foreign sales offices and subsidiarias have various
pension schernes that comply wath the tocal rules and practices of
the countries in queston Al of the most significant pension schemes
are defined-contnibution schemes As of 1 july 2005 the statutory

_Defined-benefit pension schermes

pensian caver of the employees of the Group’s Finnuish companies
has been arranged in a Finmish pension insurance company The pen
sion cover 15 a defined-contnbution scheme The pension schemes of
the paren: company's President & CEO and members of the Board
of Management as well as those of the managing directors of sub
sidiaries are indmidual schemes, and the retirement age under these
agreements varics from 60 to 65 years These pension schemes are
alsc defined contribuuion agreements Up to 30 June 2005 the statu
tory pension cover of the Group's Finmsh companies was handled
n Fmnar Pic’s pension fund Other (voluntary) pension cover has
been arranged n Finnair PIc’s Penston Fund, in which the pension
schemes 1re defined benefit schemes The pension cover specified in
these schemes relates to pension benefits, disabihty compensation,
post employment health-care and ife insurance benefits as well as
employment severance benefits Afl of the Group’s post retirement
benefits are defined-contnbution benefits

terns recogmised in the balance sheer 31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mill 2004
_Present valug of funded obligations _ N . , o 7874
_ Farvalue of schﬁe@e_ assets ) o L B -3700 -794 6
L o o i _3s 28
_ Present value of unfunded obiigations 00 __. . _DbC
Unrecognised net actuanial gains / losses ( ) o382 BN
Unrecognised costs based on past service B e PO 63
Net hability presented 1n balance sheet o 127 98

The balance sheet pension liability for 2004 of 9 9 million euros includes items outside the Pension Fund totalling 6 1 ruliion euros

Pension scheme assets include Finnair Plc shares with a fair value of 11 million euros ( 8 5 million euros an 2004) and buildings used
by the Group with a fairvalue of 10 9 million euros { 77 7 milon euros in 2004)
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ltems recognised in the inceme statement

EUR mull 2005 2004
_ Current service costs for financial year B _ o 236 252
_Interest costs T L o ’ o _ o - A _ 404
_Expected return on pﬁ assets gdl—l‘; T —;7 o380 i 356
Past service (0_; ;es_t;d'bel\EﬁI‘S A T . - ) -2
Adjusrment e from compoisory TEL foundanom o 7 j;i o 82 i B _bo
Jotal, included in personnel expenses } - o ass 21

_Nethability reconcihauon statement oL L

TA gegﬁr?g ofﬁnanaal year . . . T : T ft ___ __“_%W"Q:S'-: o ;:i j

_To@p_mﬁ,presemedﬂv%_ _ o . _ o 165 . 21
_Pad contributions o N w1 254
Atend of financialyear R 127 98
Defined benefit schemes pnr1c‘|p‘;lhactm1rTaI—ass_;;:;s‘no_l:_ S T

T T o T T T o oo - 31 Dec 31 Dec

2005 2004
_Discount rate % _ o o _50% 5 0%

_ Expecied rate of Eegg;puon assets % | ~ . e 50% ) 4 8%

_ Annual rate of future salary increases % L o 30% 3 0%
Future pension increases % i o o o 23% 21%
Esrlmated rem;mmz;;rs of service ~ ) ) N VA 17
PROVISIONS
The Group has no provisions according to the IAS 37 standard
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing liabihties T/ -

Long-term 31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004
Bank loans B _ o 168 3 1793

_ Pension loans h | o _..___M;:TEP_ ) 280
ElAngxg;é Igaie Llil;_lll_tles B 7 o ~ B B o 141 _ 178
Other loans - — .= 00 0o
- B S 2104 2252
Non interest- bearm-é_habllltles o7 R o
Lon&(erm _ T S .

__Pension llablhtle: o o ) : ) i - o __H—“df-g" 47
Interest bearlngllabllmes tul:al 7 214.9 2299




Inrerest-bearing labilities

Current 31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mull 2005 2004
Cheque account facifies o o e _ 06
“Bankloans el 258 258
_ Finance lease |\aB|E;;S o o B iﬁ B I o o ) o ﬁ____igm 36
Othertoans T __ . w0 193
Jowl o 527 493

Maturity dares of interest-bearing

financiai iabrites 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Later
_Bankloans, fixed interest _ 168 17 _ 171 _ 171 75
Bank EOBI’IS:VHFIE:'DTET‘I[G’QS;v T ICE 92 - 93 i .84 140 676
“Francelesselablzes T 38 a S S v Y SR ¥
e A e T
v

Jol __s27 304 306 279 _224 991
_7CLT|’_r;r1til_\iait;lltTes Gart_un}\gv:\/t}ia‘l_g_mo_ngﬁs_- _7_ o ’ "j _ j_ i _ __ : 27
_Non-current liabilies_Maruring after 12 months ) 204 _

Most of the Group’s financial habilities are short-term o1 on variable interest, so their carrying amount is not deemed to differ sub-
stantially from their fair value The fair valve of long-term liabilinies excluding repaymentsis 212 7 million euros and carrying amount
218 4 mulhion euros The Group's financal habilinies include long-term currency and interest rate swaps that hedge USD-denominated
aircraft financing foans

The currency mix of interest-bearing long-Lerm habihnes 1s as foliows 2005

ER - - g i B i
| bsD ) L ’ ’ 0
Totat ) - 2631

Wengﬁe-d' average effective interest rates on interest-bearing long-term habilities 31 Dec 2005

_ Bank leans o S o 36%

The Group’s fixed-interest USD-denominated arcraft financing habilines bave been hedged with long-term currency and interest rate
swap contracts The difference of the norminal and fair value of the fixed-inrerest dervatve contracrsis recogmised in the equty hedge
reserve, and the loans which are the underlying asset are recogrused at their nominal value A change of fair value of variable-interest
denvative contracts and the loans corresponding to them is recognised in the income statement’s financialitems The foreign exchange
nisk of variable-interest WSD loans is covered by short-term currency derivanives
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_ Finance lease habileies

Minimum lease payments T - ﬁ o 31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mili 2005 2004
_Uproldyear A9 A8
M Syeas L . .. - . L L.azg &S5
_More than § years o .2 S . A
Tetal o . . . _=2n9 _ 268
_Future financial expenses 40 53
" Finance lease hiabilies Present value of minmum lease payment T T T3 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mifi 2005 2004
Uprolyear _ -1 - 356
Jd-Syears  _ _ _ ___ ___ . . _e.Ms oo o8BS
More than 5 years _ __ o ) el 36 _Aa
Tewl T T .. . ws . ns.
Fuancelease habhves, ol @S ns

27 TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHERS LIABILITIES
T T 31 Dec - 31 Dec
EUR 1005 2004
7i¢\dv3ncgiref_§|\fed . B . L __31:[’_’"5_ .._-—734-? B
Tradepayables o %9 _ 897
_Qtheraccrued habibues ) .. i . 290 0 _3337
Liabilinies based on derivative conrracts o B - 208
Other habdwies _ - . - 228 _.Hs
Total o ) ) ~ " sa2 5036
s.gEmEam items in other accrued habilites ) I T Y 31 Dec
205 2004
ynearneAd alr [ransport revenue ) o . 1172’ ) - ne1
Holiday pay reserve ) L Co_Eme 590 _
Other . ... . o 82 156
Towl . __ . .. . . .0 _ 337

Quher accrued llabiulities consists of several items,

nane of which are indwdually sigruficant



28 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

RISK MANAGEMENT [N FINNAIR
Princrples of financial nsk management
The nature of Finnair Group’s business operations exposes the
company to foreign exchange, nterest rate, credirand liquidity and
jer fuel price isks The Group s pelicy s to limit the uncertainty caused
by such risks on cash flow, financial performance and equity

The managemenr of financial nisks 1s based on the nsk man-
agement policy approved by the Board of Directors in November
2004, which specifies the mimimum and maximum levels permit-
ted for each type of risk Financial risk management s directed
and superwised by rhe Financial Risk Steering Group Pracucal
implementation of financial policy and nsk management have been
centralised in the parent company's finance deparrment

In1ts management of foreign exchange, interest rate and jer
fuel positions the company uses different dervative instruments,
such as forward contracts, swaps and options Derwvatives are des-
ignated at inceptien as hedges for furure cash flows and binding
purchase contracts (cash flow hedges} or as financial derwvanives
not qualifying for hedge accounting (economic hedges} Foreign
currency hedging of the price and foreign currency risk of jet fuel,
lease payments and aircrafr purchases as well as hedging of fixed-
interest foreign currency foans 1+ implemented as cash flow hedging
according to 1AS 39 hedge accounting principles

Jet fuel price nisk in fhight operations
Jetfuel price nsk means the cash flow and financial performance
uncertainty arsing from jer fuel price fluctuanons

Finnair hedges against jet fuel price fluctuanions solely with jer
fuel forward contracts and opnions, whose underlying asset 1s jet
Fuel CIF Cargoes NWE Around 70% of Finnair’s jet fuel purchase
contracts are based on this benchmark price index of Northern and
‘Western Europe set fuel deliveries Crude ol and gasoil denvatives
are not used at present

Inits jet fuet hedging, Finnair follows the tme-diversification
principle and a two-year hedging peniod Under the risk manage-
ment policy, hedging must be increased sn each quarter of the year
so that the degrec of hedging for scheduled traffic {Finnair Plc’s
scheduled traffic, Aero & FlyNordic) 1s more than 50% the next six
months By allocating the hedging, the jet fuel cost per period 1s
not as low as the spot-based price when prices fall, but when spot
prices rise the jet fuel cost rises more slowly

Jet fuel hedges are recognised in Finnair in two differant ways In
terms of the jet fuel consumpuion of Finnair's scheduled traffic, the
first approximarely 35 percentage ponts are treated 1n accounung
as a cash-flow hedging i accordance with 1AS 39 hedge accountung
principles The far value change recognised n equiry (hedging reserve)
15 transferred to the income statement in the same period in which
the hedged item s entered in the mcome statement Fair value changes
of hedges not qualifying for 1AS-39 hedge accounting criteria are
recognised in the operating profit’s other income and expenses
also during their term to maturity The sensioty figures presented
below include both hedge recogmition types

Arthe end of financial year, scheduled traffic had hedged 60%
of 1ts jet fuel purchases for the first six menths of 2006 and 41%
for the second half of the year Due to a current agreerment with
tour operators, leisure traffic did not separately hedge its jet fuel
purchases on the closing date A price clause i the said agreement
protects Leisure Traffic’s operating profit from significant nses in
Jet fuel price

In the financial year 2005, yet fuel used in flight operanions accounted
for 16 0% of the Group’s operating costs On the closing date a
ten per cent rise 1n the market price of jet fuel increases - excluding
hadging actvity calculatad vsing scheduled traffic’s forecast number
of flights for 2006 - annual fuel costs by an esumated 33 mullion
euros On the closing date - taking hedging into account - a ten per
cent nise in fuel increases costs by around 17 million euros

Foreign exchange risk

Fareign exchange risk means the cash flow and financial perform
ance uncertainty ansing fram exchange rate fluctuations The Fianair
Group’s foreign exchange risk arises mainly from jet fuel and arrcraft
purchases and aircraf leasing payments

The Group’s pohiey is to reduce the foreign exchange risk af
fecting cash flow for the next 12 months ro an acceprable level In
addmion Finnair hedges risk that exceeds 12 months in terms of
binding purchase agreements for arcraft (1AS 39 cash-flow hedg
ing) and fuel purchases {IAS 39 cash-flow hedgmg)

Around 68% of Group turnover s dencrminated in euros The
most important other forergn sales currencies are the US dollar, the
Briuish pound, the Japanese yen and the Swedish crown

Approximately 35% of the Group’s operaning costs are denomi
nated 1n foreign currencies The most important purchasing cur-
rency 15 the US dollar, which accounts for 65% all operating costs
denominated in foreign currency Significant dolar-denominated
expense items are aircraft leasing payments and Jet fuel costs The
largest capital investments, the acquisiton of arrcraft and thesr
spare parts, also take place mainly in US dollars

On the closing date, a 10 per cent weakening of the dollar
against the euro - without hedging - has a positive impact on the
result of 32 million euros On the closing date - taking hedging
inte account - a 10 per cent weakening of the dollar improves the
result by around 3 mullicn euros A strengthening of the dollar cor-
respondingly weakens the result In the above sensitivity esumates,
the dollar nisk includes the substanual sales currencies the Chinese
yuan and the Hong Kong doilar, whose historical correlatton with
the dollar is over 95 per cent

interest risk
Interest rate risk means the cash flow and financial performance
uncertamty ansing from interest rate flucruations

In Finnair Group the interest rate risk 1s measured using the
interest rate re-foang nme 1€ necessary, interest rate derivatives are
usad for to adjust the interest rate re-fixing nme The mandate for
the investment portfohio’s interest rate re-foang timeis 0 12 months
and for interest-bearing liabilities 12 - 24 months On the closing
date the investment porifoho’s interest rate re-fixing time was 0-12
months and forinterest-bearing habilities 12 - 24 months On the
closing date a one percentage poInt rise In interest rates increases
the annual interest income of the investment portfolio by 3 2 million
euros and the interest expenses of the loan portfolio by 0 5 million
euros At the end of financial year 2005, the average interest rare
on the Group's interest-bearing loans was 3 6%

Credit nisk

The Group 1s exposed to counterparty nisk when invesung its cash
reserves and in using dervative snstruments  The credit nsk 1s man-
aged by making contracts, within the framework of counterparey
risk imits, only with financially sound domestic and foreign banks,
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financral nstituvans and brokers Liquid assets are also invested
n commercial papers and bonds issued by conservatvely selected
companies

Liquidity risk

The goal of the Finnair Group 1s te mantain good hquidity Liquid
1ty 1s ensured by cash reserves, bank account hirmits, liquid money
market investments and commutted credit facilives In terms of
arrcraft purchases, the company s policy 1s to secure the sources
of finance muumum six months pror to delvery

The Group's figuid assets were 418 4 millton euros at the end of
financial year 2005 In addinen, Finnasr Plc had the following un-
used credit facilities on the closing date a domestrc commercial
paper programme of 100 mulfion eures and a commutted EUR 200
milhion eredir inue The credir lmit facility includes a finance cov

enant based on adjusted gearing The covenant level of adjusted
geaning 1s 175%, while at the closing date the figure was 66 8% The
maximum level set by the Board of Direciorsis 140 per cem

Currency derwatwes 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2005
EUR rmill Nominal value Fair value
Hedge accounting items o oo .
Hedging of jet fuel currency ) 168 5 94
_Hedging of aucraft purchases .. . .__ws 55
Hedging of lease paymenis  _ o 352 2%
Total _ . ‘ L _Mss 177
s ouivgeFedge accaumng D o
. Cash-fow hedging ~~ _ . . - L o __oLMo7s .47
Balance sheet hedging o .l _nre - 13
Total i 2254 60

The farr value changes of derwvates that fulfil the terms of IAS-39 hedge accounuing principies are entered directly in hedging reserve
of equity The gains and losses recogmzed in equity are transferred to the income statement in the period in which the hedged item s
entered in the iIncome statement If a forecast transaction 15 no longer expected to occur any gain or loss 15 released immediately to
the income statement Fairvalue changes of denvanives hedging future cash flows (for which 1A3-39 hedge accounting 1s not applied)
are presented in profit and loss in ether operanng expenses and the fair value changes of derivatives hedging balance sheet {for which
1AS-39 hedge accounting 1s not applied) are presented mi the financial nems

(JETFUELPRICERISKINFLIGHTOPERATIONS .
31 Dec 2005

31 Dec 2005
EUR mill Nominal value Fair value
_Hedge accounting items . ) ) R o _ ~
Jet fuet forward contracts (ronnes) _ _ 351,800 _ ) ne
tems ouside hedge accounung__ _ o
Jet fuel forward contracts (tonnes) . L B 71,700 _ o 28
Jetfuel opuons {tonnes) o B
Bought o T T 12,000 02
S oseld L o S L o000 S

Far value changes of commodity denvatives m hedge accounting are recogmsed in the equity hedging reserve from where it 1s offset
against the hedged wwem

Fair value changes of commodity dervauves outside hedge accounting are recognised in the income staiement iten other operauing
expenses



INTEREST RATERISK

The Group's fixed-interest USD-denominated aircraft financing habilities have been hedged with long-term currency and interest
rare swap contracts The difference of the nomunal and fawr value of the fixed-rate derivanve contracrs is recogmised in the equity
hedging reserve, and the arcraft finanaing loans which are the underlying asset are recognised at their nomunal value

Fair value changes of variable-interest dervatives and the underlying loans are presented in the profir and loss in financial iwems
The foreign exchange nisk of vaniable-interest USD loans 1s covered by shart-term currency derivatives

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing habilimes {bank loans, pension loans) - including long-term currency and interest rate
swap contracts the loans - were divided on 31 December 2005 by currency as follows

Currency7
EUR rmuill
ERO - I FF Y-
UsD . v S S 506
R e NP7+ §
Currency and interest r;;swap conracts 31 Dec 2005 - Nominal  Far
EUR mill value value
Hedge accounting iwerms_ ) o - R 614 -4z
ltems outside hedge accounung . . ) 301 -9 é
Total o B ) B 915 -238
“Matuniy dates of farr values recognised T Tt e T
in the hedging reserve 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Later Total
Jet fuel price hedging ) 92 272 02 _ne
Jet fuel currency hedging . Z? 17 ) o ) ’ 94
Currency hedging of lease payments B - . - . S
Currency hedging of arcraft purchases 57 12 _ . o .55
Currency and interest rate swap contracts 03 01 ~-02 -01 01 01 10
283

The currency and interest rate swap contracts :n hedge accounting are recogrised in terms of exchange rate differences idenucally wath
the hedged loans Of the -14 2 mdhon euro faw value of derivaive contracts, -13 2 million euros has been recogmsed in the income
statement of 2005 and earher linancial years m the same row with the hedged loan On the closing date -1 0 mullion euros had been
recognised in the equity hedging reserve

VALUATION PRINCIPLE OF FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

Derwvate mstruments are measured at fair value, which is determined as the value at which an asset could be exchanged, or a habihty
settled, berween knowledgeable, willing and independent parues in an unforced transaction on both sides The value of these derwa-
tives s determined as follows

The fair values of ail dervatives are calculated usimg the exchange rates, interest raves, volathiies and commodity price quotations on
the closing date The fairvalues of currency forward contracts are calculated at che presentvalue of future cash flows The fair values
of currency opuions are calculated using generally accepred option valuation madels The far values of interest rate swap contracis
are calculated at the present value of future cash flows The fair values of interest rate and currency swap contracts are calcutated ar
the presentvalue of future cash lows The fair values of interest rate options are calculared using generally accepied opuon valuanon
models The fair values of commodity contracts are calculated at the present value of future cash flows

Ttie farr value of commodity options are calculated using generally accepred option valuauon models

§
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29 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets

2005 2005
EUR mull Back value Fair value
_ther_f_lrgggaliasse[s o L o . vz ~ 177
_ Fnancial assets at farr value through proficorloss ) E A 3917
_ Trade recewvables and other receivables .. } e e M7 2476
Commodity dervatves _ _ o 89 _ _ 83
Foreign exchange dervatives . L L o 237 . 237
Cash and cash eqhmznls B ) i . o287 ) o 67
Total S o 7163 7183
e 0T T ot om o
Y ST LT T Ed T s
_Pensionloans - . 280 .80
Finance lease labilites S . _ 1 o7
_Inmresl_v_rale_ier_lvam;e-s_ L i o 238 238
Trade payables and other liabifities _ ) ) S0 T sess 5985
o ’ ’ 838 6 8386

Total

* Interest rate denvatves {currency and interest-rate swap contracts) are included in bank loans in other notes

Trade payables and other habihiuies include trade payables, accrued expenses and deferred income, pension obligations and current

tax as well as other interest-bearing and non-interest-bearing hiabilities

Valuation principles of financial assets and habilities
Investnents are classified into two groups, namely financaial assets held for rading purposes and financial assets held-to-maturity The
purpese of assets held for trading 1s 1o produce a gasn in the short term and they are presented as part of current mvestments Held-to-
matunty investments are intended to be held unul the maturity date and they are repot ted as part of non-current investments On the
closing date all the Group's investments are in the category held for trading purposes Investments held for trading purposes are value
at fair value using the market prices on the closing date and the present value of cash flows method Unrealised and realised gams and
losses anising from changes in the fair value of investments are recogmised in the income starement’s financial ncome and expenses

All financial habilities are valued at allocated acquisition cost or fair value cost through profit and loss using the effective interest

method

All derwatives are classified as held for trading purposes and are valued at fair value The most important valuation principles of denva-
uves are described in note 28 Financial nisks

The fairvalue of other financial assers and habihives 15 assurmed 1o correspond approximately 10 therr carrying amount due to therr
short matunty or because their fair values cannot be reliably determined



30 SUBSIDIARIES

Group companies Group ownership %
_Finnair Cargo Oy, Helsinks . o L . ____ _ __1ooo00
Amadeus Finland Oy, Helomki _ i T 9500 _

Matkatoimisto Oy / Ara_He\smEl . i B . i ~ _> _: . o 10000
Area_BEI_lEa Re|5|buroo AS, Estonla _ o o o _ _Jog oo

AJS Estravel Ltd, Estoma____ L. L o o . L7202

Oy Aunnkematkat - Suntours Led At Ab Helsml« e A } - B . 8913

Finnatr Travel Services Oy, Helsink o B _ o o _ . _ 10000

Flnnalr Ca[ermg Oy, Helsinki ) o ) . L _10000__

ana\r Facilitres Manage;n;:()y, Helsmkl B : : T 7 N __ 1@3 -
_Flngalr /}xrcrqft !ﬁ’nzﬂch)w_,ﬂe’Isin_kki o L . B o L 10000
_A/S Aero Airlines, Estoria * s o B B S 4800

Fmr\caie:mg Om;a } o i ) i ’ o 100 o0

MNorvista Travel Ltd, Canada T o i i ’ L o ” 10009

anhandlmg Ab, Swe Swed-e-n ) ) ) _ o _ 100 g0

Northport Oy, Helsmk: T T ) o B o N - 100 00
Nordic A|r||nlfﬂf)|_dlpg Ab Swedeii B o ) ) o B ) ) - : ) @702

Mikkeln Matkatowmusto Oy, MTkIelt i - o } o - . 5100
_Finland T'rqvgl Bureau Lud , HL’_|Sd_r1kl 160 00

> AJS Aero Airlines has been combined as a Group company because the Finnair Group exercises cantrol in the Board of Directors

31 OTHER LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Group 1s the lessee

Mimimum rental payments for |rrevocable lease agreements are as follows

Acrafc Alrcraft Others Others

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004 2005 2004
less than a year ) 958 809 123 126
1-2vears . i 805 663 105 _ 133
2 3years ) B 780 s26 74 15
3 -dyears R B 66 8 500 60 ) 79
4 -5 years B ) 528 85 _ 59 66
more than 3 years . j 16 9 ) 1016 0o i 00
Total _ ’ ) 4909 3899 421 518

The Group has leased premrses as well as aireraft and other fixed assets with irrevocable lease agreements These agreements have dif-
ferent levels of renewal and other index-linked 1erms and conditions The Group has leased 36 aircraft on leases of different lengths
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32 GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31 Dec 31Dec
EUR mill 2005 2004
_Otherpledges gvenonownbenalt 201 208
_ Pledges on behall of Group undertakings  _ _ ___ __ __¢9 _ ____©00_ ____ _ ;
Guaranwees on behall Group undertakungs 4142 796
_Guarancees onbehalfofothers 00 @0
Total 6743 34
-t Tyt o T o 5%6 T 2007—: __——T—o-tal—- o
7 1859 1092 29050

Investment commitments

Investment commitments are for agreed arcraft acquisiions The Group annaunced on 7 December 2005 that :twill acquize 12 new
Airbus wide-bodied arcraft Prelwminary agreements have been signed for the acquisition of the aircraft, but the final contracts of sale
have not yet been signed The acquisimon commitments for the new Airbuses have not been included in the above sum The value of

the order s esumated 10 be more than one billion euros

Dervative contracts 31 Dec 2005

Nominal value

Nommal value

EUR mull 31 Dec 2005 Fair value 31 Dec 2004 Fan value
_Currency dervatives e e L o
Ferwardcontaas | sa07 237 2671 o84
_Currency oprions o B o o _ B o o

_B(_)ught _ ) G_D ) _O 0 _ 23£ _21 ~
Sold ) ’ 00 00 235 03

Currencyswaps ) .. w5 38 _ %0 EE
nterestrate dervatwes Lo
Forward contracts ) ; _ 200 04 ) 6o 0o
Currency options . o _ _ _ . o

_Bowght | . LT 0T 220 o
. Sold B} . - - LR

DQEIVBSIVE coi\trgctsi_u;g( o 87218 6 o _ 506 2 ) :69 87

Q[}l; ég:vaév;: cginrracxs ) i ) A_ - _ ) 7_ ) ; o _ ,-_ B _ 7,_ — )
Jet fuel forward contracts, tonne o 423,500 88 270,900 30
Jetfuel oprions _ o _ L B o o
__Bought, tonne N 12,000 02 _ 33,000 ot

Sold,ronne I T2,000 01 33000 09




33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following rransactions have taken
place with related parties

Sales of goods and services, EUR mull 2005 2004
_Subsidhares o .. 2283  _ __ 2064 _ _ _ -
Assocware;dﬂdertakmg_;_ o __; o o 7_ ____“____Q_Q__ o 686 _ .
Management ~ B . See 0O __ _
_Purchases of goods and services, EURmll -
Subsidiaries 3819 o . 3506 . _ -
_Assocated underakings o1 e T T
Managewers . ___ . _ _____«qe 00

Sales of goods and services executed with refated partes correspond in nature to transactions carried outwith mdependent parties

The consohdared financial statements do not conrain any open recewable or labidity balances with related parties The financial state-
ments of separate comparies contain receivable and hab:lity relauonships between subsidiaries and berween the parent company
and subsidiaries

No credit fosses from related party transactions have been recognised in the final year or the companson year
Cuarantees and other commitments made on behalif of related parties are presented in note 32
The employee benefits of management are presented in note 7 No loans have been granted ro management personnel

34 DISPUTES AND LITIGATION
On 31 December 2005 the followang significant dispuzes were pending

The bankrupt’s estate of Flying Finn Oy has raised an action for recovery against Finnair based on Sections 5 and 10 of the Act on Re-
covery into a Bankruptcy Anaction demands that total of 373,539 50 euros be returned to the bankrupt’s estate Finnair has disputed
the demand The case s pending w the Helsinki Disinet Court

Transpert Oy has presented Finnair with a 500,000 euro damage compensation daim following the termination of a subcontracung
agreement Finnairhas disputed the claim

A damage compensation claim against Finnair Ple and Finnair Cargo Oy forlost cargo 1s snfi pending in the District Court of Helsinki
The amount claimed 15 approximately 1 million euros

A DVT (deep-vein thrombosis) claim raised agarmst the company in Australia is sult pending Finnair Pic has not been informed of the
amount af the claum

No prowvisions have been made for disputes or hugavon

35 EVENTS AFTER THE CLOSING DATE

No events of greater importance have taken place at Finnair Ple after the closing date

36 TRANSFER TO IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As stated n note 2, these are the Finnair Group’s first financial statements prepared according 10 3FRS principles The adopuion of
IFRS reporung has changed the reported financial statement calculanions, the notes to the inancial statements as well as the ac-
counung principles i companson wath previous financial starements The accounting prinaiples presented in the notes have been
apphied 1o the financial year that ended on 31 December 2005, the campanson financial year that ended an 31 December 2004
and the opening IFRS balance sheer dated 1 fanuary 2004 (the Group's transition date to IFRS reporting, excluding standards 1AS
32 and IAS 33 On 29 Apnl 2005 Finnair Plc published a separate bulletin Effects of the Transition to IFRS Reporting Standards,
which presents a financial statement according to IFRS principles at 31 December 2004 and an opeming IFRS balance sheer for the
transipon date 1 fanuary 2004 Before the adoption of IFRS standards, the Finnair Group’s financial statements were prepared
according to Finnish Accounting Standards (FAS)

&
D

jaoday |Travedny



@D
()}

jacdey EiDUERLIy

 RECONCILIATION STATEMENT BETWEEN FAS INCOME STATEMENT AND IFRS INCOME STATEMENT

FAS FAS
pubhshed comparable IFRS
1 Jan-31 Dec FAS 1 ]an-31 Dec IFRS 1 Jan-31 Cec
EUR mull 2004 changes 2004  adjustments 2004 Note
Tumover 16984 96 _ 16888 s _eszs A
Producoon forown use . 1a 00 14 00 N4
_Otheroperamg ncome 267 __ _ 26 21 __ 01 240 B
_Share of result of associated comparves __ 06 ___00 _ __06 ___ 08 00 B
_Operating expenses 11,6087 122 13,5865 233 -1,5732 . c
_Depreciation and ;;palrn;er:l -1014 oo 1014 27 a4y D
_Operamngprofit 70 00 70_ 140 310 .
. Enanaaﬂnﬂ)ﬁ o o 162 ) 77670 162 83 225 ’ __F
Financial expenses i 7: o 270 e 0o 220 15 235 G
_Share of resg@ﬂ_sso_maied companies E o (1[5 00 06 _06 B
CProfitbeforetaxes _ M2 00 w2 4] T3 -
Income taxes 08 00  _ 08 56 48 H
Profit for the ﬁ:ar;:;l;e; o Tgﬂﬁ _ : i 7()?9 120 138 258 i
Share attributable to F:arem I - ) o
company’s sharenolders | ; nso_ 00 . s 138 L2386 .-
’ 02 06 02 00 02

Minority interests

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT BETWEEN FAS BALANCE SHEET AND IFRS BALANCE SHEET __

FAS IFRS IFRS

EUR miil 31 Dec 2004 adjustments 31 Dec 2004 Note
ASSETS o ] -
Non currentassets e o }
_Intangible assers S 368 7: oo 368 I
Tangible assets o ) 8658 g0 8738 _ ]
Holdings in a_s_séc@re_d c_o_mp_ames ) | L 32 00 ~ .32 K
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FAS IFRS IFRS
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Share captal S i 00 o2 o
Otherequryy L s4s1 263 5188 o
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
ON THE RECONCILIATION STATEMENTS

COMPARABILITY

In 2005 the Group has changed is accounting practice to con-
form with IFRS and for this reason the 2004 figures accord-
ing the Finnish accounting pracuice have been converted to be
comparable with IFRS The changes have not wfluenced the
operating profit presented, but net sales, other income and var-
les expense classes

A) TURNOVER

In IFRS reporung, turnover relatng to real-estate 1s reporred
in ather operating income, which has reduced turnover during
financial year 2004 by § 9 millor euros

B) OTHER OPERATING iINCOME

Other operating income in IFRS 1s smaller mainly for the reason
that in Finnish accounting practice other income includes profit
of 6 3 million euros from the sale of associated companies’
shares during financial year 2004 In IFRS reporting, profits from
avaidable-for-sale shares are reported in the group financial in-
coma after the operating profis Profit on the sale of assocrated
companies’ shares have realised a total of 6 3 million euros i
Q1/2004 The inclusion of turnover relating 1o real-estate 1n
other operaung incame increases iwby 5 9 mullion euros during
2004 As the resuli of a sale and lease-back agreement a finarice
lease has ansen on the basis of which sales revenue exceeding
the carrying amounrt is recognised as revenue during the pericd

of the lease Other operating income includes 0 2 million euros of
revenue recogmition In financial year 2004

C) OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

Under Finmish accounung pracuce Group peasion hzbiines have been
recognised according to local rules Insurance premiums relating to
pensions and Pension Fund contributions are treated as an annual
expense such that the pension hability under Finmsh accounting
pracuice has been covered in full The overall habiity of the Pension
Fund and the covering thereof has been preseated m the notes to the
financial statements With the adopuon of tFRS reporung, an ad-
ditiorial habiliy has been recognised in respecr of all defined-benefit
pension schemes The effect of IFRS pracuice has reduced personnel
expenses during financial year 2004 by 27 6 million euros and a recog-
mition of expenses in respect of the share bonus scheme 1n Q4/2004
has increased personnel expenses by 0 2 mithon euros

Other rental payments

The reducaon in other rental payments mainly results from sale and
lease-back agreements and lease agreements that are treated in tFRS
reporang as finance leases Unager Finmsh accounung practice, rental
expenses recagnised on the basis of these agreements amounted 1o
4 9 mithon euros during 2004 In IFRS reparting these costs have
been dded inio interest costs, which have been presented in finan-
cralitems, and capnal costs, which increase finance lease liabilities
in the balance sheer on the transition date in financral year 2004
these costs reduce debt
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Fleer materials and overhauls

The company has previously recogrused large-scale mantenance
of own aircraft as an expense 1n the month the maintenance 1s per-
formed In IFRS, 1n connection with the acquisition of aircraft, the
heavy maintenance component and the projected and completed
heavy maitenance of old aircraft 1s capitahsed separarely from
the value of the fusetage Maintenance capitalisauon is depreci-
ated on a straight-line basis during the maintenance period The
change of recognition pracoice has already been made 1 Finnish
accounting practice in 2004, for which reason IFRS practice and
FAS practice are convergent The company has recognised large-
scale maintenance of leased aircrafi as an expense in the month
the mamtenance is performed In IFRS mantenance expenses are
aflocated over the maintenance period in terms of an awcrafi’s
fuselage and engines Owing to the change of recognition prac-
uce, the fleet s matenal procurement and overhaul expenses have
grown by 2 1 milian euros dunng financial year 2004

Sales and marketing expenses

The change 1n markeung expenses results from a difference in
allocation practice in IFRS reporting and FAS reporung The ef
fect s to reduce markening expenses by 0 2 miflion euros duning
finanaal year 2004

D) DEPRECIATION

In IFRS, sale and lease-back of ground equipment as well as cer-
tain real-estate lease agreements have been interprered as finance
leases In IFRS these sold assets and real-estate covered by lease
agreements have been returneg 1o the batance sheet Onthe basis
of these agreements, depreciation has grown by 2 7 milhon euros
duning financial year 2004

E) SHARE OF ASSQCIATED COMPANIES’ RESULTS

In Finmish reporung practice, shares of associated companies’
resulis net of taxes are included i operanng profit In IFRS re
porung, shares of associated companies” results befare taxes
are reported after operating profit and the corresponding tax
share in 1axes

F) FINANCIAL INCOME

Net gains from available-for-sale shares

In IFRS reporung reahsed net gains in connection with the sale
of available-for-sale shares are presented as a separate item in
the financial income In Finnish accounung practice they were
presented in other operating mcome In 2004 financial income
includes a net gain from the sale of associated companies of 6 3
mullion euros, which has been realised in Q1/2004

FAS T RS IFRS
Fimancial income 1 Jan-31 Dec 2004 adjustments 1 Jan-31 Dec 2004
Interest income ¢o - - - 93
Divigend ncome o B _ 7 B — 7 - .. _08
Net gains ﬁor; s;;_fe_zsfag;)cuan;d coAnvaa;res ~ 83 - 63
pgherﬁpa_rlaal mcome— :_“ ’ R _ N _ 63
Toal ) 63 225

G) FINANCIAL EXPENSES

in IFRS pracuce, interest pard of 1 5 mullon euros on finance lease labiiues has also been recogmised in financial expenses durning

financial year 2004
T ’ o T ’ T oras 0 T RS IFRS
1 Jan-31 Dec 2004 adjustments 1 Jan-31 Dec 2004
nterest expenses _ _ o 117 _ 15 o132
Other hinanaial expenses -103 - - _,'19 g_,
Total s T - 220 ’ as 235

H) INCOME TAXES

In the transition to IFRS recognition pracuce a share of deferred
tax has been recogmised for alliterns adjusted, and its effect dur-
ing financial year 2004 15 a 5 6 mullion euro dererioration s the
result

1} INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Under Finnish accounung practice, goodwill has been calculated as
the difference of the acqusiuon price and the subsidiary s share

holders’ equity at the ume of acquisinon, which 1s ainbuted to
those asset iiems of the subsidiary from which the difference 1s
considered to result In {FRS reporung, the assets and habilinies
of an acquired subsidiary are valued at farr value at the ume of
acquisiton All of the company s goodwill consists of subsidiaries
acquired before 1 January 2004 Acquisition cost calculations have
not been adjusted, because no difference has arisen between IFRS
reporung and Finnish accounting pracuce Goodwill impairment
tesung will be conducted annually based on a umit’s recoverable



amount | financial year 2004 there was no need for goodwill
write off due to impairment tesung

J) TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Increases of 16 9 millon euros at the transition date of 1 Ja-
nuary 2004 result from sale and lease back and other finance
leases and decreases of 6 1 mihon euros from depreciation of
large scale maintenance capitalisation On the closing date cheir
effect was 8 0 million euros

K) HOLDINGS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

IFRS reporung of associated companies’ balance sheet values
conforms with Finmish accounting practice Aninvestment on
the date of acquisitron 1s recognised at the acquisition cost

L) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Under Finrmsh accounung practice, deferred 1ax assets are re-
concled with deferred tax habilives 1n IFRS reporting, part of
the deferred tax assers do not fulfit the nght of set-off against
deferred tax habiliies according to IAS 12, and they have been
presented as a deferred tax asset 1n the balance sheet Their
effect 1s to rncrease deferred tax assets in the balance sheet on
1 January 2004 by 8 6 mulhen euros and on 31 December 2004
by 7 8 million euros Anotherincrease of deferred tax assets by
19 6 million euros i the rransition to IFRS reporuing results from
temporary differences related 10 defined-benein pension habi-

Q) SHAREHOLDERS' EQUATY

lies, mamtenance capitalisation and maintenance allocation
At the closing date their effect was 13 4 million euros

M) INVENTORIES

In IFRS reporung a certamn proporuon of overhead costs 1s ca-
prealised in inventories in respect of production for own use and
work in progress In Finnish accounting practice fixed overhead
costs have not been capiralised in inventories In [FRS repor-
ung the value of inventories 1s based on an asset’s net realisa-
ble value while in Finmish accounung practce an obsotescence
deduction 1s made If necessary The effect of IFRS pracuce at 1
january 2004 has been to increase the value of inventories by
0 3 mihion euros and at the closing date to reduce their value
by 0 5 mithon euros

N) TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The reduction i trade recewvables and other recevables results
mainly from the different treatment of marketing expenses in
IFRS practice and Finmish accounuing practice In IFRS reporting
certarn marketing expenses are recogmised directly as an expense,
while in Finnish accounting pracuce they have been allocated
according to the expenditure for Income principle The IFRS
recognition practice has lowered the value of prepaid expenses
and accrued income on the apening balance sheet by 11 million
euros and at the closing date by 0 9 mill:on euros

Share
Share prermium  General Own  Retained Capual

EUR rmull capital  account reserve shares  earnings loan Total
_Shareholders’ Equity 31 December 2003, FAS 720 56 1477 3883 57 6193
Impactof transferto IFRS - S o - .

Mantenance capiralisatien _ 61 e

Maintenance allocacions _ 30 o
'P_en-gnoprg_l:gl:g_a[_lvons R N 374

Finance leasing } S 82 _

Others ] . I __ _
Deferred taxes ) _ . B B 164

Shareholders equity,

parent company’s shareholders 720 56 477 3483 57 5793
_Minorigy interest - L= - 12
_ Shareholders’ equity 1 January 2004, IFRS ] - o -~ .. 5805
_Translavon differences L o ___Gbo 00
_Dwidend distnbution _ o ) .. __ 85 _ -85
New ssue ) A ’ 01 7_ ) . . A
_Capralloan . o . S7_ 57
_Purchaseofownshares __ __ _ __ _ . __ ___ _ ___ __.23 23 29
Other changes 01 01

oni

1ao0day |uiduTuig



86

aiodoy jerouruiy

Share
Share premium

capital  account

_ Sharehotders’ equity 31 December 2004, IFRS _

Profit for the financial year

“Shareholders’ equity,

_ parent company s shareholders 721 57

Minoriry interest

General Own  Retained Capnal
reserve shares  earmings Joan Total
. me . e
1477 23 3631 00 5909
T 12"
5921

P} DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The nettng of deferred tax assets and liabilittes under Finnish
accountng practice has been cancelled In IFRS reporung de-
ferred 1ax assets are recognised in long-term recewables and
correspondingly deferred tax habilities have grown The change
n recogrition practice has increased deferred 1ax habilines by
8 6 muthon on transferning to IFRS reporting Ancther 3 2 million
euros of deferred rax liabilines on transferring to IFRS report-
ing results from temporary differences related to maintenance
atlocations and inventories

Q) PENSION OBLIGATIONS

Under Finmish accounung pracuce, Group pension habilives
have, as a rule, been recogmsed according to local rules On
transferring ro IFRS reporung, an addisonal hability has been
recogrised in respect of all defined-benefit pension schemes
Finnair has exercised the option granted by [FRS 1 to recognise
the accrued acivanial gains and losses of all pension schemes
1 the transition date balance sheer On transferring to IFRS
reporung, pension obligations grew by 37 5 milhon, 1o stand
at the end of the financial yearat $ 9 milhion ewros

R) INTEREST-BEARING AND OTHER LIABILITIES

In IFRS reporung certain finance leases, mainly sale-and-repur-
chase agreements 2nd some other leases have been recogrused
in the balance sheet, and they increase interest-bearing long-
term hiabihties on the transinon date by 24 9 miilion euros and
at 31 December 2004 by 21 5 mulhon euros

5) TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

The increase in trade payables and other habilives on transfer-
ring to {FRS 55 mamly due to defined-benefit pension schemes,
maintenance allocanons and a finance lease ansing as a result
of sale and repurchase agreement, based on which the sales
revenye exceeding the carrying amount 1s recognised as revenue
over the lease period

Anincrease 1n accrued expenses and deferred income has been
recognised, and the impact on the transition date in terms of
mamntenance allocatons i1s 3 0 million euros and in rerms of
allocated sales income 11 milhon euros The corresponding
items at the end of the financial year are 11 4 mithon euros for
maintenance allocations and 0 9 miliion euros for allocated sales
income Defined-benefit pensions schemes have been presented
as a separate item in the balance sheet

After the bulletin Effects of the Transiuon to IFRS Report-
ing Standards of 23 April 2005, a change 0 the tax rate of {FRS
adjustments amounung 1o 11 mallion euros has been recogmsed
by reducing tax assets and correspondingly the retained earn-
ngs of the previous year After the transinon bulleun, deferred
taxes attributable to the same tax reciprent have been netted in
accordance with IAS 12, paragraph 71 and stood ar 5§ 2 million
euros on 1 January 2004 and 4 4 million euros on 31 December
2004 Atthe same time, on 31 December 2004, a change in the
tax rate of IFRS adjustments amounting ro 11 millien euros has
been recognised by reducing deferred tax assets and correspond-
tngly the retained earnings of the previous year

After the transtnion bulletin, for long-term financral assets
at 31 December 2004, 6 3 miflion euros in hsted and unlisted
shares has been transferred to short-term financial assets

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT OF EFFECTS OF IN-
TRODUCING THE 1AS 32 AND |1AS 35 STANDARDS
Finnarr adopted the IAS 32 and tAS 39 reporting practices on
1 January 2005, at which ume the recognition pracuice fora
number of financial items changed The negative fair value of
derivatives qualifysng for 1AS 39 hedge accounting, 13 4 mil-
hon euros, was recognised in finanoal habilines and the equity
hedge reserve was reduced by the same sum Other negative
differences berween faw value and Finrush reporting pracuce
were recognised, namely 3 3 million euros to financial liabilicies,
retained earmngs decreased by 2 5 milhon evuros, reduced by
a tax liabih1y, and correspondingly deferred tax assets grew by
0 8 milion euro




37 PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL FIGURES

The figures presented below are not IFRS figures

FINNAIR PLC INCOME STATEMENT __

1 fan 2004-

EUR mill 31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2004
Turmover . _ . i} _dAsae _1,3570
_Producvonforownuse S - S — s
_Other operaung incerme o _. U 2 e . Y6
_ OPERATING INCOME - - - 1,509 & o 1,376
OPERATING EXPENSES L
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_Deprecigon . oS B Ny
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FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES o o 74 T T EN
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL

ON THE DIVIDEND

The Group’s distributable equity according to the financial statements on 31 December 2005 amounts to 352,565,811 72 euros,
while the parent company’s distributable equity totals 311,291,840 17 euros The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual

General Meeting that a dividend of 0 25 euros per share be distribured, a total of 21,701,028 25 eures, and that the remainder

of the distrburable equity be carried over as rerained earnings

Signing of the Report of the Board of Directors and the financial statements

Helsinki, 15 February 2006

Chnistoffer Taxell

Markku Hyvarinen Veli Sundback

Kart Jordan

Helena Terho Kaisa Vikkula

Jukka Hienonen
President & CEQ of Finnair Plc

AUDITORS REPCRT
To the shareholders of Finnair Pic
We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements
and the administranion of Finnair Pic for the period 1 January-
31 December 2005 The Board of Directors and the Managing
Director have prepared the repart of the Board of Directors and
the consolhidated finanaal statements prepared in accordance
with Internanional Financial Reporung Standards as adopted by
the EU and the parent company’s financial statements prepared
i accordance wath prevaiting regulations in Finland, that include
the parent company’s balance sheet, ncome statement, cash flow
statement and the notes to the financial statements Based on
our audit, we express an opinian on the consolidated finanaal
statements, the parent company’s financial statements and on
the administration of the parent company

We have conducted the audit tn accordance with Finnish
Standards on Auditing Those standards require that we per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement An
audit sncludes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
the management as well as evaluating the overall financial stare-
ment presentatton The purpose of our audit of adrimistration
15 to examune that the members of the Board of Directors and

Helstnki, 3 March 2006

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd
Authorised Public Accountants

Eero Suomela
APA

the Managing Director of the parent company have complied
with the rules of the Companies’ Act

Consohidated financial statements

In our opinion the consehdated financial statements give a true
and fairview, as referred to in the International Finanaial Report-
ing Standards as adopted by the EU and defined in the Finrish
Accounting Act, of the consolidated results of operations as well
as of the financial position The consolidated financial stare-
ments can be adopted

Parent company’s financeal statements and administration

In our opiion the parent company’s financial statements have
been prepared m accerdance with the Finmish Accounting Act
and other rules and regulations governing the preparation of
financial statements in Finland The financial statements give a
true and fair view, as defined in the Finnish Accounting Ace, of
the parent company’s result of operations as well as of the finan-
cial posiion The financial statements can be adopted and the
members of the Board of Directors and the Managing Direcror
of the parent company can be discharged from Lability for the
penod audited by us The proposal by the Board of Direcrors
regarding the distribution of distrbutable funds 1s in compliance
with the Companies’ Act

Jyri Heikkinen
APA
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SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL

Shares and Share Capital
The registered share capital of the Company on
371 December 2005 was 73,783,496 05 euros,
consisting of 86,804,113 shares 740,036 shares,
amounting to 629,047 60 euros, which had
been subscnibed with share option nghts, were
booked in new issue of shares on 31 December
2005 These shares were registered in the trade
register on 19 January 2006 Each share has
one vote at the Annuat General Meeung The
nominal value of the share is 0 85 euros
The mymmum and maxmum amounts
of Finnarr Ple share capital are 60 million eu-
ros and 240 mithon euros respectively, within
the limits of which the share capial can be
raised or lowered without amending the Ar-
ucles of Association The Company's shares
were added on to the book entry securities
system In June 1993

Share Quotations

Finnaur Plc shares are quoted on the Helsink
Exchanges Since January 1995, they have also
been traded on the SEAQ (5Stock Exchange
Autamatic Quotation) system on the London
Stock Exchange

FINNAIR SHARE TRADE DEVELOPMENT
AND TRADE 2001-2005

Monthly trade Monthly average price,

EUR nuill euro
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Dividend Policy and the Payment
of Dividend
The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc propeses
to the Annual General Meetng that a dwvidend
of 0,25 euros per share, which 1s 34 3 % of the
earnings per share, will be paid for the financial
year 1 January - 31 December 2005

It 15 the aim of Finnair’s dividend policy
to pay on average at least one-third of the
earnings per share as dndend duringen eco-
nomic cycle The Company intends ro take
into account the Company’s earrmngs trend
and outlook, financing pesiwon and capital
needs for any given period

fncentive Schemes for Key Personnel
The Annual General Meeting on 24 August
2000 approved the proposal by the Board of
Directors to 1ssue share option rights to key
personnel of the Finnair Group The share
option rights are intended to form part of an
incentive and commitment scheme for Finnair
Group key personnel

The number of the share oprion nghts is-
sued was 4,000,000 Each opuion grants an
entitlernent to subscribe for one Finnair Plc
share The share subscription penod forthe A
opuon nights (2,000,600 units) commenced
on 1 May 2003 and for the B option rnights

FINNAIR PLC SHARE INDEX AND HELSINKI
STOCK EXHANGE INDICES

indices
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(2,000,000 units) on 1 May 2004 The share
subscription period for all option rights will
end on 31 August 2006

During the financial year 2003 there were
2,500 shares subscribed with option nights, dur-
ing the financial year 2004 there were no new
shares subscnibed with aprion rights and during
the financial year 2005 there were 2,784,956
shares subscribed with opuon nghts On 31
December 2005 a total of 1,212,544 shares
were avarlable for subscriptionwith 1,212,544
option nghts The option nghts accounted for
1 4% of the shares and vortes

The Board of Directors of Finnair Pic ap
proved a share-based incentive scheme forthe
Group’s key personnel on 18 June 2004 The
scheme 15 presented in the nute number 23 The
scheme has no nfluence on the woral number
of Finnaurshares Based on an authorization
gwen by the Annual General Meeting on 23
March 2005 the Company, as a part of the
share-based ncenuve scheme, delvered 37,800
shares to the key personnel in Apn! 2005

Board of Directors’ Authorization

The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc, based
on the Annual General Meeting’s resolutian
on 23 March 2005, has the authorization to
decide on the acqusition of the maximum of

SHARE PRICE DEVELOPMENT COMPARED
WITH OTHER EUROPEAN AIRLINES
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3,500,000 of its own shares, which is less than
5% of the Company’s share capital as weH as
to decide on the transfer of the maximum of
3,922,800 of s own shares The authorization
1s vahd unul 22 March 2006

Based on the authonizauon, as part of the
share-based incenuve scheme of the key per
sonnel, the Company delwered 37,800 shares
to the key personnel in April 2005

Based on the authorization the Company,
beginning on 1 September 2005, by 31 December
2005, acguired the total of 150,000 of its own
shares The unused authonzauon to acquire
own shares amounted to 3,350,000 shares on
31 December 2005

On 31 December 2005 the Company awned
intotal 535,000 of its own shares, which s 0,6% of
the shares Of the own shares 422,800 shares had

been acquired during the financial year 2004

The Board of Directors has no other au
thorizations such as authorizavons for share
1ssues or for issuing convertible bonds orshare
opuons

Government Ownership

At the end of the financial year on 37 Decernber
2005 the Firnnish Government owned 57 0%
of the Company’s shares and votes On 20
June 1994, Parhament, simultaneously with
glvmg Its consent to reduce {hE GUVErﬂi’T\EHt:S
holding below two-thirds, decided that the
Government shall maintain a majority share
holdingin Finnair Ple Should the ssued share
opuon nghts be used for the subscrpoion of
Finnair Plc shares, the Government’s hotding
would be 55 8%

Share Qwnership by Management

On 31 December 2605, the Members of the
Company's Board of Directors and the President
& CEQ owned n total 14,250 shares, which
represents ¢ 02% of all the shares and votes

Share Prices and Trading

The Finnair Plc share was quoted at 11 98 euros
on the Helsinki Exchanges on the last day of
the financial year The total market value of the
Company’s shares was 1,039 9 million euros
{471 3) The highest trading price duning the
financial yearwas 12 15 euros (6 57) and the
lowest 5 56 euros (4 46)

Actotal of 32 2 mullion shares (21 3) were
traded on the Helsinki Exchanges for a value
of 276 0 milion euros (114 9) during the fi-
nancal year 2005

__Shareholders by type as at December 31, 2005

Number of
Numbert of shares % shareholders %
Pubhc bodies (state, local goverment) 52,540,911 61 27
Reglsterfzg n ' the name ofa nominee o 716 614, 5047 - 19 - 1 i - o 77 )
 Outside Finland ) - W{{é}n 650 T 6 1
Households 3542,519 4 7,128 92
7___F_|nan£|§_! !nsrllu‘;c_-)"ns" ) ) 2 656,758 s 3 35 N
Private companies ) ) N ) 2_,655,171 ) | 2 2._5; | 3
_ Associations 7;; o ) . i 7;872775 1 7 68 : 1_7 B
Not converred into the book entry sysrem B __2KE ) B 7_ B )
Total ) i 86,804,115 100 7,562 100
*Fa;nvarr ﬁ‘a:q_uilslnion and dgll!e[yﬂfown ;}:ares T T B 7 -:71 1 ) ) -: ; i o
i 7 7Nu7m€er7 o I\l;mma\ Acquisition Average
Period of shares value/EUR value/EUR price/EUR
1 Jul-18 Aug 2004 422,800 359,380 2,275,666 49 538
12 Apr 2005 o 37,800 32,130 -209,838 54 555
1Sep 31 Dec 2005 o 180000 127,500 1,516,650 00 w0
e o 535,000 3,582,507 95 __ 670
" Breakdown ofshareholdmg_:;s—;;—ae—c_e;ll-:e—r—; 2.0(-); T - /s T T Tmm T T
Number of shares T T o ~ Sharefiolders " Shares
o100 3185 154,086
101 - 10 000 T © 4266 34561953
10001100000 o S s0 2,516,282
__100001-100cG00 T 488,586
__1000000- L T o4 55,214,077
_Regin the name of alJmlnee _7 - T D | 1?5,6111,534
__Not copxeﬂejﬂ?g}hg l_?_oo_k entry sy_stei— B | i 7_ S 77__7 e 24328
Total T - 7,562 86,804,113
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_ Finnaw Plc largest shareholders as at 31 December, 2005 o DIVIDEND PER YEAR
Number % of total Changes on = %5 of earnings
of shares  shares 37 Dec 2004
1 Srate of Finland _ 49,510,682 5704 0 EUR mill %
" 2 Burdaras T T T T _STWE ~ 587 ;S:O;IZT?—

3 Odin Norden T T T T TTEa36766 398 554,400 e iy - 100
4 TeprolaGroup T © 213500 243 803,700 ‘
_5QPFunds T T 32300 096 152800

_& Pohjola Funds T __ 693600 __ 08 737,600

7 Finnarr Plc le (own s shares) o o _ 535000 062 12200 _ 20 be-ono-

"8 Meste Ol P Penston Fund 448,620 052 7192@_

5 SStockQy 7 T z73poo 031 212,000
L()_Eal_eiM_utual Insurance Company/Mandatum 250 000 029 0_
1 I|m_almMﬂl&rle0ﬂ Insurance Co 224 200 026 224,200
2 FMFennofund T T T T "Taiseet 025 215,600 M .
75 AwaCepralfend | - 2003600 0330 84700
14 Saving Bank Finland | Fund o 184,100 022 4,300
15 EQS Small Giants Fund B . _ 179000 021 75000
__WQ Lenn_fa\_&u_wa\ Pension Fund _ _ _113 400 013 113,400 "
_ 17 tngman Finance O,rAb o ~__ . logpoo 01z _0 0
18 Veritas Pension Insurance Company __ _ _ toopgog _ 012 27_001 _
" 19 Finar Pension Fund 94,738 __an_ 0
20 Nordea Persion Fun_d_ - - - . m@_ - _OT_ - ﬁ} 160__ = The 2005 proposal of the Board of Directers to the AGM
- Regﬁmreg'm'T_h:_n;ﬁ ofa nﬁoﬁm;nei __ 76_,_6_1:1 ,55 T__QE 5 _2 56;{3‘
. Not converted into the book entry system o Ea,:ﬁ{ _ 0 E_, 1,057
COches T T " Sasaiss &3
_-:I‘g_tal o _ o 86,804,113 100 2,044,900 )
Share-Related Key Flguresﬁ _ T ___-—-—_ __‘_ o
- T - 2005 2004 2003 2002 2007
Ea[nun&s/share o 7E7UB___ _ 073 L 030 B 019 o 942_ o p@ .
Equty/shaie S oo ELR 773 _ 8% _Me o 78 722
Dnadend/share EUR 025 010 010 015 007
_ Dradend-to eammgc rato - - 7@3 e ?ﬁ ) ; 73379 B o -32 2 - 3}.%_ g’%} )
_P/Erauo o N 643 1836 2758 263 4452
P/CEPS. o .. _ 53 36 a4 o1 24
Effectwe d\\rldend yleld . B _ B 9&_:_:______2_2 } 18 o 19 40 _ 19
Number of shares and share prices ﬁiﬁ_—ii_w_“_ - e - o -—_7* - . e o
Average number of shares adJ_usled for share rssue Ec Eﬁglk 84,750,387 §:1,54_:371 84 740,792 84 739,098
Average number of shares adjusted for share rssue
{with diuted effect) _ pc _ B3150,441 86757963 86048385 83,663,479  B5,663,479
Number of shares ad]usted for share issue T T T ) o
at the end of the financial year R pe 87,544,169 84,759,213 = 84,745,663 84,743,163 84,739,098
Number of shares adjusted for share 1ssue - o -
_atthe end ot the financial year (with diluted effect)  pe 88,756,713 88,756,713 86,048,385 85,665,173 85,663 479
"~ Number of shares, end of the financial year_ pc 86,804,113 84,759,213 84,743 183_ 84,743,163 84,739,098
__Trading price, h|&f51-—_j o :_ EUR 1215 ; 657 5358 L jé]_? . _52_0 _
_Trading price, lowest o _EUR 55 446 . o_._.32 370 . 348
Marker value of share capiial De Dec 31 __ EURmi 1_049 ) _ 4 449 218 318
_No ofsharestraded " pe 32,4225 N,27748 17817180 _ 16,683,820 10,894,673
_No of shares raded as % of average no of shares % 3714 2510 2102 1970 3290




FINANCIAL INDICATORS

2001-2005

TIFRS IFRS FAS FAS FAS
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Turnover o EUR midl _ 1,871 1,682 . 1,558 Hes6 1,63] .
-change % e 12 g0 80 _ 16 295
CESTOA_ T T T EURma 173 CA8S T e T s T Twas
N relation to turnover e Lk e #_?_‘2__ _ 80 55 105 89
TOperatngprofic " TTTTTEOR mall TTed T3 ig 50 13
__Inrelztion to wrnover - I 44 18 Az 35 08
_Profit before extraordinarystems 7T T T TTTEOR ml T T - LA 7 U~ -
—nrelaentosurnover B 47 X814 33 0 85
Profi beforetaxes T T T B - - I = S
_T_J'elatl_g_rlt_q_turnover____ e . % A7 18 14 33 _____06s
Consolldated balance shect . e . e
“Non current assers L _EUR mull 927 947 9504 938 1,094
SI'I_Qr_r_E_e_r_nl_recelvab!es e 583 swm_ 522 434
_Assets toral | e e e __Lsb0 435 1480 1508
_Sharchalders equity and mmnoruy mterests T FURm s & s e
biabiities, toral e 909 794 831 890
_ Shareholders® eggy_ggd__\_xglg_;l@gsﬂora? e 3500 1

Gross capital expenditure

Gross capnal expenditure

Return on Eq__l:y!ROE) e 43
Return _gg_c_gpltal employed (ROCE) o % 61
Average capital employed _ . EUR mull o 80 881
Increase in share capical T EUR mll B 2 4]
Dwidend for the financial year _ TTTTREUR M - 22 8
Earmng_share I T EUR - B 073 030
Earn:ngs_/share adjusted for optlcn nghts {(with diiuted effect) EUR 071 030
Equl_ty_f_sﬁa_r_e_________ e — EUR .7 697
Dwdendfshave™ e EUR 025 010
Dudendfearnings — T o # .34 330,
Effective dvmdend vield B — % 21 18
_P/CEPS R e 53 36
Cash flow/fshare -w‘ D EUR 22 i5
" P/Erato . _ - 16 43 18386 2765 & T
TEquity ratio - - T Ty T 432 402 344 343 T
 Met debt to- eqiy((.]earmg) ~ % 251 31 29 31 346
__Ac_ijggt_ed__(]earmg % = 668 _ 10z5 1027 820 _Tee
Interest bearing debt . e EUR il B 263 274 277 _322 427
Uquid funds EUR mill___ 418 798 294 302 215
Met miterest beanng debt e EUR mwll U Ass 24 e . 30 oz
n relagion 20 turnover % _ 20 [ o 12 130
Ntl ﬁnancn_g INcome ( )/ exprenses { ) _ _ _EURmM 6 -1 3 . _ .8 —_—h
in relation to turnover e % 0 3 41 . 02 G3 03 _
_Net inrerest expenses e — EUR mill I 3 2 5 -4
in relation to turnover % B -0 2 02 01 03 03
_ Operauonal cash flow EURmdi o192 B0 01 152 140
Operanonat cash flow in relanon to turnover % 10 3 77 65 92 86
Average number of shares adjusted
for share 1ssue number of 85,349,921 84,750,387 84,743 371 84,740,792 84,739,008
Average number of shares ad)usted for share issue
{wth diluted effect) number of 88,150,441 66,757,963 B6048,385 85,663,479 85663475
Number of shares adjusted for share 1ssue
atthe end of the financal year number of 87,544,169 84,759,213 B4,745,663 84,743,163 £4,739,098
Number of shares adjusted for share 1ssue N
at the end of the financial year (with diluted effect) number of 88,756,713 88,756,713 B6,048,385 B5,665173 85,663,472

Personnel an average

3247 9533 9 og1 10,476 10,847

The number of personnel are averages and adjusted for part ume employees

7 The dridend for 2005 15 a proposal of the Board of Directors te the Annual General Meering
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CALCULATION OF KEY INDICATORS

EBITDAR = Operaung profit + depreciation + aircraft lease rentals

EBITDA = Qperating profit + depreciation

Result bef t d T - taxes
Return on equity in per cent (ROE) _ e ore extraoranary ems x 100
Equity + minority interests {average of beginning and end of financial year)

Capital employed = Balance sheet total non interest bearng habilities

Result befote extraordinary items + nterest and other financial expenses 100
= x

in per cent (ROCE Capital employed (average of beginning and end of financial vear
p p ploy 2 2 g ¥

Rerurn on capital employed

Result before extraordinary items +/  minolity Interests  taxes

Earrmings h Eure =
ngs per share (Euro) Ad)justed average number of shares during the inancial year

Equity
Nurmnber of shares at the end of the financial year, adjusted for the share 1ssue

Equity per share (Euro) =

Diwvidend per share
Dindend per earnings in per cent = x 100
Earmngs per share

Dividend per share

x 100

Effective dwidend yield in per cent
4 P Adjusied share price at the end of rhe financaial year

Share price ar rhe end of the financal year

P/CEPS =
Cash flow from operanions pe) share

Cash flow from operations

Cash fl lare (Furo =
Ash flow pec share {(Furo) Ad)justed average number of shares duning the financial year

Share price at the end of the financial year

Price per earmings =
P & Earnings per share

Equity + minonty interests
Equity ratio in per cent = x 100
Balance sheet toral advances receved

Interest bearing debt hiquid funds
Gearing, % = x 100
Equity + munority interests

Interest bearing debt + 7 x annual aircraft leasing pa nts - hquid fund
Adjusted gearing, % = E o2 SpaylEris mue s x 100
Equity + minonty interests

Cperating profit from operavons = Operaung prohit excluding capital gains and changes i fair value of derivatives




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Gioup structure

The parent company of the Finnair Group
is Finnair Ple, which has 18 subsidiaries, the
most significant of which are Finland Travel
Bureau Ltd, Matkatoimisie Oy Area and Fin-
nair Catering Oy Other notable subsidiar-
res are Oy Aurinkomartkar-Suntours Ltd Ab,
Finnair Aircraft Finance Oy, Finnar Cargo
Oy, Northport Oy and Finnair Facilities Man

agement Oy The Finnair Group’s atrlines
are, in addition to the parent company, Aero
Airlines AS and the Swedish company Nordic
Airlink Hotding AB The Finnair Group’s 22
business units and subsidiaries are organ

1sed into four divisions Scheduled Passenger
Traffic, Leisure Traffic, Aviation Services and

Travel Services

Annual General Meeting and exercis-
ing of voting rights at the Annual Gen
eral Meeung
Ulnmare authority in Finnair Plc is exercised
by the company’s shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting The Annual General Meeting
is tonvened by the company’s Board of Direc
tors In accordance with the Companies Act
the Annual General Meeting decides on, among
other things, the following matters
= the number, elecuon and
remuneration of the Board
of Directors
+ the number, election and
remuneration of the auditors
= the approval ofthe financial
statements
+ the distribution of dvidends
+ theamendment of the Arucles
of Associauon

The Articles of Association of Finnair
Plc de net contain any redempuion clause
ner any restrictuons on vouing rights The
company has one series of shares

Board of Directors

Composuan and term of office

The Board of Directors of Finnar Plc consists
of a chairman and at least four and ar most
six members The Annual General Meetng

elects the Chairman and the Members of the
Beard of Directors for one yearara ume The
Board of Directors elects a Vice Chairman
from among 1ts members

On 23 March 2005 the Annual General
Meeting of Finnan Ple elecred Christoffer
Taseli as Chairman of the Beoard of Directors,
and as Members of the Board Samuh Haa-
pasalo, Markku Hyvarinen, Kari Jordan, Vel
Sundback, Helena Terho and Kaisa Vikkula
All members of the Board are independent
and from eutside the company The Board
of Directors’ term of office expires at the
end of the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 23 March 2006

Samuli Haapasalo resigned from the Board
on 22 June 2005 following his appomtment
as Director Genera! of the Finavia

Doties and meetnygs
The Boaid of Directors 1s responsible for
the company’s operanions and finances, it
convenes the Annual General Meeting and it
prepares the matters to be dealtwith at the
Annuat General Meeting The Board of Direc
tors1s also responsible for implementing the
decisions of the Annual General Meeting

The Board of Dnectors appoints and dis
musses the Prestdent and CEO and decides
on his salary The Board of Directors also
apponts and disrisses the Deputy 1o the
President and CEQ The Board of Directors
selects the members of the Group’s senior
management and decides on their terms of
employment, taking mio account the gudelines
of the personnel strategy and remuneration
system in accordance with the company's
principles of corporate governance The Board
of Directors s responsibie for ensunng that
the company’s accounts, budget monitoring
systems and nsk management are arranged
in accordance vath the company s principles
of corporate governance

The Board of Directors s also responsi
ble for ensuring thar the openness and fair-
ness referred 1o 1in the company’s principles
of corporate governance are implemented
in the informarion given in the company s
financial statements

The company’s business name 1s signed by
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the
President and CEQ and the deputy CEC each
separately or two members of the Board of
Direcrors together The Board of Directors grants
and revokes rights o sign the business name
as well as powers of procuration The holders
of powers of procuranion sign the business
name two together or each separarely with
one member of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors meets on average
8-10 umes peryear In 2005, the Board of
Directors held 13 meerings, of which three
were conducted as conference calls The aver-
age attendance percentage of the members
of the Board of Directors at the meetings
of the Board was 95

The President and CEOQ of Finnair Ple, or
a senior member of Finnair Group manage
ment nominated by the President and CEO,
acts as the presiding officer ar meenings of
the Board of Directars The Finnair Group s
SVP, Admunistration and Human Resources
acted as secrerary to the Board of Directors
in 2005 The Board of Directors evaluates
its working pracuces regularly

The Charter of the Board of Directors
can be viewed at Finnain Group’s Inzernet
site www finnawr com/investor

Committces
The Board of Directors has established a
Salary and Appointmients Commitiee as
well as an Audit Commuttee The Salary
and Appoimmens Committee consisted
of Chairman of the Board Christoffer Taxell
as well as Members of the Board Kar Jor
dan and Samuli Haapasalo {unul 22 June
2005} President and CEO Keyo Suila acted
as the presiding officer The commutree met
twice 1n 2005

The Audit Comnnittee consists of Markku
Hyvarinen as chairman as well as Helena Terho
and Kaisa Vikkula as members President
and CEO Keijo Suila acts as the presiding
officer The commutree met twice in 2005
The Finnarr Group’s SVP, Administration
and Human Resources acted as secretary
to the both committees The Committee
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Charters can be viewed at Finnair Group's
Internet site www finnair com/investor

Remuneration and other benefits
The monthly remuneration and attendance
allowances decided by the Annual General
Meeung for Members of the Board of Direc-
tors in 2005 were
+ Chairman s monthly
remuneration 3,500 euros/month
+ Vice Chairman’s menthly
remuneration 2,000 euros/month
+ Member of the Board’s monthly
remuneranon 1,800 euros/momh
+ Auendance allowance 500 euros/
meeling/perscen

The Board of Directors are enurtled to a
daily allowance and compensanion for travel
expenses in accordance with Finnair Ple’s
general travel rules Inaddinien, Members
of the Beard of Directors have a limited
nght to use 1D tickets i accordance with
Finnair Pic s tD ucket rules

The members of Finnair Pic’s Board of
Directors were paid monthly remuneration
and attendance allowances Lotalling 183,860
euros in 2005

Chief Execurive Ofticer and Deputy
Chief Executive Oflicer
Finnawr Ple has a Chief Bxecutve Officer, whose
task 1s to manage the company s operations
according to guidelines and instructions is
sued by the Board of Directors The Board of
Directors appoints and distmsses the Chief
Executive Officer and decides on his terms
of employment The Board of Directors also
appownts and dismisses the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer In 2005, Finnair Pic s Chief
Execurive Officer was President and CEQ
Kenjo Suila and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer was Henrik Arle, EVP Scheduled Pas-
senger Traffic Jukka Hienonen succeeded
Keijo Suifa as the company s President and
CEOQ on 1 January 2006

President and CEO Keyo Suila was paid
atotal of 831,203 euros in salary, bonuses
and fringe benefits in 2005 EVP Henrk Arle

was paid a total of 243,866 euros in salary,
bonuses and fringe benefits 1in 2003

President and CEQ Keyo Suila retired an
31 December 2005 Jukka Hienonen ook over
as Finnair Plc’s President and CEQ on 1 Janu
ary 2006 Before joining Finnair, Hienonen
was Executive Vice President of Stockmann
Oy) Abp with responsibility for the deparz-
ment stores group EVP Scheduled Passen
ger Traffic, Mr Henrik Arle was appointed
Deputy CEQ as of 1 January 2006

The Chief Executive Officer and the Dep
uty Chief Executive Officer have the right to
renre a1 the 60 years of age on a full pension
of 60 per cent of pensionable salary The
Chief Execunive Officer’s and the Deputy
Chief Executive Officer s contracts may be
terminated with a period of nouice of six
months Inaddition 1o salary for the pen-
od of nouce, they are enuitled to severance
compensation equivalent to 12 months sal
ary, if the contract 1s terminated for reasons
independent of them

Management Group
Unul the end of 2005 the Finpair Group
had a Management Group consisting of
President and CEC Keqjo Suila (Chanman)
and members Eero Ahola, Maun Annala,
Henrk Arle, Hannes Bjursiom, Christer
Haglund, Lasse Heinonen, Juha Kinnunen
(unul 31 January 20053, Anssi Komulaimen,
Antero Lahtinen (as of 1 May 2005), Tero
Palatsi, Mika Perho, Tero Vauraste and
Jarmo Vilenius

The Management Group meets 8-10 imes
a year and 1ts tasks include the handling of
Group wide development projects as well
as Group-level policies and procedures in
addition, the Management Group 1s kept
informed about, among other things, the
Group's and business area companies’ busi
ness plans, financral performance as welt
as matters to be dealt with by Finnair Ple’s
Board of Directors, in the preparavon of
which it participates

Matters relating to the remuneratton
scheme of members of the Management
Group are considered n the Board of Di-

rectors’ Salary and Appointments Commit
tee Deasions are made by the companv’s
Board of Directors Management incentive
bonuses are determined annually based on
the company's earnings per share, business
urnut quality and process indicators as well
as personal performance appraisals The
bonus can be equivalent at most to four
months’ basic salary

The opuen scheme for Group key persen
nel was replaced in 2004 by a share-based
incentve scheme The incenuive scheme s
based on earnings per share and return on
capital employed, whose targei levels are
established by the Board of Directors an-
nually

Finnan Pld’s Mapagement Board
Management Board of Finnair Ple consists of
the above mentioned Senior Vice Presidents
of business areas and key business units plus
three employee representatives

Changes in the Management Group
after 31 [Yecember 2005
The posimon of Finnair’s Accountable Man
ager has been redefined The Accountable
Manager 1s responsible for the Airline Opera-
tor’s Ceruficate and other operating hcences
granted by the authonities As of 1 jJanuary
2006, Fmnair Plc s Accountable Manager
% EVP Scheduled Pas<enger Traffic, Depury
CEO Henrik Arle

Changes took place i the Management
Group following the retirement of Eero Ahola,
SVP Corporate Strategy and Business De
velopment, on 31 December 2005 Jarmo
Vileruus, SVP Finnair lechnical Services, SVP
Finnair Faciliiies Management as of 16 Janu-
ary 2006 Kimmo Soini has been appointed
SVP Finnair Technical Services

Finnair SVP Admimistration and Human
Resources Tero Palatsi resigned from Fin-
nair as of 15 February 2006 SVP Lesure
and Travel Services Maun Annala will rexire
on 1 March 2006 and will be succeeded by
Kaisa Vikkula Ms Vikkula resigned from
Finnair Plc's Board of Directors on 16 Feb-
ruary 2006



The number of members in the Manage-
ment Group was reduced as of 1 January
2006 The members of the current Manage-
ment Group are President and CEO jukka
Hrenanen (chawmany, Deputy CEQ Henrk
Arle, CFO Lasse Heinonen, SVP Commercial
Drision Mika Perho, SVP Finnarr Techmi
cal Services Kimumo Sotnu, SVP Letsure and
Travel Services Kaisa Vikkula

Cotporate governance

of subsidianics

The members of the boards of directors
of the most significant subsidiaries are se
lected from individuals belonging to Fin-
narr Group management as well as from
representatives proposed by the person-
nel groups The key tasks of the boards
of directors of subsidianies are sirategy
preparauon, approving the opetatonal
plan and budget, and deaiding on invest-
ments and commirments within the im-
its of instructions ssued by the Boatd of
Directors of Finnarr Plc

Auditors and monitoring
Audirors
The company has at least two and at most
four auditors elected by the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting The auditors rerm of office
1s the company’s financial year and the
auditors duties end at the conclusion of
the Annual Ceneral Meeting following the
meeung of their election At least one of
the auditors must be an authonised pubiic
accountant or an auihonsed accounung
firm approved by the Central Chamber
of Commerce

Finnair Ple s Annual General Meeting in
2005 elected two regular audirors, namely
Autharised Accounung Firm Pricewater-
houseCoopers Qy and APA lyr Heikkin
en APA Matn Nykanen and APA Tuomas
Honkamahi were elected as deputy auditors
The audiors of Finnair Group subsidiaries
are mainly PricewaterhouseCoapers firm
auditors or auditors employed by them

In 2005 the Group’s auditors were
paid auditing fees rotalling 225,000 eu-

ros Finnan Plc alse paid auditors 45,000
euros for services (taxauon and IFRS con-
sulung) unrelated to the staturory auditing
of the accounts

Monitering and repeorting system
The principal task of the staturory auditis
ta verify that the financial statements gwve
accurate and suffictent informanen about
the Group's result and financial position
fur the financial year The zuditors report
their findings to the Board of Directors once
per year and submit an auditors’ repori to
company’s sharehelders in connection with
the annual financial statements

The company has a Risk Management
Steering Group, chaired by the President and
CEQ, whose task is to assess and ensure that
the Group's risk management, monitonng
and management pracesses are sufficient,
appropriate and effecuve

The Board of Directors of Finnaw Plc
has approved principles of internal mom
woring, which are applied within the Group
Internal auditing e responuible for fulfilhing
the monitonng and auditing obligation laid
down in the Companies Act

Internal audiung asststs in verifying the
integrity of transactions and the accuracy
of informanon in internal and external ac-
counting and i confirnung that controls are
exercised effectively, property 1s maintained
and operanions zre conducted appropriately
in accordance with the Group s objectives
Internal auditing also participates in the au-
diting of Finnarr Ple subsidaries’ accounts
in collaboration with external audiung The
internal audiong priorines are determined
in accordance with the Group’s nsk man-
agement strategy

The fulfilment of fnancral targers 1s mon)-
tored by a system of Group-wide reporting
The reporting encompasses realised data
and up-to-date forecasts for a rolling 12-
month period The accurnulatian of finan-
cial adaed vatue 1s monitored monthly in
an internal reporting process The Group’s
traffic performance 1 published 1 a monthly
stock exchange bufletin

Risks arising from operations in relation to
property, disruprien, damage and habihicy
risks have been coverea by appropriare in-
surances

Covernmg provisigns

Finnair Ple adheres 10 vald legistation, prov

sions issied under such legislaton and the
company’s Articles of Assoclation Further

more, in 15 acovities Finatr Pic comphes
with the recommendations of the Helsinky
Stock Exchange, the Central Chamber of
Commerce and the Confederation of Finnish
Industry and Employers on the administra-
ton and management of isted companies
as well as insider rules

Company rnsaiders
According to the Secuntres Markers Acr,
the Finnair Group's msiders are divided into
permanent and temporary msiders

Permanent nsiders are further divided
into those entered in a public insider regis
ter and those entered in a non-public com
par\ywpec&ﬁc mnader I'Qg\‘vt(‘f

Temporary insiders are indwrduals who
receive insider information during the imple-
mentation of some specific task (project)
They are entered into the non public com
pany spe(‘lﬁc I‘Egl\‘er, namely 2 proJecr «pe
cific subregister

Finnatr Plc s permanent, public insiders
include members of the Finnair Plc s Board of
Directers, the Chiet Executive Officer and his
deputy, those who report derectly the Chief
Execunive Officer, and auditars, including
the auditor of carrying chief responsibility
for the fiim of auditors

The permanem company specific inad
ersinclude staff representanves participat
ing 1n the work of Finnair Ple’s Management
Board, the maraging directors of Armadeus
Finland Oy, Matkatormiste Qy Area, Fin
land Travel Bureau Lid, Oy Aunnkomathar

Suntours Lid Ab, Finnair Travel Services

Qy, Finnair Faailities Management Oy and
Finnair Awrcraft Finance Oy, the secretar-
s to the CEO and CFQ, company fawvers
and internal auditors, those responsible for
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financial commuaications, the Finance and
Ecenomics Deparcment’s vice presidents,
assistant vice presidents, finance managers,
economics managers, and the financial man
agement and supervision planning manager,
the vice presidents of Finnair's Commer-
aal Bvision and the Vice President Leisure
Flights, the depariment managers aealing
with employment affairs and HR services,
and other indivduals separately decreed by
Finnair’s Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors of Finpair Plc
has approved Finnarr Plc’s insider guide-
lines, which contain guidelines for pubhic
and company-specific insiders and speci-
fy the orgamisation and procedures of the
company’s insider controls  The company’s

wisider guidelines have been distributed to
allinsiders

The legal affairs department is responsi-
ble for the conrent of the insider guidelines
Comphance with the insider guidehines s
monitored by the economics and fiance
department The company opetates a re
stricuon on trading, which apphes to in-
siders’ trading i the company shares or
I securiuies granung entirlement 1o shares
far 30 days before the declaration of finan
cial results

Finnair Plc’s insider register 1s maintained
by Finmish Central Securities Depository Ltd
Up-to-date details of insiders’ sharehold-
ings can be viewed at Finmish Central Secu
rues Depository Lid's premuses n Helsinks

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management in Finnarr s a Group
management responsibility Risk man
agement measures are directed primarly
at risks that threaten the tulfilment of the
Group’s business objectives To expiow
business opportumues Finnair is prepared
to take controlled and calculated nisks In
contrast, in flight safery matrers Finnair
takes no risks

Firnair’s risks are classified 1o stra
tegic, operational, finanoial and acaident
risks The Board of Directors and the Chief
Erecutive Officer are respanaible for the
Group s risk management strategy and
principles as well as for the management
of richs that threaten the fulfilment of <tza
tegic objectives The Senior Vice Presidents
of business units and the Managing Direc
tors of subsidiary companies are respon
sible for nsk managementin their areas of
responsibidity

Operatuing envitonment risks

Demand for passenger and cargo traffic
has been influenced most by competinon in
the industry as well as vanous unexpected

events, such as terronism, environmental
ac aidents and eprdermcs The current nend
clearly indicates that compettiveness m
the air transport sector depends on how
flexibly the company can react and adapr to
unexpected events, changes in demand and
to a changing comperitive environment

A critical factor for operational flex-
ibility +s the adjustment of fixed costs to
fluctuabons n demand Moreover, the com-
pany's abihty to react quickly in adjusting
capacity, routes and costs to correspond
w changing demand as well as econamic
and security conditions 1s also an essential
factor in maintaining the its profitability
During the past few years, Finnair has im
plermented several projects that have in
creased structural fleaihiny, and more of
these are planned for the future

Preparing for epidemics 15 part of Fin
naw's crisis management planming Finnair
actively monitors and conunuously analy
ses the situavon with regard to epidemics
throughout the world The company takes
various measures to prepare 1self for any
worsening of the situatnion

at the address Urho Kekkosen katu § Cand
on the company’s website at the address

www finnair com/investor

Corporate Governance update

The Finnair Corporate Governance seciion
15 updated regularly and can be viewed on
the company’s website at the address www
finnawr comfinvestor Finnatr Ple's website
15 published in Finnish and English The
printend and the electronic annual report
as well as the interim reporis are also pub
lished m Swedish

Fianir will defend ris operaung
nghis
An awline demiciled in the European Union
can gperate freefy within the enure area of
the Union To date Finland, like other Eu
ropean countnes, has negouated bilateral
operanng agreements with countries outside
the Eurepean Union

In future, regulation at the European
Union fevel will bring the negotation of ava-
non agreements between countries inside
and outside the European Union under the
European Comnussion Existing bilateral
operaung agreements will remain in force
in the new siruauon

As a negovating party the Union s sirong
er than an individual counery and thus can
strengihen the posiuon of Buropean arr
lines when negotiating operating rights In
some cases this may have an adverse impact
on Finnaw and may weaken the company's
compentive posiuon in relation te other
European arrhnes Finnair for its part will
endeavour o mfluence aciwely the parties
who negotiate operaung nights in order to
safeguard ns interests



The company's operanons are subject 1o leg
islative changes, ra regufations and 1o changes
in airpori charges and tases on beth national
and international levels Possible changes
are acpively monitored by the company and
an effort made to influence them via airhine
industry bodies, such as the International
Air Transport Associanon {(IATA) and the
Associatuon of European Airlines (AEA)

Market risk
The ar transport business is sensitive to both
cycheal and seasonal changes Competition
in the sector s intense and the dechne in
average ticker prices has been considerable
due 1o over-capacity and the contnually
changing market sitwation Airlines are cut-
ung therr prices in order to increase volumes,
achieve sufficient cash flow and maintain
market share

A change of one percentage unitin the
average pnice level of scheduled passenger
traffic services affects the Group's operating
prafit by around 10 million euros Corre
spondingly a change of one percentage unit
in the {oad factor of scheduled passenger
traffic services also affects the Group's op-
erating profit by over 10 million eures

Finnan manages the residual value risk
rilated to aircraft ownership by leasing ap-
provmately half of the fleet under operaning
lease agreements of different durations Awr-
craft leasing also allows for flexible capacity
contralun the short and tong term

Rehabiny of fight operations
Rehab:lity 1s an essential prerequistte for op-
erating successfully in the airline industry The
air transport business, however, 1s exposed
to various disruptive factors such as delays,
bad weather and sirikes As well as thewr
1mpact on operational and service qualy,
ar vraffic delays atso merease costs
Finnair invests cantinually in the overall
quality and punctuality of its operanonal ac
uvites The Nemwork Control Centre brings
together all the critical paroes for flight op-
erations, thus enabling the mast effective
overall sofutions to be implemented Finnair

Techrical Senices’ rehabihty and dverse ex
peruse as well as its detailed speafication
of technical funcnons ensure the reliability
of fight operations

Furthermore, in operational actmities
the contribution of pariners and interest
groups is essenual Franair monitors the
quahty of external supphers withim the
framewaork of standards specified in ad
vance and through regulations prescribed
for Aight operavions

According to statisuics compiled on Euro
pean network airlines, Finnair was the most
punctual arhne in Europe in 2005 on the
basis of fhght arrwval punciuabny

Risk of loss or damage
Management of nsks relating 10 loss or damage
1s dwvided into two marn areas flight saferv
and corporate security Development work
in these areas 15 coordinated by the flight
safety and corporate secunty departments
Risk managementin this area encompasses,
for example, risks to flights, people, informa
tion, property and the environment as well
as habilty and loss-of business rishs, and
insurance cover The priority m the manage-
ment of rishs relating to loss or damage is on
nsk prevennion, but the company prepares
for any possible emergence of risks through
effective situation management prepared
ness and nsurance

Finnair actively monitors the effects of
the company’s operations on gnergy con-
sumpuion, enussions and noise values Finnarr
pubhshes annually a separate Environmental
Reporr, which includes measures and key
figures for the assessment of ervironmen-
tal efficiency

Operanonal nsk

Finnair s operations are based on a rigorous
flight safery culture, which s maintained
through continuous and long-term flight
safery work The company has prepared
an operational safety pohicy, for which the
company’s Vice President, Flight Permics
and Operaung Licences 15 responsible for
implementing Every «ubcontractor working

directly or ndirectly with the Group's em
ployees or light operanons must underrake
to comply with the policy

When operational decisions are made,
fight safuty always has the highest prionity
in relarion to orher facrors thar influence
decision-making Flight safery 1s an inte
gral mechamsm of alf acoviuies as well as
a required way of operating not only for
the company’s own personnel, butalso for
subcontractors

The man principle of flight safety work
1S NoR-punitve reporing In the way tend-
ed by the Aviation Act and the company’s
guidehnes The purpese of reporung s
to find reasons, not to assign blame The
company, however, does not telerate wil-
ful acts contrary to guidelines, methods or
preseribed working pracuices Decision-mak
ing not directly related to operations must
also support the company’s objective of
acheving and maintaining & high level of
flight safety

Accident 1k
The management of occupational health and
safety1s dwerse and challenging, because the
Finnair Group operations are spread across
many fields of busmess Occupatonal safery
risks are known to be high in precisely those
argas services food industry, heavy aircraft
maintenance, warehousing and transport
- of which Finpatr’s cperations principally
consist

The frequency of work-related accidents
resuloing n aL least 4 days’ mcapacity was
in Finnair Group around 30 acadents per
mithon working hours During 2005 one
waork-related accident tesulted in a fatahy,
a Finnair Technical Services arcraft me-
charic died during a techaical check of an
aircraft cargo hold

The vision of occupanional safety ac
tvity 1s zero acaidents, towards which the
company 1s progressing wich unit levet in
termedrate targets Means of improveng oc-
cupational safety waclude idennfying and
evaluaung safety hazards in the warkplace
and preventing accidents and bazardous
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sitwatons Emphasis s also placed on the
invesugation of hazardous situations and
acodents

Informauon rechnology risk
The diverse use of informanion technology in
support of operations (s increasing Systems
vulnerability and the development of new
global threats represent a nsk factor n a
networked operating environment Finnair is
continually developing its suation manage-
ment preparedness for serious disruptions to
infarmation systems and communications
Such preparavtions have a direct impact on
iformanion technology and data security
costs

Developing informauion system solutions
and the IT environment requires conuinu-
ous investment Careful selection of exter-
nal partners in IT solunons alse 1educes

the rechnology risk The Group has gained
access to technological expernise through
the cooparanion of Finnair and {BM

The coordination of the Group’s infor-
maunon system architecture as well asits IT
purchases and strategres has been central-
1sed in the Group’s information manage-
ment department This brings synergy ben-
efits and improves cost efficiency through
economues of scale

Principies of financiaf rish
management

The nature of the Finnair Group’s business
operanons exposes the company to foreign
erchange, interest rate, credit and hquid
iy, and fuel price risks The Group’s policy
15 to imit the uncertainty caused by such
risks on cash flow, financial performance
and equity

Finangiai sk management:s based on the
risk management policy approved by the
Board of Directors in MNovember 2004, whnch
defines acceprable minimum and maximum
levels for each type of sk Financial risk
management is directed and supervised by
the Financial Risk Steering Group Pracuical
implementation of financial policy and rink
management have been centrahsed in the
parent company’s treasury department

Inits management of foreign exchange,
interestrate and et fuel positions the com-
pany uses a wide ranige of hedgimg instru-
ments and methods, such as forward con-
tracts, swaps and opuions

Financial risks have been described in
more detall in note 28 of the Nores to the
financaial statements

STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASES IN 2005

Stock exchange refeaves in 2003
23 Dec 2005

Finnair s finanaal reporung schedule 2006

Finnair commits to growth with long-hawl fleet modernisation

Finnawand Japan Airlines agree on code-sharing starung Decemba

Passenger load factor up 3 S points in Finnair scheduled traffic
Important partner for Finnair - fapan Arrlines seeks to join oneworld

Share subscripuons with the Finnair 2000 A and 2000 B warrants,

14 Dec 2005 Finnair scheduled traffic increased by 12 1 per cent
7 Dec 2005
5 Dec 20035
2 Dec 2005 Finhair renews European and domesnic fleet
30 Nov 2005
29 Nov 2005 Finnair launches route berween Helsimki and Delhi
22 Nov 2005 Malevinvited to join oneworld alliance
17 Nov 2005
i share caprtal and listing of shares
17 Nov 2005 HSE Finnair Oy) shares subscribed with eprion nghrs
16 Nov 2005 Aurnkomatkar's Time Heinonen Lo retire
10 Nov 2005
S Nov 2005
250¢r 2005
12 Oct 2005 Finnair scheduled traffic up nearly ten percent
11 Ocr 2005
11 Oct 2005 HSE Finnair Oy shares subscribed with opution nights
6 Oct 2005 Finnair adds capacity te Asran traffic
3 Qer 2005
3 Oce 2005

23 Sepr 2005

Finnarrsells apartment buildings close to Helsinki-Vantaa arrport
Finnarr places order for Embraer simulator

Straumur-Burdaras Investment Bank holding in Finnar has exceeded ten per cenr

Share subscriptions with the Finnair 2000 A and 2000 B warrants Increase

Finnair Group ntenm report 1 fanuary 30 Seprember 2005, a strongly profitable third quarter

Nouficaton of a change i ownership in accordance with chapter 2, section 9 of the secunties market



7 Sepr 2005
26 Aug 2005
23 Aug 2005
23 Aug 2005

23 Aug 2005
16 Aug 2005
1 Aug 2005
10 Aug 2005
2 Aug 2005
26 July 2005
20 fuly 2005
13 July 2005
12 July 2005
6 July 2005
6 july 2005
1 July 2005

1 July 2605
1 luly 2065

23 June 20035
23 June 2005
22 June 2005
17 June 2005

8 June 2005

26 May 2005
26 May 2005
12 May 2005
11 May 2005

2 May 2005

29 Apr 2005
22 Apr200S
19 Apr 2005
13 Apr 2005

12 Apr 2005

11 Apr 2005

& Apr 2005

6 Apr 2005

24 March 2005
23 March 2005
23 March 2005
23 March 2005
23 March 2005
9 March 2005
8 March 2005
1 March 2005
23 Feb 2005

Finnair demand and load factors up

New US maintenance contract for Finnair Technical Services

The Board of Directors of Finnair Plc approved acquisition of its own shares

Share subscripuons with the Finnair 2000 A and 2000 B warrants,

increase in share capital and hisuing of shares

HSE Finnair Oy shares subscribed with oprion nights

Fmnair Group interrm report 1 January 30 June 2005

Finnair to begin divect flights 1o Nagoya

Robust growth canuinues for Finnawr

Finnarr Technical Services signs mamrenance contract with Air New Zealand

Finnai to open fourth ltahian desonavon Tuscany

Finnair to launch flights to Geneva in summer 2006

Finnair demand remains strong

Finnair fiies direct ro Krakow

Finnair Marketung Division becomes Commeraial Division

Fast connections to Asia Finnair to launch direct flights berween Edinburgh and Helsink
Management of Finnau s TEL pension habihoes has been transferred

to llmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company

Germini Air Cargo Compenent and APU mainrenance to Finnair Technical Services
Cotrection concerning the press release on Finnatr Technical Services maintenance support centract
The worth of contract 1s 1n excess of 8 million euros annually below the correct press release
Share subscriptions with the Finnair 2000 A warrants increase in share capital and listing of shares
HSE Finnair Oy) shares subscribed with oprion rights

Jukka Narakka to be Managmg Director of Frnland Travel Bureau

Jukka Hienonen to be Finnarr’s president and CEQ

Robust growth in Binna’s Astan waffic

Share subscriptions with the Finnarr 2000 A warrants

HSE Finnair Oy shares subscribed with option rights

Finpair Group imterim repoert 1 fanuary 31 March 2005

Finnair Scehduled Traffic grew by 8 2%

Martman s heavy maintenance checks to Finnair Techrical Services

Effects of the transiuon to IFRS reporting standards

Finnaw to release effects of transiton to IFRS reporning standards

Expensive fuel increases lewsure flight prices

Finnaw Asian rraffic grew by a thurd

Reward from the Finnair Plc share ownership plan 2004

Finnair simphfies its fleet structure

Share subseniptions with the Finpair 2000 A warrants, increase i share capital and isting of shares
HSE Finnair Ple subscrnption of shares wath option nights

Finnair cabin atrendant strike avorded

Finnair share subscripuon with Finnair 2000 A warrants

Finnair President and CEO Keyjo Surla to retire

Demand for Finnair conorues strong

Decisions of Finnaw Plc’s Annual General Meeung 2005

Finnaw's growth in Asia continues, load factor improved

Possible cabin crew strike postponed

Notice of the Annual Shareholders’ Meenng 2005

flynordic and Sterhing to cooperate
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18 Feb 2005
17 Feb 2005
17 Feb 2005
9 Feb 2005

17 Jan 2005
12 Jan 2003

Antero Lahunen named as new Managing Director for Finnair Cargo Oy
Finnair Group financial statement 1 Januwary - 31 December 2004
Burdaras Hf holding in Finnair has exceeded five per cent

Finnaw traffic and load factor continue up

Finnair to see a result-mproving pension habibity change

Finnair passenger numbers reach record heights

All Stock Exchange Releases can be found on the Finnair Group website waww finnarr com
Stock Exchange Releases relating to the purchase of own shares can be found ar the same address

THE BROKERAGE FIRMS ANALYSING
FINNAIR EQUITY

Carnegie Investment Bank AB, Finland Branch

Jussi Karhunen

eQ Bank Ltd
Bengr Dahilstrom

FiM Securities Ltd
Linda Blom

Handeisbanken
Ann Bowers

Kaupthing Bank
Jutta Rahikainen

Mandatum Securities Lid
Robin johansson

Morgan Stanley, London
Penelope Butcher

Opstock Securibies Lid
Pekka Spolander

SEB Enskilda
Kani Paajanen

CONTACT INFORMATION

Head Office

Helsinki-Vantaa Airport

Tietotie 11 A, FI-01053 FINNAIR
Tel +358 9 81 881

www finnamr com

Semor Vice President
Carporare Communications
Christer Haglund

Tel +358 5 818 4007

fax +358 9 818 4092

christer haglund@finnair com

Sentor Vice President and CFQ
Lasse Heinonen

Tel +358 9 818 4950

fax +358 9 818 4092

lasse heinonen@finnarr com

Director, Investor Relations
Taneli Hassinen

Tel +358 9 818 4978

fax +358 9 818 4092

taneh hassmen@finmatr com

Investor Relations
Tel +358 ¢ 518 49517
fax +358 9 818 4092

investor relatrans@finnan com
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